Town of Simsbury

933 HOPMEADOW STREET P.O. BOX 495 SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070

Office of Community Planning and Development

AGENDA
ZONING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING
MONDAY, MARCH 16, 2020

STMSBURY TOWN OFFICES — 7:00 PM. - MAIN MEETING ROOM™

933 HOPMEADOW STREET, SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT
['.'.{j f
L. CALLTO ORDER o] pEC
S W
II. ROLL CALL Vi ot
LAY "(N‘s (\“2:?\
1. Appointment of Alternates \Q% TONRYY
[
Y
ML APPROVAL OF MINUTES of the March 2, 2020 regular meeting NAAS Y

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Application #20-02 of Thomas J. Ryan & Andrew Ryan, Agents; Simsbury Town Shops,
LLC, Owner; for a Site Plan Amendment of previously approved plan to install fire stairs on
the property located at 920 Hopmeadow Street., Zone SCZ.

V. OLD BUSINESS
1. Applications
a. None

VI. NEW BUSINESS
1. Receipt of New Applications
a. Application #20-03 of Graphic Impact Signs, Inc., Agent ; Big Y Foods Inc. Owner; for a
sign permit for new signage on the property located at 1313 Hopmeadow Street
(Assessor’s Map 105, Block 406, Lot 016). Zone B-2.
2. Time Extensions
7C 15-14 - 80 Wolcott Road — Site Plan Approval - Request for 5 year extension

VII. REGULATION UPDATE WORKSHOP
1. Discussion of Regulation Re-write

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

Please notify Michael Glidden at 860-658-3252 with your availability to attend this meeting.

Telephone (860,) 658~3245 www.simshury~ct.gov An Equal Opportunity Employer
Facsimile (860) 658-3205 8:30 - 700 Monday
8:30 - 4:30 Tuesday through Friday



ECEIVE

. :
Town of Simsbur}y w7
Office of Community Planning and Development - Zoning Commyj sﬂ&&%@%ﬁ@%@{m
DATE: 2/25/2020 FEE: §240'00 CK #: ‘Z(_'c?(a(? APP#: 20— 02

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 920 Hopmeadow Street

NAME OF OWNER: Simsbury Town Shops, LLC
MAILING ADDREss: 27 North Street, Suite 405, Danbury, Connecticut 06810
EMAIL ADDREss: 1 Tyan@thomasjryanlaw.com reLepone # 203-313-2900

NAME OF aGenT: 1 homas J. Ryan/Andrew Ryan

MAILING ADDRESS: S@me as above

EMAIL ADDRESS; SMe as above TELEPHONE # S8Me as above

SC 3 g 26 5;@?
ZONING DISTRICT: LOT AREA: 255 SQ FI/ACRES

Does this site have wetlands? [ _JYES Have you applied for a wetlands permit? [(JYES  [ENO

REQUESTED ACTION (PLEASE CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX):

ZONE CHANGE: The applicant hereby requests that said premises be changed from zone to zone

TEXT AMENDMENT: Please attach proposed changes, including Articles and Sections, and purposes.
SPECIAL EXCEPTION: The applicant hereby requests a public hearing pursuant to Article , Section
SITE PLAN APPROVAL,: The applicant hereby requests
[ IPRELIMINARY [EFINAL [TIS¥TE PLAN AMENDMENT pursuant to Article 5, Section J

! SIGN PERMIT . L ) .
0 OTHER (PLEASE EXPLAINY: This Application is being made for the purpose of approving

fire stairs on the right hand side of the Berkshire Hathaway building located at 920 Hopmeadow Street per the attached plans

that have been previously reviewed and approved by the Fire Marshall and the Building Department (with ane minor
change).

NOTE: Each application must fully comply with the requirements of the Zoning Regulations prior to receipt by the
Commission. Each application for zone change and/ov special exception shall include .
abutting property owners and all property owners within 100 feet of the subject site. '

Yo , /?,{ W20 //,,7
rZ = {
%a re of Owner y lgc% CSW/MM
ﬂm&ﬁ 7 Wens, Mlwhon /m},«@m
Telephone (860) 658-3245 www simshury-ctgov . - 933 Cljopmeadow Strget,
. a2 T2 At AR IR
Facsimile (860) 658-3206 itishury, CT 06070

Date (



FRANING SHOWN FOR CLARTTY. GABLE EXD 1O
BE CLOSED AND FIMISHED WRH SOING TME

. = : 2x10 RIDGE :
28 RAFTER TIES (2} 108
SIMPSON HANGERS

238 RAFTERS & FRIC-26-3 W/SOLID
I 18" 0L (R) WEDGE BLOCKING )
SINPSQN H25A (TP
45T, BLDG, I RAFTER
0 REMAN 7 10 BEAY
_ 248 RAFTERS @ 16" O.C. {TYF)
(3} MB's (YR
f W/NTERNEDWTE BLOSKING
e S : SNFSON HRSH16Z (1Y)
~ ~ .
AFFRX. LINE OF SECONO 3 {2) 20
FLOGR VIF. /4" P 2
3§ pEmane (ery bl L] § §§ 22 T
& TSN e v
BT, AN, FLR. @ & 10-11" A N
" GRADE, VARIES, VIF 1 - z B N ASHHALT FIBERGLASS
(1) 2410 HORIZ. BRACNG (PT) = - 1 A —erF SHNGLE ROGFHG OVER K
COLUMN SPLCE @ = ] A | A A £D OVER 1,
S — e 2 = i _ 2l o
{VP. OF 4) ' H = fl =
g L n
*g L.
= I__I ﬂ N — 1° 50. WOOD FICKETS {F
el Lt f BN
10 FLOOR JOKTS @ 15” O, ! )
BRIDGE A8 REQ'D I I ] B @ A PPE HODRAL
{3) 510 HORIZ, BRAGING {FT) - I /] E 0B
mim—— I T / g%“ =12
1 ]
| 1] eresrer e m—l)__/ P 1 ) 2a0 RoRz ] oot GBas — rrt
! réﬁﬁk‘ [ (020 honz. BaGHe PL—" | {  aekie (1) | { 5"“”: pE NEW CONC. WALK J
A LEEY e IO AN TR




@ ECEIVE H
U\ MAR 102020

Town of Simshur

Office of Community Planning and Development - Zoning Commism A p

,.-»:ﬁ’ﬁ?a
4
)
\

gt

DATE: 3/7 /2030 FEE: 3 (272 850k x¥2 ‘f_s‘l/gx #_SO9R2  arp#: 2O-CD
PROPERTY ADDRESS: /3 /2 /—/mmpmoém Street

NAME OF OWNER: (3 I‘q Y 7:00(’/[5 Inc.

MAILING ADDRESS: Z S MA Clloy

EMAIL ADDRESS: [R™yen (& bzqu Conn TELEPHONE # (Y]3)728Y ~0ObCe)
NAME OF AGENT: élmglg,g._, %Pﬁgﬁ S; s Tne. / Tohn Penzs

MAILING ADDRESS: _S™ 75~ Da Jfems A-ma e, Pittshelsl MA Oleo)

F
EMAIL ADDRESS: Qb_olgzi-m@g_,‘s_,&gm TELEPHONE # ( §00) Yse-237¢

ZONING DISTRICT: _[ ~2_ LOTAREA: _ |, 7  secmrfCREd)

Does this site have wetlands? [ JYES (ZNo Have you applied for a wetlands permit? [JYES IZ\NO

REQUESTED ACTION (PLEASE CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX):

ZONE CHANGE: The applicant hereby requests that said premises be changed from zone to zone

TEXT AMENDMENT: Please attach proposed changes, including Atticles and Sections, and purposes.
SPECIAL EXCEPTION: The applicant hereby requests a public hearing pursuant to Article , Section
SITE PLAN APPROVAL: The applicant hereby requests
CIPRELIMINARY CJFINAL LISITE PLAN AMENDMENT pursuant to Article 5, Section J
SIGN PERMIT

OTHER (PLEASE EXPLAIN):

OR OOO0OO

NOTE: Each application must fully comply with the requirements of the Zoning Regulations prior to receipt by the

Commission. Each application for zone change and/or special exception shall include a list of names and addresses o

abutting property owners and all property owners within 100 feet of the subject site.

A check payable to the Town of Simsbury must accompany this original signed and dated application. Six (6) complete

folded) sets of plans and eleven (11) copies of the completed application and correspondence must also be included. If

you have a PDF of your plans, we would appreciate a copy of that sent to Ibarkowski(@simsbury-ct.gov, as well.

v P asul

Signature of Owner

390

Date

www.simsbury-ctgov. o - np }
03-10-2020 4431 !1 T 06




/4 graphic
74 impact
signs

575 Dalton Avenue, Pittsfield, MA 01201

Dear Zoning Commission,

ph. 800.458.2376 fax. 413.443.0034

gisigns.com

March 9, 2020

Please find enclosed our application for the proposed sign package with the following signage calculations for:

Big Y World Class Market
1313 Hopmeadow Street
Simsbury, CT

Building Frontage: 272 Linear Feet

Signage Allowance:

Proposed Signage:

Signage Calculations

272 Linear Feet x 1 Square foot per linear foot = 272 square feet of signage allowance

Type of Sign

Quantity and Dimensions of Sign

INlumination Type

Overall Square
footage

“Big Y” monument sign

One @ 67" Hx 68” W x 10° OAH

Ground illumination

32.00 square feet

“Big Y” building sign

One @ 144" Hx 144” W

Halo illumination

144.00 square feet

“World Class Market” building sign

One @ 15” Hx 249" W

Non-illuminated

26.00 square feet

“Locally Owned Since 1936” building sign

One @ 10.5” Hx 236" W

Non-illuminated

17.20 square feet

“Seafood” building sign

One @ 12" Hx 79" W

Non-illuminated

6.58 square feet

“Sushi Chef” building sign

One @ 12” Hx 100.6” W

Non-illuminated

8.30 square feet

“Superbird” building sign

One @ 12”Hx 95.7” W

Non-illuminated

7.90 square feet

“Hand Crafted Cakes” building sign

One @ 12" Hx 186” W

Non-illuminated

15.50 square feet

“Local & Organic” building sign

One @ 12” Hx 166" W

Non-illuminated

13.90 square feet

Proposed sign square footage:

271.38 square feet

Allowed sign square footage: 272.00 square feet

Area of ground illuminated  signage: 32.00 square feet
Area of Halo illuminated signage: 144.00 square feet
Area of non illuminated signage: 95.38 square feet

Total:

271.38 square feet

Thank you in advance for your consideration on this matter.

Total:

271.38 square
feet




— ) GRAPIMP-02 AGROVER
LR CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE g

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: I[f the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER | GRNEACT Adrianne Grover
Egrléil;:rzesgi:urance Group, Inc falo o, Exti ] (AIS, No):(413) 499-3918
Pittsfield, MA 01202 | kdHMEss. agrover@berkshireinsurancegroup.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A : Selective Insurance Company Of America 12572
INSURED INSURER B : Selective Insurance Company of South Carolina (19259
Graphic Impact Signs Inc INSURER C :
575 Dalton Ave INSURER D :
Pittsfield, MA 01201
INSURER E :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

R TYPE OF INSURANGE NS0 W, POLICY NUMBER (MIDON TV | (MADS ) LIMiTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EAGH OCCURRENGE s 1,000,000
| cLams-mape | X | occur 52337913 8/19/2019 | 8/19/2020 | DAMACETORENTED o s 500,000
== MED EXP (Any ons parson) 3 15,000
|| PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
poLIGY @ SEGr IXI Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: $
B | automoBILE LiaBILITY | COMBINED SINGLELIMIT | ¢ 1,000,000
ANY AUTO A9106809 8/19/2019 | 8/19/2020 | popiLy INJURY (Per person) | § 20,000
| oWwNED X | SGHEDULED 40,000
| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS | BODILY INJURY (Per accldent)| $ )
E
X RS oy | X | AONRYD RGP s
$
A | X |umererLams | X | occur EACH OCCURRENGE $ 6,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 52337913 8/19/2019 | 8/19/2020 AGGREGATE s 6,000,000
peo | X [ rerentions 0 $
PER OTH-
B o SER Ao o X [ SRue | 1%
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNEREXECUTVE (]| | [WC2039500 8/19/2019 | 8/19/2020 | | Lo \comen s 1,000,000
(Mandatory in NFI ’ E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § Ol

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddItional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more spaca Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

] THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Town of Simsbury, CT ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
933 Hopmeadow Street

Simsbury, CT 06070

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
|

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




e 68.0"

14.0"

120.0"

monument base...concrete pedestal with real
brick veneer and grout...by GC

external LED floodlight fixtures elther
side of sign

A...(1)...Double Sided Externally Illuminated Monument Sign...NTS...32 sq. ft. area

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dallon ave. pliuslleld, ma 01201

gisigns.com

WORLD
CLASS
MARKET

Salws Rep:  J, Renzl
JobName: BigY
Job Location; Simsbury

Sheat: 1of8
Date: 3/5/20
Job 4;

Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20




%

Y

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dillen e p Itiatd, ma 01201

gisigns.com

WORLD
CLASS
MARKET

B...Quantity (1)...Storefront Internally llluminated Halo Sign...NTS logo circle= 144.0 sq. ft.

* 3.0" deep aluminum fabricated clrcular logo background cabinet...painted to match Big Y Red Pantone 193 C

‘ 3.0" deep aluminum fabricated reverse halo channel letters/logo....188" clear polycarbonate backs...1.5" - 2.0" standoff mount to background cabinet

* letters/logo internally illuminated with white low voltage LED modules ...60W 120VAC power supplies contained within background cabinet..UL listings

* sign cabinet mounts to window mullion system ( self drill/tap into existing mullion extrusion typ. )

* non-illum, * WORLD CLASS MARKET " letters are 1.5 thick CAM routered Versatex PVC letters painted White.... mount to twin sq. 1" aluminum rails

* non-illum. " AMERICAN OWNED " letters and stars are Gemini molded plastic letters... custom painted to match Big Y Red Pantone 193 C Red. and Pantone 286 C Blue
* rails with letters mount to windew mullion system ( mounting method T8D after site survey of as built mullions }...rails painted white...color TBD

“ Note: ...site survey of as built fascia and window system required prior to fabrication

3ales Rep: . Renzi
Job Name:  Big Y

Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 2008
Date: 3/5/20
Job #:

Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big ¥
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20

APPROVED

APPROVED A3 NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

DATE




Simulated Halo lllumination at Night

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dallzn vie. p o121

gisigns.com

WORLD
CLASS
A MARKET

Sales Rep: 1. Renzi
JobName:  BigY
Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 3of8

3/5/20

as noted
Drawn by: LH
BigY
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20

APPROVED

APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE




144.0"

I'Y

144.0"

@ e

B...Single Sided Halo llluminated Logo Sign...NTS

* UL listed with disconnect switch

P switch

3.0" deep aluml clreular background

3.0"#‘ ‘4—

-¢—— window mullion extrusion
(typ)

cabinet...painted to match Pantone 193 C Red...
removable service panels around return adge for
access to power supplles and secondary wiring...
120 VAC 60 W power supplies

3.0" deep alumi d reverse halo channel
letters/logo wilh 3/16" clear polycarbonate backs...
letter/logo channels palnted white...Internal white LED
module halo llumination...letters/lego to stand-off
background cabinet 1.5" - 2.0"

gistared Is illum. 1st surface applied white
opaque vinyl

aluminum access panels on return
of circular cabinet

120 VAC 60 W LED power il

¥

.188" clear polycarbonate back

white LED modut v

alum.channel letter shell——%| }

25" threaded mounting studs
electroblts pass-thru

face of circular cabinet ———

v

\ Section A

]d— window mullion exirusion
(typ)

back of sign... painted 1o
match Pantone 193 C Red

:Id— window mullion extrusion
(typ}

re

Z

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443,0034

575 dallon ave, pilsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

WORLD
CLASS
MARKET

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi
Joh Name: BigyY

Jobr Location: Simsbury

Shoot: 40f 8
Date: 3/5/20
Jab #:

Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20

APPRCVEDAS HOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

DATE




L 249.0"

1.5" thick CAM cut Versatex PVC
PVC lstters...painted White

Front Elevation

1"8q. alum. horiz. mounting rails....painted white

—— e

[/ Y

S — e

N

Y

A AT /ATN,

e

5

b
S

— R e —

Rear Elevation of Sign

A
—

1"sq. alum.vert. mounting rails....painted white

B...(1)...Non-lllum. Storefront Letters Mounted to Rails...NTS
26.01 sq. ft. each

WA/

/.__
(/

7

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dalton ave. pilisfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

1"sq. alum. horiz. mounting rails....painted white

1" aluminum angle mounling
clips...fasten to window mulllons

with self tapping screws

1.5" Lhick CAM cut Vi

PVC

iy

" %"’

letters...palnted to match Pantone
193C Red...fasten to alum. tube

with self tappingscrews

window mullions

Section C ...1:2

1"sq. alum. horiz. mounting rails....painted white ‘/

Ty

=
b

WORLD
CLASS
MARKET

Sales Rep:  J. Renzl
JobName:  BigY

Job Location; Simsbury

Sheet: 50f8
Date: 3/5/20
Job #;

Scale: as noted

Drawn by:  LH

Big ¥
1313 Hopemeadow St,
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20




= 236.0"

L

|
15 % LOCALLY OWNED SINCE 1936 %

D....Qty (1) Set @ 17.2 sq. ft. area

79.0"

nio— SEAFOOD

E....Qty (1) Set @ 6.58 sq. ft. area

100.6"

= SUSHI CHEF
}'—

F....Qty (1) Set @ 8.3 sq. ft. area

95.7"

|s |
|--

-
12}0_ SUPERBIRD

G....Qty (1) Set @ 7.9 sq. ft. area

Storefront Non-llluminated Dimensional Letters..NTS

L r 186.0" =i
1200 HAND CRAFTED CAKES

| H....Qty (1) Set @ 15.5 sq. ft. area

o 166.0"

: |
130_ LOCAL & ORGANIC

l....Qty (1) Set @ 13.9 sq. ft. area

“ 1.5” thick CAM routered Versatax PVC letters painted Pantone Red 193 C, and Blue 286 C....Times Bold Letterstyle

* mount flush to fascla with studs and silastic adhesive
* see typical letter detail next page

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034
575 dallon ave. piltsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

MARKET

Sales Rep: . Renzi
JobName: BigY

Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 6of 8
Date: 3/5/20
Job #:

Scale: as noted

Drawn byy:  LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20

ATROVED
AMRCVED AR HOTED
CUEHT STNATURE

DATE




18.0" dia. concrete footings ( sona tube ) X

72.07

\

< conduit sweep

18.0"
dia.

\

concrete slab foundation

/_— (by GC)

72.07

i
I
1
|

18.0" dia. concrete footings ( sona tube )

Top

real brick veneer

{aminate (by GC) ——l':

#5 rebar typ.

i 1
’ in
H o
f -
’ 1
brick veneer ———~ .
laminate (by GC) - conduit sweep
'l of
Sls
LR
-
Y
70.5" _
I | [}
I |
I |
| i )
| | 5
| I 2
| i b
: |
I |
|
L | y
]
£
<
% g
¥ Y

concrete slab foundation —/

(by GC)

Front Elevation

48.0"

\

\

re,

4

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dallon ave. pittsfield, ma 01101

gisigns.com

Sales Rep:  J. Renzl
JobName: BigY

Job Location: Simsbury

18.0"

Sheet: 7of8
Date: 3/5/20
Job #:

Scale: as noted
Drawn by: LH
BigY

1313 Hopemeadow St
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20

conduit conduit
sweep sweep

Side

\- —— 18.0" dia. concrete footings ( sona tube )

APPIVIVED
APPRECHVED S NOTED

LT SONATE




™ 18.0" ¥
Litecorr LCG FL 70W
LED light fixture 120 VAC
w/ adjustable knuckle 16.0"

....finished satin tan

4" sq. aluminum tube/post w/
welded alum. cap...finished
satin tan

hand-hole access w/ cover....

/ finished satin tan
| — cont. weld

24.0"

.50" dia. chemical anchorbolts

13.0"

.50" thick alum. rnd. plt.
finished satin black

concrete base/ ‘/

footing by GC

12.5" dia. bolt circle ( max )
.875" x 2.875"slots (4)

conduit sweep

Details...(2)...LED Light and Mounting Post...2.0" =1'-0"

Section A

( o

Z

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443,0034

575 dallen ave piltsfield ma 01201

gisigns.com

Sales Rep:  J, Renzi
JobMName: Big¥
Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 8of8

Date: 3/5/20

Jab #:

Scale: as noted

Drawn by:  LH

Big Y

1313 Hopemeadow St.

Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/9/20
APPROVED
APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SiivATURE

DATE




—
s
ZONING DATA (ZONE B-2)
~
~ a Propoead Uisa - Suparmarket *
-~ ,' n Lol Aroa
A 1. M o oM
_ Proposed DTG S Feat
- - < Lot Froniage
- 1 Mindmum . No Minimum
I e Proposed = 7342 Feel
- L] Yards - Buldhg 0'
- 1. Arum Front Yard «  25Fet =
——— - et £
. — 2 Mindmum Sige Yard = 20 -
¥ 3. Mrdum Roar Yard : ;’;;z 3
3 o -
DRIVE TO THE INEH’A&""”M Fropased o 27Fe ﬁg
SKADNG CEN - o N ¥ Yat-Pukig I
o “ E e i . Miknum Foat Vard Paring Soibeck  + 25 Feel Ei
N QY R
2 Miokousn Side Vard Poking Sotteck = 15 oot
PAVEMENT MARKING LEGEND - : S sk E
2 3 koo aa Yard Parking Sotack = 10 Foel é
Symbol Time FPropased - 124 Faot d l
y ) " Marimum Buikdng Haipht
SWL  Paintad Sigle Whita Line 1 Maxkaum Bultting Haight P
e TR FALIRAT BA (T Fropoied e fo £
s Puinted Sngie YolowLine 7]
B M e Corae = z It
sBL Painled Bingle Blue Line Frrgument bnporan Cramugs % i
= ’ Iarctus v = (A INIES  TMIEF (L1 002EF =@ Bt RE N
orc Painted Doutle Yelow Canterfine a et Foital puved wrie » JL300F R F . T !
] Painted 6top Bar (12 Inches Wids) - = 3 TIiF& * Granied Speciel Excaption, Ssptembar 10, 2013 < "
SGL Painted Grean Line {4 inches vide] - E : _" Ll » PARKING . !
olly Greer Traffc Paint by Fronkin Paint Company - - _= w .
\ R # = REQUIRED PARKING
© L i Rotal 1 41,700 0f. @ 275 spvSo0u.t. j
L\ H o Office = 2408 ».
\ | P I
\ ik iy v v PR AN -
CURB TYPE LEGEND \ e om0 248 Tota! spacvs .|
(s 188 - OXTH spaces
Symbol  Tpe = 81 P18 apeces (4% of Tty
o Concrets Curb @ e .
BOLC  BAuminous Concrets Lp Curb | - . il Faaption we Sapimnsar T, S0 -
Foc FLush Concrats Curb \ " SIGNAGE LEGEND
|| ¥ R ke | Symbol Ouphls  Colslog Humber  Quantity
i — o |
\ e 0 ® 8 New R sn
py { H {CT Buikding Code)
| i e
O o i m] )
) = 310848 1
| i 1
o N 2
! i ® -
¥ 8ig¥ et \ oA 1
World Class Market =~ I
52,630 £ SF. ~ |
o \ AR 1
° i
‘ g 2 I
1 i a i L ¥ K ® E cusToM ¥
1 (12 X185
i H “SEENOTE 12
] 1l l L] *
g - ] SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKING NOTES =
e et 4 = : T 1 pa wide) -
& ) \ Wt At - :
P . S LA T
SUMLA Y ot T 1 i Isles and symbals Hua trffc paint (4
y W nches wida). .
3 L s i pai {4 inches wids) > L
t 3 arsas i it pein i (4 Inches wide) § i
4 ) t 7oA oor| 21 & gl
pamrs 8 nd sign ' p . *Standard ¥ §
AP A - Aphabeis For Highiray Signs Makings®, GT DOT 817, nd ADA g
L b, ey n— \ Requirements aad as shown on the detads =
o ll [} i C—— o, i b Bweau of Enginesring 22
- LT | -mnmmwu.cn_molzgn.Ju»,zommmmmmwp.mmm E E
CETA A 0 2 1=
- 11, Resarve elgn par CT Buiking Coda By
RS e v 12, EV Bign - Dimansions’ 12%18° (Distitastor: BRADY WORLDWIDE ING. 886-250-3032, PART NO. 14155 > 8
@
g |
AL R & L3
e e Y
2
GRAPHIC| SCALE iy
7 1 * <
— X
] -
[ 'lil \
I lnch = L3




le 272' Frontage

R
i
i
r
=
rm
B
=




4 graphic

74 impact
signs

575 Dalton Avenue, Pittsfield, MA 01201

ph. 800.458.2376 fax. 413.443.0034
gisigns.com

March 11, 2020

Dear Zoning Commission,
Please find enclosed our application for the proposed sign package with the following signage calculations for:
Big Y World Class Market
1313 Hopmeadow Street
Simsbury, CT

Signage Calculations

272 Linear Feet
272 Linear Feet x 1 Square foot per linear foot = 272 square feet of sighage allowance

Building Frontage:
Signage Allowance:

Proposed Signage:

Type of Sign Quantity and Dimensions of Sign | Illumination Type Overall Square
footage
“Big Y” monument sign One @ 67” Hx 68” W x 10 OAH | Ground illumination 32.00 square feet
“Big Y” building sign One @ 144” Hx 144” W Halo illumination 144.00 square feet
“World Class Market” building sign One @ 15” Hx 249" W Non-illuminated 26.00 square feet
“Locally Owned” building sign One @ 10" Hx 120" W Non-illuminated 8.33 square feet
“Sustainable Seafood” building sign One @ 12” Hx 188" W Non-illuminated 15.66 square feet
“Sushi Chef” building sign One @ 12” Hx 100.6” W Non-illuminated 8.30 square feet
“Superbird” building sign One @ 12”Hx 95.7” W Non-illuminated 7.90 square feet
“Hand Crafted Cakes” building sign One @ 12" Hx 186” W Non-illuminated 15.50 square feet
“Local & Organic” building sign One @ 12" Hx 166" W Non-illuminated 13.90 square feet
Total: 271.59 square
feet
Proposed sign square footage: 271.59 square feet
Allowed sign square footage: 272.00 square feet
Area of ground illuminated  signage: 32.00 square feet
Area of Halo illuminated signage: 144.00 square feet
Area of non illuminated signage: 95.59 square feet
Total: 271.59 square feet

Thank you in advance for your consideration on this matter.

John Renzi
Graphic Impact Signs, Inc.



68.0"

A
. 14.0" deep alt J ed sign cabinet
" ...painted Satin White
.n' 1 r
" th be 1 PVC CAM routered raised logo...
N
N<)
o
o
N

decorative fabricated alu
Beige 454 C

monument base...concrete pedestal with real
brick veneer and grout...by GC

external LED floodlight fixtures either
side of sign

41.0"

A...(1)...Double Sided Externally llluminated Monument Sign...NTS...32 sq. ft. area

14.0"

‘;

Z

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dalton ave. pittsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

WORLD
CLASS
MARKET

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi
JobName: BigY
Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 10f 8

Date: 3/5/20
Job #:
Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/11/20

E‘ APPROVED

D APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

DATE

NOTICE OF COPYRIGHT

This Original design (except
Registered or existing Trade Marks} is
the property of Graphic Impact
Signs UNLESS PURCHASED
SEPARATELY, from Graphic
Impact Signs. This drawing may not
be reproduced or photo copied in part
or in whole, without the written
permission of Graphic Impact
Sians




conduit sweep

18.0" dia. concrete footings ( sona tube )

dia.

18.0"

‘;

Z

graphic
impact
signs

concrete slab foundation
(by GC)

16.5"

brick veneer J

. 800.458.2376
laminate (by GC) <«—— conduit sweep

fax 413.443.0034

575 dalton ave. pittsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

72.0"

=

18.0"
dia.

18.0" dia. concrete footings ( sona tube )

Top

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi

JobName: BigY

70.5"

-t | Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 20f 8

16.5" Date: 3/5/20
A Job #:

Scale: as noted

72.0" 72.0" Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/11/20

41.0"

real brick veneer
laminate (by GC)————»
! Y 6.0"

——

‘_‘ APPROVED

ﬂ APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

48.0"

# 5 rebar typ.

\ 4

48.0"

DATE

conduit conduit

NOTICE OF COPYRIGHT

This

Original design (except
sweep sweep Registered or existing Trade Marks) is

/. ;.‘ gns U CHASED
y Y A I AT rom Sropne
be reproduced or photo copied in part
or in whole without the written
° permission of Graphic Impact
° Sians
concrete slab foundation Front Elevation Side \ . . /
18.0" dia. concrete footings ( sona tube )

(by GC)




18.0"

Litecorr LCG FL 70W
LED light fixture 120 VAC
w/ adjustable knuckle

16.0"
....finished satin tan -

4" sq. aluminum tube/post w/ /
welded alum. cap...finished ‘ P
satin tan

hand-hole access w/ cover....
finished satin tan

cont. weld | O

24.0"

.50" dia. chemical anchorbolts

.50" thick alum. rnd. plt. Q\ e Y~
finished satin black & -
%

concrete base/
footing by GC

13.0"

12.5" dia. bolt circle ( max )
.875" x 2.875" slots (4 )

conduit sweep

Details...(2)...LED Light and Mounting Post...2.0" =1'-0"

Section A

‘a

Z

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dalton ave. pittsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

V) ()

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi
JobName: BigY

Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 30f8
Date: 3/5/20
Job #:

Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/11/20

[] APPROVED

‘ ‘ APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

DATE

NOTICE OF COPYRIGHT




‘;

Z

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dalton ave. pittsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

B...Quantity (1)...Storefront Halo Illuminated Sign...NTS

’I 2 ":
A ;

./ - ‘ — ‘.’ e = 5 =

— =1 | = —
= é — = = =
i =

= /

7 = _ : ' _ :

logo circle= 144.0 sq. ft.

* 3.0" deep aluminum fabricated circular logo background cabinet...painted to match Big Y Red Pantone 193 C

* 3.0" deep aluminum fabricated reverse halo channel letters/logo....188" clear polycarbonate backs...1.5" - 2.0" standoff mount to background cabinet
* letters/logo halo illuminated with white low voltage LED modules ...60W 120VAC power supplies contained within background cabinet..UL listings

* sign cabinet mounts to window mullion system ( self drill/tap into existing mullion extrusion typ. )

* non-illum. " WORLD CLASS MARKET " letters are 1.5" thick CAM routered Versatex PVC letters painted White.... mount to twin sq. 1" aluminum rails

* non-illum. " AMERICAN OWNED " letters and stars are Gemini molded plastic letters... custom painted to match Big Y Red Pantone 193 C Red. and Pantone 286 C Blue
* rails with letters mount to window mullion system ( mounting method TBD after site survey of as built mullions )...rails painted white...color TBD

* Note: ...site survey of as built fascia and window system required prior to fabrication

, ‘
’

’

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi
JobName: BigY

Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 4 0of 8
Date: 3/5/20
Job #:

Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/11/20

1 [
=

ML s
!

174'-2"( 2,090.0" )

272'-0" ( 3,264.0")

‘j APPROVED

‘—‘ APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

DATE

NOTICE OF COPYRIGHT

This Original design (except
Registered or existing Trade Marks) is
the property of Graphic Impact
Sig UNLESS PURCHASED
SEPARATELY, from Graphic
Impact Signs. This drawing may not
be reproduced or photo copied in part
or in whole without the written
permission of Graphic Impact
Sians




Simulated Halo Illumination at Night

‘a

Z

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dalton ave. pittsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

V)

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi
JobName: BigY
Job Location: Simsbury
Sheet: 50f8
Date: 3/5/20
Job #:

Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/11/20

L] APPROVED

‘ ‘ APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

DATE

NOTICE OF COPYRIGHT




144.0"

- > 3.0" -

‘;

— weatherproof disconnect switch

:I(— window mullion extrusion
(typ)

o graphic
impact
signs

3.0" deep aluminum fabricated circular background
cabinet...painted to match Pantone 193 C Red...

removable service panels around return edge for 800.458.2376

access to power supplies and secondary wiring... !;as)d( lt41 31‘!1000:132‘0‘1

120 VAC 60 W power supplies alton ave. pittsfield, ma
gisigns.com

3.0" deep aluminum fabricated reverse halo channel

letters/logo with 3/16" clear polycarbonate backs...
letter/logo channels painted white.. white LED
module halo illumination...letters/logo to stand-off

background cabinet 1.5 - 2.0 <<—— window mullion extrusion

(typ)

144.0"

registered is non-illum. 1st surface applied white
opaque vinyl

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi

) ) JobName: BigY
- back of sign... painted to

match Pantone 193 C Red [ Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 6 of 8
Date: 3/5/20
Job #:
Scale: as noted
\ Drawn by: LH
aluminum access panels on return ]4— window mullion extrusion Big Y
LISTED of circular cabinet \ (typ) 1313 Hopemeadow St.
\ [ ——— Simsbury, CT.
120 VAC 60 W LED power supplies > Rev 3/11/20
B...Single Sided Halo Illuminated Logo Sign...NTS 188" clear polycarbonate back
* UL listed with disconnect switch
white LED modules }
alum.channel letter shell——————> ]1 B [ Tiseenies
| APPROV
ﬂ APPROVED AS NOTED
25" threaded mounting studs CHENTBlooRIURE
electrobits pass-thru DATE
face of circular cabinet >
T & s e
Registered or existing Trade Marksj is
the property Graphic Impact
Si NL S PURCHASED
SE TELY, from Graphic
Impact Signs. This drawing may not
be reproduced or photo copied in part
or in whole without the written
g‘eqrnrglssmn of Graphic Impact
kSection A '




249.0"
-

‘;

1.5" thick CAM cut Versatex PVC
PVC letters...painted White

15.0"

WL D CILASS WIAJRIKLIET graphic

. signs
Front Elevation

1"sqg. alum. horiz. mounting rails....painted white

THDTH AN 22 /A

Rear Elevation of Sign

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034

575 dalton ave. pittsfield, ma 01201

: gisigns.com
N /] A
= ] ».
1"sq. alum. horiz. mounting rails....painted white Sales Rep:  J. Renzi
N\ JobName: BigY

Job Location: Simsbury

¥

1"sq. alum.vert. mounting rails....painted white

B...(1)...Non-lllum. Storefront Letters Mounted to Rails...NTS

Sheet: 70f 8
26.01 sqg. ft. each Date: 3/5/20
Job #:
Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/11/20

1" aluminum angle mounting
clips...fasten to window mullions
with self tapping screws

1.5" thick CAM cut Versatex PVC
letters...painted to match Pantone
193C Red...fasten to alum. tube
with self tappingscrews

. . ‘ ‘_A_PP_R__O\_/ED
window mullions

ﬂ APPROVED AS NOTED

CLIENT SIGNATURE

DATE

NOTICE OF COPYRIGHT

Section C ...1:2

Sig ) S8 PURCHASED
SE v, from Graphic
Impact Signs. This drawing may not
be reproduced or photo copied in part
or in whole without the written
permission of Graphic Impact
" . . . . .
1"sq. alum. horiz. mounting rails....painted white

Sians




L ’4 120.0"

1.0 LOCALLY OWNED
}7 D....Qty (1) Set @ 8.33 sq. ft. area

LT | 1
o SUSTAINABLE SEAFOOD

E....Qty (1) Set @ 15.66 sq. ft. area

i T | i
2o SUSHI CHEF

F....Qty (1) Set @ 8.3 sq. ft. area

LT ]
1200 SUPERBIRD
}7

G....Qty (1) Set @ 7.9 sq. ft. area

Storefront Non-llluminated Dimensional Letters..NTS

L ’4 186.0" ,‘
12% HAND CRAFTED CAKES

H....Qty (1) Set @ 15.5 sq. ft. area

LT | 1
ar LOCAL & ORGANIC

l....Qty (1) Set @ 13.9 sq. ft. area

*1.5" thick CAM routered Versatax PVC letters painted Pantone Red 193 C, and Blue 286 C....Times Bold Letterstyle

* mount flush to fascia with studs and silastic adhesive
* see typical letter detail next page

.
Z

graphic
impact
signs

800.458.2376
fax 413.443.0034
575 dalton ave. pittsfield, ma 01201

gisigns.com

WORLD
CLASS
MARKET

Sales Rep:  J. Renzi
JobName: BigY
Job Location: Simsbury

Sheet: 8of 8

Date: 3/5/20
Job #:
Scale: as noted

Drawn by: LH

Big Y
1313 Hopemeadow St.
Simsbury, CT.

Rev 3/11/20

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEE




“Lown of Simsbury

933 HOPMEADOW STREET P.0. BOX 495 SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070

Office of Community “Planning and “Development

TO: Zoning Commission
FROM: Design Review Board
DATE: March 12, 2020

SUBJECT: Application #20-02 of Thomas J. Ryan & Andrew Ryan, Agents;
Simsbury Town Shops, LLC, Owner; for a Site Plan Amendment of
previously approved plan to install fire stairs on the property located
at 920 Hopmeadow Street. Zone SCZ.

Thomas Ryan presented Application #20-02; he reviewed the history of the property,
explaining that the Fire Marshal has ordered the installation of fire stairs on the
Berkshire Hathaway building.

A motion was made by Ms. Beal to approve Application #20-02 with the following
recommendations:

1. Stairs and structure should have a consistent finished look, using AZEK or
comparable material, uniform, white composite finish.

2. Frame out entryway, featuring the columns, keeping it clean, finish
appropriately with flavor of the building.

3. Handrail and Spindles should be white in color, spindles can be white vinyl if
it is approved by the Fire Marshal.

4. Roof to match the existing roof material and color.

Ms. Rice seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously

Telephone (860) 658-3245 wiww.simsbury~ct.gov An Equal Opportunity Cmployer
Facsimile (860) 658~3205 8:30 - 700 Monday
8:30 ~ 4:30 Tuesday through Friday



MORAN, SHUSTER, CARIGNAN & KNIERIM, LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
111 SIMSBURY ROAD
AVON, CONNECTICUT 06001
TEL.(880) 678 0450 FAX (860) 676 2507

PHILIP J. CARIGNAN ROBERT R. MORAN, JR
GLENN E. KNIERIM, JR. OF COUNSEL

March 9, 2020
7 | < - | L’
Michael Glidden CFM CZEO

Director of Planning and Community Development

Town of Simsbury

By email: mglidden@simsbury-ci.gov

Re:  Site Plan Approval - 80 Wolcott Road

Dear Mr. Glidden:

On behalf of Eighty Wolcott Road, LLC, the owner of the property known as 80 Wolcott
Road, | request a five-year extension of the Site Plan Approval for the property.

Thank you for your assistance.

Sincerely yours,

)

e
;/\/ m"“ﬁ*"%wﬁ.,-\

Glenn E. Knierim, Jr.

cc: Eighty Wolcott Road, LLC




Sections Themes

Sections

Descriptions

1. REGULATORY BASICS Purpose & Authority
1 REGULATORY BASICS
2. ZONING DISTRICT & MAP
3. RESIDENTIAL
4. BUSINESS
ZONES AND USES What you can do in each

L N SN ot kA WD

5. INDUSTRIAL

zone

6. FLOODPLAIN Bulk and Area Standards
7. NON-CONFORMING
8. SPECIAL REGULATIONS
9. SIGN STANDARDS
Additional Requirements
10. PARKING STANDARDS &
Standards

11. SITE PLAN/SPECIAL EXCEPTION

12. TEXT AMENDMENT

13. ZONE CHANGE

14. ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS

15. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

16. ADMINISTRATION & DEFINITIONS

The Process to secure a
permit

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

D -
1|Page




CHAPTER 1 TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 REGULATORY BASICS.....ooiieiirieitieieieieierteeeiseee et sseae e ssese s s st sse s s e s sse s s ssesesscssssesssssssessens 5
SECTION 2 ZONING DISTRICTS AND MAP......ccviceriuriemiieieeriieeeniaerseseaessessesessesstsessessssessesstsessessssesessssessessssesesessesesessens 6
2.1 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS ...ccciisuteiisnniiinninssnnisssnnissnnissneissnesssssesssssessssnesssssesssssesssssssssssessssessns 6
2.2 ZONING IMAP .....curiiiiiiiiiitiiineeiinneissesssesssnsessssessssnsesssnasssssasssssasssssesssssesssssessssnesssssessssnesssssesssssessssnessssnesss 6
2.3 DISTRICT BOUNDARIES......coiisteiiineiiiteiisneiisateisssteisssneissstesssstesssstesessesssssesssssesssssesssssesssssesssssesssssessssnessssnessns 6
2.4 APPLICATION OF DISTRICT REGULATIONS .....ccvuuuuiiiiiiiiiirtnunneisiiisinniesssssssssssssiinmssmsssssssssssiesmssssssssssssssnsssssnnes 7
2.5 REGULATIONS DECLARED TO BE MINIMUM REGULATIONS .....ccccctriiiuiiiisuienisunesisnienisseesissessssessssessssesssssessns 7
SECTION 3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS ..ottt ssese s sesse s sse s ssessesessessesessessessssssassessesensns 8
3.1 PUIPOSES...uuuuununnnnnenniiiiiiiiitiettetiieiisisssssisssssssssssssssssmsssseteeteeteetiesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesseesessessesssssssssssssssssssnns 8
3.2 DESIGNATION OF RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS.....cuctiiueiiineiissneisssneissneissnessssnessssnesessnesesssesesssesesseesesseessseessssesssns 8
3.3 LIMITATION OF PRINCIPAL USES......ccocctrvtttiiiiisunreeiiiissneeeisiisssseesisisssreeisessssesssssssssesssessssneesssssssssssssssssssessses 8
3.4 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL EXCEPTION USES.....cccccueiiieeiiiieiniieinsteinsissssstessssssssssssssssssssssssessesssssesssssesssnsesssns 8
3.4 RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND USES......cccceiiiumeiiinnenisnnenisnienissnenissesinsesiseissseissseissssissssssssess 10
3.8 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS ....coiiiueiiiiuriiisnniiiteiistesissessssiesssssesssssesesssesesssesessessesssesossesssssnsssssssssssssssssases 15
3.9 EXCEPTION TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS .....ccccctriiiummininnenisnieniinieninneninnesissessssessssessssessssesssssssseses
3.10 DESIGNED CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS
3.11 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VILLAGE CLUSTER ZONE- VC ......uviummmmnnnnnnnniieiieeieiiiiiniisiinmmmmsmmsssssssssssmees 18
3.12 SINGLE FAMILY OPEN SPACE CLUSTER ZONE (amended July 21, 1997)......ccccceerrmrerricssnerssssssnensssssssenassssnss 20
SECTION 4 BUSINESS DISTRICTS......ccveutiniieieiriieireiemsereiesseiseeeestiseeessessesessessesessessesessessssessessssesssssssesstsessestsessestsessessssessesnssesns 23
AL PURPOSE ....coiiunriiinnniiinninintiniitisisteisssiesssstesesssesesssesesssesesseesosssesosssssosssesssssesssssesssssessssesssssesssssesssssesssssessssne 23
4.2 DESIGNATION OF BUSINESS DISTRICTS ....uuuteeiiiiiinrreiiiisnnneeiniisseneeiiessssseeesssssssneeisssssneessesssssesssssssssnsssssssssnens 23
4.3 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS ....uuttiiiuiiiiinieniinieniinneniineiniseisineiiimmeiismeismmeissmeismesmiesssiessmessssesessessses 23
4.4 EXCEPTIONS TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS ....coiiiueeiineeiiineiisseeissseeisssesissessssesssssesssssesssssesssssessssssssssees 23
4.5 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL PERMIT USES
4.6 BUSINESS USE STANDARDS .....ccuuiiiiiiiiiitmnneniiineiiirmesssesissieiieessssssssietmetmssssessiitmmmmssmssssssssstsmmssssssses
SECTION 5 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS ..ottt sttt ittt ebe sttt eseescsese st iessesssesesssacses 29
L0 o U] o0 L] 29
5.2 DESIGNATION OF INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS....ccccetiinrissnrissneissneissnensssnensssnessssnesssssesssssesssssesssssesssnsesssssssssnases 29
5.3 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS .....ccciiiiiuiriiiiiinnntiiiiisnteeiiiiieneesiesssssesssssssssessssssssnesssesssssessssssssssssssssssnnsssses 29
5.4 EXCEPTIONS TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS .....ccceviiiumiiiinniisnneninnieniinneninneniseennseensseesmsismsesmsosiens 29
5.5 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL PERIMIT USES ....ccooutiiiitiiiitiiiieiniieiisiesssessssessssssessss s sssssessssesssssessssssssssssssssseses 30
5.6 SPECIAL EXCEPTION FOR HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS IN THE I-1 AND [-2 ZONES.........ccccoceinsnnrinsnneissnneessnensssees 31
SECTION 6 FLOODPLAIN ZONE ..ot sseeessesstsessesssse s ssessessssessesessessssessessssessesssessessssessessssenns 32
L0 T L {0 32
6.2 DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT ......ceiivsueiissnrisssneisssneicssnesesneseseesesseesesseesosseessssesssssesssssssssnessssneses 32
6.3 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES......cccccutiiiuiiinnieinnniiiniesiniesinnessssesssssssmessnsesssseisssseissssesssssessssnessssnssssssess 32

2| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



6.4 IDENTIFICATION OF THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA ........cccortirumiiriinsnnniienisnnneenssssnnesssssssssssssssssssnsssens 32

6.5 FLOODPLAIN ZONE ADMINISTRATION......cuutmmmiriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisniennannnesiiseiseiieeeeeseeiesssssssssssssssssssnssansanees 33
6.6 PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION.......ccccttiiiiiiiiiiiiisisisnnnnnnnmmnnmnmeiseieeeeeiiesissssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnes 34
6.7 STANDARDS FOR WATERCOURSES WITHOUT ESTABLISHED BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS (UN-NUMBERED ZONE
A), ADOPTED FLOODWAYS AND/OR FLOOD MAPPING, AND FLOODWAYS ......cccceverrimruessessemsuessessensuessessessasssesnes 36
6.8 SPECIFIC STANDARDS ......ccctttiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieniennieiiiiiiieieeeeetiesiessssssssssssssssssasssassssssseeseeseteessesssssssssssssssessansannes 37
SECTION 7 NON-CONFORMITIES- LOTS, USES AND STRUCTURES .......cccociiiiiiiiiiiiicccicsccsicenininas 38
7.1 PURPOSE .....uueeeeeeenniiiiiitiietteinniiisissssssssssssssssssssssssstsssettetsesiesssessssssssssssssssssssssnssssssessessessssssssssssssssssssssnnsnnns 38
7.2 NON-CONFORMING LOTS OF RECORD AND IN SUBDIVISIONS.........ccccvummmmmiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiininmmmmmmmmm. 38
7.3 NON-CONFORMING USES OF LAND ......cuuutuuuummmnminiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiimmmmemmmmmmmmssisiiieeteeteetessssssssssssssssssssassasses 38
7.4 NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURES.........cuuumummnmmniiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiisssssssssssssssssasssmmmmiiieeeeeteensesssssssssssssssssssssansanses 38
7.5 NON-CONFORMING USE OF STRUCTURES. ........cccttttiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniennenniesiiititiiieeeetiesiessssssssssssssssssssssssasses 39
SECTION 8 SPECIAL REGULATIONS ..ottt ettt 40
8.1 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT ZONE (pad) (ADOPTED MAY 3, 2010).......ccceveerrseeriseersseesssneesssseessssnessssesnes 40
8.2 HOUSING OPPORTUNITY DEVELOPMENT ZONE........ccccctttiiiinnneenicnnnnienisssnnieeissinnnesissssssessssssssssssssssssssssns 54
8.3 WORKFORCE HOUSING OVERLAY ZONE .......cccutiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesiensessmesiimiisiiieeseemeeiiessssssssssssssssssssssanee 62

8.4 ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY, CONGREGATE SENIOR HOUSING FACILITY OR CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT
L0001 YL N

8.5 AGRI-TOURISM

SECTION 9 SIGN REGULATIONS BY ZONE ...ttt s 74
9.1 RESIDENTIAL ZONES ......cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieinenseeniiiiiiiiieiseteetiessessssssssssssssssssssssssnesseeseteesnessesssssssssssssssssssnnnnnes 74
9.2 NON-RESIDENTIAL ZONES.......cccoiiiuiiiiiiiiunieiiiisnnteeiisntieeiissnneessssssseessssssssesssssssssssssssssssesssssssssassssssssnssssns 75
9.3 SIGN DESIGN STANDARDS ......ccccoitttiiiiitnieiiissnntessisssstesiisssaneesesssssessssssssssesssssssssssessssnsesssssssssssssssssnnssssns 76
9.4 SIGN PLAN REQUIREMENTS .....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiintiiniieiiiiiiieiieeeeiiesissssssssssssssssssassssssessssseseesessessssssssssssssssssessansannes 77
9.5 TEMPORARY SIGNS ....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieeietieeiisiisisiisssssssssssssssmmsiteiettettetisessesssssssssssssssssssnss 77
9.6 PERMANENT SIGNS FOR IDENTIFICATION OR PUBLIC PURPOSES .........cccuuumiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinninnmenmemmmms. 78
9.7 TEMPORARY SIGNS .....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiesiiiiiiiiieeieeieeiiessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesseteeeesssesssssssssssssssssssssnnss 79

SECTION 10 PARKING STANDARDS

10.2 PARKING SPACE RATIOS ...c..vvveummreeesssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssnssssssssnnns 81
SECTION 11 SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt sttt 83
11.1 SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS..........vvvesssmnssssssssssssnsssssssssssmssssssssssssnsssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssns 83
SECTION 12 SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUIREMENTS .....occ.cooooerooeoosoesoesoessoesoesossoesoessossoesoessoessessossoesoesos 87
12.1 SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPLICATION REQUIREMIENTS ......ccoovvvvessnesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssnns 87
SECTION 13 TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION ..ottt sttt tesse s e sse st s esassassesaesessessessssessessesessensenes 88
SECTION 14 ZONE CHANGE APPLICATIONS ....co.coooooosossosoesososossossossosossossossossossesoesossossossessesoesoesoso 89
SECTION 15 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT APPLICATIONS ..o 90
15.1 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT REVIEWS BY STAFF ......cccvvvveennesssessnsssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassnns 90
3|Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 16 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS ....ooscvosvveosseossesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssessssssssssssssessssessoses oo 92

SECTION 17 ADMINISTRATION AND DEFINTTIONS w....cooscosveoeseeesseessssssssssssssosssssssssssssssssssssssssessssessssss oo 96

17.1 CONFORMITY REQUIRED ......ooovvvenrsssnsssssessssesssssssssssssnsssssessssesssssssssssssssessssessssesssssssssnasssnassssesssssssssssssanesses 96

17.2 INTERPRETATION OF REGULATIONS.......covvesmrsussssssssesssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssesses 96

17.3 INTERPRETATION OF TERIMIS.......vuorvvunssssnesssssssssssssssssnsssssessssssssssssssssssanessssessssesssssssssnasssssssssesssssssssnsssannsses 96

17.4 DEFINITIONS «.oovovvernreesnresssesessessssesssssssssssssssessssessssesssssssssessssessssessssessssssssssassssessssesssssssssassssasssssssssssssssesses 97
4|Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 1 REGULATORY BASICS

11

1.2

13

These Regulations shall be known and may be cited as the "Zoning Regulations, Town of Simsbury,
Connecticut," and are referred to herein as "these Regulations."

These Regulations have been promulgated by the Simsbury Zoning Commission, hereinafter referred to as
the Commission, in accordance with and under the authority prescribed by Chapter 124 of the Connecticut
General Statutes, as amended. The Town’s initial Zoning Regulations were adopted by the Zoning
Commission on October 2, 1933.

These Regulations are adopted to further the goals and objectives of the Plan of Conservation and
Development, and to lessen congestion in the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic, flood and other
dangers; to promote health and the general welfare; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent the
overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population; to facilitate the adequate provision for
transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public requirements; to preserve the character of
the various parts of the Town; to conserve the value of buildings; to protect historic resources; to control
soil erosion and sedimentation; to encourage energy efficient patterns of development, the use of solar and
other renewable forms of energy, and energy conservation; and to encourage the most appropriate use of
land throughout the Town of Simsbury. In addition, these Regulations are adopted to give consideration to
the character of each area and its peculiar suitability for particular uses; to encourage the most appropriate
use of land throughout Simsbury; to protect existing, and potential, public surface waters and ground
drinking water supplies; to provide for the development of housing opportunities, including opportunities
for multifamily dwellings, consistent with soil types, terrain and infrastructure capacity, for all residents of
Simsbury; and to provide for housing choice and economic diversity in housing. Further, these regulations,
and subsequent amendments thereto, are enacted to carry out the purposes set forth in Chapter 124, and
particularly Section 8-2, of the Connecticut General Statutes, as those statutes may be amended.

5|Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 2 ZONING DISTRICTS AND MAP

2.1 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

To accomplish the purposes of CSG 8-3 the Town of Simsbury is divided into different zoning districts as follows:

DISTRICTS SYMBOL | DISTRICTS SYMBOL

RESIDENTIAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS
High Density Residential R-15 Restricted Industrial -1
Moderate Density Residential R-25 General Industrial I-2
Moderate Density Residential R-30
Low Density Residential R-40 OVERLAY DISTRICTS
Rural Residential R-80 Floodplain Overlay FPO
Rural Residential R-160 Planned Area Development PAD
Residential — Open Space R400S Workforce Housing Overlay Zone WHOz
Residential — Open Space R800S
...
BUSINESS DISTRICTS FORM BASED CODE DISTRICTS See Separate Documents
Restricted Business B-1 Simsbury Center Code SCC
General Business B-2 Hartford/Simsbury Form Based Code HS-FBC
Designed Business Development B-3
Professional Office (PO) PO
2.2 ZONING MAP

The boundaries of the various Zoning Districts are as shown on the "Simsbury, Connecticut, Zoning Map" which
accompanies, and which, with all explanatory matters thereon, is a part of these Regulations. A copy of the Zoning Map,
indicating the latest amendments, shall be kept up-to-date in the offices of the Town Clerk for the use and benefit of the
public.

2.3 DISTRICT BOUNDARIES
In the event of any uncertainty as to the boundaries of districts as shown on the Zoning Map, the following rules shall
apply:

1. Boundaries indicated as abutting right-of-way lines of streets, highways, former rail lines, or alleys shall be
construed as extending to the center line of such streets, highways, rail lines, or alleys;

2. Boundaries indicated as approximately following plotted lot lines shall be construed as following such lot lines;

3. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the center line of streams, rivers, or other bodies of water shall
be construed to follow such center lines;

4. Boundaries indicated as parallel to, or extension of, features indicated in subsections (1) through (4) above shall
be so construed.

6|Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



5. Distances not specifically indicated on the Zoning Map shall be determined by measurement in accordance with
the scale of the map;

6. In cases of further uncertainty, the Zoning Commission shall determine the location of the boundary.

2.4 APPLICATION OF DISTRICT REGULATIONS
The requirements set by this regulation within each district shall apply uniformly to each class or kind of structure or
land, and particularly, except as hereinafter provided.

1. No building, structure, or land shall hereafter be used or occupied, and no building or structure or part
thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, reconstructed, moved, or structurally altered unless in
conformity with all of the regulations herein specified for the district in which it is located.

2. LOTS IN ZONES ABUTTING THE FLOODPLAIN ZONE
Where a parcel of land is located in two zones, one of which is a Floodplain Zone, all zoning requirements for
the applicable non-floodplain zone must be met within that portion of the parcel which is not located in the
Floodplain Zone.

3. UNBUILDABLE LAND
Land in any zone which in the judgment of the Town Zoning or Town Planning Commission may be unfit for
human habitation for health reasons shall not be built on for that purpose until the building permit has the
written approval of the Health Officer.

4. LOTS IN TWO ZONING DISTRICTS
Where a lot of record at the time of passage of these regulations or any amendments thereto falls into two
or more zoning districts, any questions of uncertainty as to district boundaries shall be determined by the
Zoning Commission.

2.5 REGULATIONS DECLARED TO BE MINIMUM REGULATIONS

In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Regulation shall be held to be minimum regulations,
adopted for the promotion of the public health, safety, morals, or general welfare. Wherever the requirements of this
Regulation are at variance with the requirements of any other lawfully adopted rules, regulations, deed restrictions or
covenants, the most restrictive or that imposing the higher standards shall govern.

7| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS

3.1 PURPOSES

These residential zoning districts are established to provide for residential neighborhoods that are in harmony with the natural
features of the land and the needs of present and future Simsbury residents.

3.2 DESIGNATION OF RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS

District Name District Description
Symbol

High Density Residential R-15

Moderate Density R-25

Residential

Moderate Density R-30

Residential

Low Density Residential R-40

Rural Residential R-80

Rural Residential R-160

Residential — Open Space R400S

R800S

3.3 LIMITATION OF PRINCIPAL USES

Only one principal use shall be permitted on a residential lot, unless otherwise stated, except that non-agricultural uses may be
permitted on farms, subject to the requirements of Section 8.5, in addition to a principal residential use or other agricultural
uses on the same lot.

3.4 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL EXCEPTION USES

Residential - Principal Uses R-15 R-25 R-30 R-40 R-80 R-160 R-400S R-800S
.

Single family detached dwelling ZP P P ZP P ZP P zP

Open space development in accordance with SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE

Section 3.12

Rear Lot(s) in accordance with Section 3.5 SE SE SE SE SE SE

Residential Accessory Uses R-15 R-25 R-30 R-40 R-80 R-160 R-400S R-800S

Uses customary, subordinate, and incidental to oK oK oK OK OK OK OK oK

a permitted use

Temporary public gatherings in accordance P P P P P P P P

with Section 3.7

Establishment of one (1) accessory dwelling SE SE SE SE SE SE SE SE

unit in accordance with Section 3.4.2

Keeping of animals that are accessory to the OK OK OK OK OK OK OK OK

residential dwelling unit in accordance with
Section 3.6(E)

Outside storage of recreational vehicles and OK OK OK OK OK OK OK OK

other equipment in accordance with Section

3.7(E)

Home Business in accordance with Section OK oK oK OK OK OK OK OK

3.6(1)

Home Based Service Business in accordance P ZP ZP ZP ZP ZP ZP P
8| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



with Section 3.6(l)

Energy generating devices- Commission may
permit greater height and area requirements
than the regulations allow

Non-Residential Uses

Accredited private elementary and/or
secondary schools.

Boarding schools or boarding camps in
accordance with Section 3.6(B)

Aircraft landing fields

Non-profit membership clubs in accordance
with Section 3.6(D)

Municipal, state and federal government
facilities.

Cemetery

Public utility installations needed for the public
convenience and necessity.

Temporary buildings associated with
construction of a permitted use in accordance
with Sections 3.7(G)

Place(s) of worship.

Golf Clubs and riding clubs in accordance with
Section 3.6(C)

Development of affordable housing on Town-
owned land whether or not the housing itself
is owned by a municipal, state or federal
government

Assisted Living Facility, Congregate Senior
Housing Facility and/or Continuing Care
Retirement Community

Day care or child center i

Health Care Facilities in accordance with
Section 4.6(C)

Fallout Shelter

Agricultural Uses

Agriculture and Agricultural Events

Non-agricultural farm events

Nursery
Farm Stand i

ZP = Zoning Permit

SE = Special Exception

OK = No permit necessary allowed within
Zoning District

NO — Not allowed in Zoning District

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

SE

R-15

SE

SE

SE
SE

SE

SE
SE

ZpP

SE

SE

SE

SE

SE

zZp

R-15
OK
zZP

SE
ZP

SE

R-25

SE

SE

SE
SE

SE

SE
SE

P

SE

SE

SE

SE

SE

zp

R-25
OK
zp

SE
A

SE

R-30

SE

SE

SE
SE

SE

SE
SE

P

SE

SE

SE

SE

SE

zp

R-30
OK
zp

SE
P

SE

R-40

SE

SE

SE
SE

SE

SE
SE

P

SE

SE

SE

SE

SE

zp

R-40
OK
zp

SE
A

SE

R-80

SE

SE

SE
SE

SE

SE
SE

P

SE

SE

SE

SE

SE

zp

R-80
OK
zp

SE
A

SE

SE

SE

R-160 R-400S R-800S

SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
ZpP ZP zpP
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
SE SE SE
ZP ZP zpP
R-160 R-400S R-800S
OK OK OK
zpP ZP zpP
SE SE SE
ZP ZP zpP
9|Page



3.4.1 RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND USES
1. SIZE AND LOCATION OF ACCESSORY STRUCTURES IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS

All accessory structures require a Zoning Permit.

a. Inall residential districts, accessory structures shall not be located in front yards except:

i. Properties which are greater than one acre in size and the primary structure is greater than 150
feet from the front property line, the structure can be located in the front yard provided that it
is no closer to the property line than the front yard setback for the zoning district.

ii. Lots that are considered thru lots, an accessory structure can be located behind the primary
structure provided that it conforms to all zoning district setbacks.

iii. Corner lots, accessory structures may be located in the front yard provided that the location is
no closer to the front property line than the primary structure and conforms to the front yard
setback for the zoning district.

An Accessory Structure shall not exceed a height of 15 feet.

c. An Accessory Structure located in a rear yard shall not exceed 250 square feet of building area; shall be
located a minimum of 10 feet from the lot line.

d. An Accessory Structure that exceeds 250 square feet in building area must conform to the building
setbacks for the zoning district.

e. The maximum cumulative building area for all accessory structures on a lot shall not exceed a total of
50% of the building area of the primary building.

2. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS

Purpose: The purpose of this section is to help implement the goals, policies and objectives of the Housing
section of the most recently adopted Plan of Conservation and Development, providing a variety of housing
opportunities for all segments of the population while at the same time preserving the appearance and
general character of the Town'’s neighborhoods by permitting, by site plan approval or special exception, the
creation of a single accessory dwelling unit which is incidental and subordinate to the existing single family

dwelling.

Eligibility for Conversion: The single-family dwelling being converted to include an accessory dwelling unit
must be in conformance with all applicable requirements of these regulations.

A. Attached Accessory Dwelling Units

1. One (1) accessory dwelling unit within or attached to the main dwelling unit may be permitted to site
plan approval provided that it conforms to the following conditions:

a)

b)
c)
d)
e)

f)

g)

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

The definitive owner of record or beneficiary of like estate must reside in either the
accessory dwelling unit or primary dwelling. An affidavit acknowledging the residency is
required from property owner.

The area devoted to the accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 600 square feet or 25%
of the gross floor area of the primary dwelling whichever is less.

The accessory dwelling unit shall not have separate utilities from the primary dwelling.
Only one accessory dwelling unit is permitted for each lot.

The accessory dwelling unit shall be accessible from the primary dwelling by an operable
door.

The primary dwelling unit and the accessory dwelling unit shall comply with building,
health, and fire prevention codes.

Any secondary entrances incorporated into the principal residence shall reflect the
architectural style of the single family unit.

10| Page



h)  No additional driveway (curb cut) shall be created for the primary purpose of serving the
accessory dwelling unit.

i)  There must be at least one off-street parking space with a proper solid surface,
dedicated to the accessory dwelling unit.

B. Detached Accessory Dwelling Units

1. One (1) accessory dwelling unit within a detached accessory structure may be permitted by special
exception if the following conditions are met:

a) The owner of record must reside in either the accessory dwelling unit or primary
dwelling. An affidavit acknowledging the residency is required from property owner.

b) The area devoted to the accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 600 square feet or 25%
of the gross floor area of the primary dwelling whichever is less.

c) The accessory dwelling unit shall not have separate utilities from the primary dwelling.

d) Only one accessory dwelling unit is permitted for each lot.

e) The primary dwelling unit and the accessory dwelling unit shall comply with building,
health, and fire prevention codes.

f) No additional driveway (curb cut) shall be created for the primary purpose of serving the
accessory dwelling unit.

g) There must be at least one off-street parking space with a proper solid surface,
dedicated to the accessory dwelling unit.

3. HOME BUSINESSES

1. The operation of a home office as defined in these regulations is considered an as-of-right use in all single
family residential zoning districts provided the following conditions:

a.

b.

Only residents of the dwelling may have their workplace at the residence
The business may not negatively affect the character of the neighborhood

No exterior evidence of the business can be seen from public right of way or abutting properties

. No outdoor storage of any materials, merchandise, equipment, or machinery relative to the use,

occurs at the property associated with the operation of the business

. Activities that create noise greater than 75 decibels, or that result in noxious odors, are prohibited

No outside lighting, beyond normal residential safety lights, is permitted

. No visitors may park on the street, and parking for visitors shall be limited to two spaces

. Manufacturing, warehousing and inventory storage are prohibited

Arts and craft activities are permitted to produce goods for sale, on or off the property

Retail showrooms and display areas are prohibited, except arts and crafts permitted under
paragraph i

2. Home Based Service Business by Permit

Home based service businesses provide personal and other services to clients. Home based service
businesses may be permitted as long as these activities remain customary and incidental accessory uses.
The Zoning Commission may authorize the Zoning Enforcement Officer to issue a five-year permit to an

11| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



owner for such Home Business use. At permit expiration, the owner may apply for a new five-year
permit. If the owner leaves the property, the permit will end.

The Commission may set permit conditions such as limiting of days and/or hours of operation or limiting
the number of customers per week. Each application is considered on an individual basis and each
property will be considered unique and due consideration given to prevent negative impact on the
character of the neighborhood.

In considering whether to authorize such a permit, the Zoning Commission shall consider the following
factors:

a. Only residents of the dwelling may have their workplace at the residence.

b. The nature of the service rendered. All services must be legal, and they must be of low enough
intensity that they are customary and incidental accessory uses to the property as a residence.

c. The business may not negatively affect the character of the neighborhood.
d. No exterior evidence of the business can be seen from public right of way or abutting properties.

e. Any material, merchandise, equipment or machinery relative to the use, and stored outdoors,
must not be visible from adjacent properties or from the public right-of-way.

f. Activities that create noise greater than 75 decibels, measured at the property line, or that result
in noxious odors, are prohibited.

g. No outside lighting, beyond normal residential safety lights, is permitted.

h. No visitors may park on the street, sufficient off-street parking to support home business and
residence.

i. Retail showrooms and display areas are prohibited.
j. There shall be no effect on neighborhood traffic.

3.5 DEVELOPMENT OF REAR LOTS

The Zoning Commission may grant a Special Exception to allow the rear portion of a lot of record in the R-40, R-80 and R-
160 Zones to be divided to create one new residential lot with no street frontage where all of the following conditions
apply.

NOTE: If the division by special Permit meets the definition of a subdivision or re-subdivision, under Connecticut law, it
must be processed by the Planning Commission.

1. The lot of record in its current dimensions has existed prior to December 1, 1969.

2. The lot of record has met all of the frontage and yard requirements in the applicable zone in
existence at the time of creation of the new lot.

3. Access to the rear lot shall be provided across the portion of the original lot with street frontage
and shall be within an easement at least twenty (20) feet wide and be constructed to
accommodate fire apparatus and other emergency equipment. The right-of-way shall be
sufficiently buffered to screen the lot from abutting properties.

4. The lot line from which the right of access leads shall be considered the front lot line of the rear
lot and both the rear lot and front lot shall conform to all requirements of the zone in which
they are located.

12| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



5. No additional subdivision or re-subdivision of the original lot or created lot shall be permitted
until a fifty (50) foot right-of-way has been provided to all lots thereafter created and further
until all regulations for subdivision have been complied with.

6. A plan shall be submitted at a scale of not less than 1"= 40" and shall show as applicable the
following data:

1. Boundaries of the property certified to a State of Connecticut A-2 Map survey standard.
2. The location of all existing and proposed water supply wells, septic systems, septic system
reserve areas, and sewer and water lines.

7. Each undeveloped lot shall be of a size and configuration that will contain, exclusive of the
required side, front, and rear yards, a rectangle of the size required in the following chart:

Zone Minimum Dimension Minimum Area
(feet) (square feet)
R-160 96 14,400
R-80 96 14,400
R-40 80 10,000
8. The rectangle contained within each undeveloped building lot shall not contain land in the

following classifications:

1. Inland wetlands as defined by the Town of Simsbury Inland Wetlands and
Watercourses Regulations.

2. Floodplain areas as defined by the Town of Simsbury regulations or ordinance of the
Town of Simsbury.

3. Land with an average slope, as measured over any distance of fifty (50) feet within
the rectangle, greater than 20 percent.

3.6 OTHER USES
A. Private schools, but not including schools for special training such as instrumental music, dancing, barbering,
or industrial pursuits.

B. Boarding schools or boarding camps operated for profit, subject to the following conditions:
1. The area of the property shall be equal to one-half (1/2) acre for every person including employees
residing therein.
2. No parking area shall be nearer than twenty-five (25) feet from any side or rear property line.

C. Golf clubs and riding clubs operated as membership clubs provided: (adopted May 6, 1996)
1. No structure used for recreation or other purposes shall be within two hundred and fifty (250) feet

of any adjoining property line or within fifty (50) feet of any street line.

2. No land used for fairways or bridle paths shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to any adjoining
property line.

3. Vehicular access shall not be within one hundred (100) feet of any adjoining property line.

4. The minimum lot size shall be twenty (20) acres.

D. Other non-profit recreation buildings or areas operated by membership clubs provided: (adopted May 6,
1996)
13| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



1. No structure used for recreation or other related purpose shall be within two hundred and fifty
(250) feet of any adjoining property line or within fifty (50) feet of any street line.

2. No land actively used for recreation or other related purposes shall be within one hundred (100)
feet of any adjoining property line.

3. Vehicular access shall not be within one hundred (100) feet of any adjoining property line.

4. The minimum lot size shall be five (5) acres.

E. Keeping of domestic animals clearly accessory to residential use. In no case may the following schedule be
exceeded unless the use qualifies as a farm:

1. Horses, ponies, sheep, and similar animals provided that the parcel contain at least three (3)
acres and that no more than two (2) such animals are kept, and further that no storage of
manure or accessory buildings be located closer than one hundred (100) feet from any property
line, stream, or watercourse.

2. Dogs, cats, and similar domestic pets provided that no more than six (6) animals are kept and no
commercial kennel is operated.

3. Ducks, geese, chickens, etc., provided that no more than twelve (12) such animals are kept.

4. No roosters or peacocks are allowed. (adopted December 19, 2011)

F. Farms, provided that the storage of fertilizer and manure, and all buildings except dwellings shall be
located at least one hundred (100) feet from any lot line.

G. Nursery as defined. Where such nursery exceeds five (5) contiguous acres of growing stock, then the
operation of a landscaping service business shall be considered an accessory use provided that all
equipment be stored within the buildings and all buildings except dwellings be located at least fifty (50) feet
from any property line, stream, or watercourse, and further all fertilizers be stored at least fifty (50) feet
from any property line, stream, or watercourse.

H. Energy generating devices such as wind turbine generators as accessory uses in all zones. The Commission
may permit maximum height and area requirements of the accessory use that are greater than those
specified by other applicable requirements of the Zoning Regulations.

3.7 TEMPORARY USES
A. Permits may be issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer for the following purposes, with conditions which
will safeguard the character of the neighborhood. Prior to issuance of such permit, the Zoning
Enforcement Officer shall require written approval from the Building Inspector, Chief of Police, Fire
Marshal, and Director of Health.

B. A circus, carnival, auction, festival, or similar public gathering held for a period of not more than ten (10)
days and subject to the standards established by the above named agents. For the purpose of this Section,
private residential tag sales held by individuals or groups of individuals for periods of less than three (3)
consecutive days shall be exempt from the Regulation.

C.  Temporary camping, including both tent and recreational vehicles, may be permitted for no more than 3
consecutive nights on Town of Simsbury Owned property. Provided that the organization is granted
permission by the Board of Selectmen and the applicant applies for a public gathering permit from the
Town of Simsbury. (adopted July 17, 2017)

14| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



A non-conforming temporary building shown to be necessary pending construction of a
conforming building or use, for not more than one year, but renewal permits for successive
periods of six (6) months each may be granted.

In any residential zone, temporary or permanent storage of any:

° Boats and/or trailers
. Campers, whether self-propelled or not
. Equipment or vehicles of a non-residential nature or used in a commercial activity whether such

activity occurs legally or not.

Temporary storage is allowed as-of-right for up to 6 months. Permanent storage, of any of the above
items, may be permitted by the ZEO with a Zoning Compliance Review Application submitted and
approved. Storage may not be located in any front, side or rear yard setbacks. Any items stored for longer
than six (6) months in any calendar year shall be buffered or screened or located in such a way as to
minimize, not block, their visual impact from the public way.

Trailers used as offices and/or living quarters for a janitor or watchman incidental to
construction on or development of the premises on which the trailers are located.

A non-conforming temporary building shown to be necessary pending construction of a
conforming building or use, for not more than one year, but renewal permits for successive
periods of six (6) months each may be granted.

3.8 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
The table below is a quick look at the dimensional requirements for each Zoning District.

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS

District
Symbol

R-160

R-80

R-40
R-30
R-25
R-15

R400S

R80-05

e

Minimum Required Maximum
Lot Size Lot Front Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Building Height Impervious
Frontage Setback Setback Setback Coverage
4 Acres 200 ft. 50 feet 40 feet 50 feet 35 feet n/a
(214,240 sq. ft.)
2 Acres 200 ft. 50 feet 40 feet 50 feet 35 feet n/a
(87,120 sq. Ft.)
40,000 sq. ft. 200 ft. 50 feet 40 feet 50 feet 35 feet n/a
30,000 sq. ft. 125 ft. 35 feet 25 feet 50 feet 35 feet n/a
25,000 sq. ft. 125 ft. 35 feet 15 feet 50 feet 35 feet n/a
15,000 sq. ft. 100 ft. 35 feet 12 feet 25 feet 35 feet n/a
30,000 sq. ft. 150 ft. 50 feet 25 feet 50 feet 35 feet n/a
30,000 sq. ft. 150 ft. 50 feet 40 feet 50 feet 35 feet n/a
10 Acres 200 ft. 35 feet 30 feet 35 feet 35 feet 25%

15| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



3.9 EXCEPTION TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
A. Corner lots in residential zones shall comply with minimum frontage requirements on all abutting streets. Other

yards of such corner lots shall which abut side lot lines of adjacent lots shall be considered side yards.

B. The regulations governing height are maximum heights permissible, and the area and yard requirements are
minimum permissible.

C. Front yards on corner lots- front yard requirements are enforced on both street fronts.

D. Corner visibility: On any corner lot, no fence, wall, hedge, shrub or other structure or growth shall be
constructed or maintained in a manner which will decrease the sight line within 25 feet from the edge of the

pavement.

E. Construction in Required Yards (adopted May 20, 1996): Notwithstanding other provisions of this regulation,
fences, walls, hedges, and driveways may be permitted in any required yard or along the edge of any yard
subject to the provisions in Section B.2 (Corner Visibility). For any building requiring a site plan, the Zoning
Commission may approve any structures required for handicapped access shown on the site plan to be
constructed in any required yards. For any building not requiring a site plan, the Zoning Enforcement Officer
may permit any structures required for handicapped access to be constructed in any required yard, provided
that no practical location can be found outside of the required yard.

F. Height Exceptions. The provisions of these regulations limiting the maximum height of buildings shall not apply
to restrict the height of a church spire, tower or belfry, or a flagpole, chimney, water tank, elevator bulkhead, or
similar uses.

G. Through Lots (or Double Frontage Lots)- On a through lot, a front yard is required on both frontages.
Measurement of Required Yards on Irregular Lots: Where the front lot line is an arc or the side lines converge

toward the front lot line, the required frontage may be measured along the rear line of the required front yard.

16 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Swimming pools, tennis courts, outdoor cooking areas, which are structures, may be permitted in required rear
yard setback, but may not be closer than twenty-five (25) feet to a rear property line, except in R-15 Zone where

they may not be closer than ten (10) feet. All other setbacks must be maintained.

3.10 DESIGNED CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS
Purpose:

The Zoning Regulation is designed for the typical development of a single principal detached structure on a single lot. It
shall be the intent of these regulations to permit the development of groups of principal buildings on a single lot or
other variance from the specific lot requirement of these regulations only under the strictest control to assure that the
intent of these regulations is carried out.

The following zones are established to allow such variation and to permit a total project to be developed as a single unit.
Site plan approval by the Zoning Commission and review by the Planning Commission is required before a building
permit is issued:

1. Village Cluster Zones- VC
2. Single Family Cluster Zone- SFC

A. REQUIRED PROCEDURE

1. All applications shall include a site plan prepared in accordance with Section 11.1.

A complete set of plans and other information shall be submitted to the Town Planning Commission for review,
and any report submitted by the Planning Commission shall be entered into the minutes of the Zoning
Commission, and in the case of a public hearing read into the record at that hearing.

The Zoning Commission may require such changes in the site plan as are necessary to meet the specific
requirements of the development type and may make such additional requirements as are necessary to
promote and to protect the sound and orderly growth of the community.

Where a change of zone is required, a petition for zone change must be submitted and heard in accordance with
these regulations and the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut. The petitioner may submit all necessary
maps at the time of the petition for zone change and the Zoning Commission may review the petition for the
zone change and the site plan simultaneously.

Where no change of zone is required, or following the public hearing if a petition for zone change has been
submitted, the Commission may grant approval, disapproves, or approve with modifications the proposed
development. When acting to approve any site plan, the Commission shall file with the Building Inspector at
least one (1) copy of the approved site plan, showing the Commission's modifications, if any, so that no
development shall be permitted except in conformity with the approved plan. An approved plan shall be void if
construction is not started within one (1) year from date of approval by the Zoning Commission, provided that
the Commission may grant an extension for an additional one (1) year.

B. PREREQUISITE TO COMMISSION APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL

In considering the proposed project or use, the Commission shall be guided by the following:

17| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



The need for the proposed use in the proposed location.
The existing and future character of the neighborhood in which the use is to be located.
The location of main and accessory buildings in relation to one another.

The height and bulk of buildings in relation to other structures in the vicinity.

LA A o

Traffic circulation within the site, location, amount and access to parking, traffic load or possible circulation
problems on existing streets.

6. Availability of water to the site and adequate disposal of sewage and storm water.

7. Location and type of display signs and lighting, loading zones, and landscaping.

8. Safeguards to protect adjacent property and the neighborhood in general from detriment.

3.11 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VILLAGE CLUSTER ZONE- VC

The purpose of the Village Cluster Zone is to provide flexibility of design to allow a range of housing types while
maintaining significant environmental features. No approval shall be granted which would be detrimental to the public
safety, create or increase traffic hazards, tend to have a depreciating effect on the neighborhood properties, or is not in
keeping with the stated intent of these regulations.

Village Cluster Zones may be designated on the Zoning Map or established by petition after public hearing. Village
Cluster Zones are declared to be of such specialized character as to require special requirements and detailed review.

Each application shall be on a form prescribed by the Zoning Commission and shall include a final site plan prepared in
accordance with Section 11 of the Zoning Regulations. In passing upon any application for such development, the Zoning
Commission shall also consider the factors set forth in Section 12 of the Zoning Regulations. The Zoning Commission may
grant a Zone Change permitting a village cluster development under this section provided that the following criteria shall
be met by the development:

No site shall be approved unless it is on or within three hundred (300) feet of an arterial or collector street as defined by
the Plan of Development. The site shall be connected to public sewer and public water supply systems. No alternate
public sewer system shall be permitted.

No site shall be developed as a Village Cluster Zone, which contains less than ten (10) acres. The dwelling unit density
shall be no greater than the density permitted by these Regulations in the prior residential zone, with the number of
dwelling units having been determined by the Zoning Commission in accordance with the following formula:

1) Determine the total land area contained in the site (minimum of 10 acres).

2) Deduct from the total land area 20 percent for open space as required and as specified in the
Subdivision Regulations. The land that is to comprise the 20 percent open space shall meet the
requirements of Section Il of the Subdivision Regulations. It shall be dedicated to the Town as public
open space, parks, or playgrounds as provided in the Subdivision Regulations or it shall be dedicated
under permanent conservation easement to the Town or other appropriate agency.

3) Deduct from the total land area 12 percent for roads and utility easements in the R-15 Zone, 11 percent
in the R-25 Zone, 10 percent in the R-40 Zone, and 8 percent in the R-80 Zone and R-160 Zone.

4) Deduct floodplain land not included in (2) above as defined by the Simsbury Zoning Regulations; or, if
land is not listed as floodplain there but is identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency on
the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) as Zone A and Zone B, then as defined by the latter.

18| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



5) Deduct 50 percent of the land not included in (2) and (4) above designated as Inland Wetlands and
Watercourses as shown on a map titled "Inland Wetlands and Watercourses of the Town of Simsbury,
Connecticut." (adopted, December 20, 1983)

6) Deduct 50 percent of the land with slopes greater than 20 percent ("steep slopes") and not included in
(2) above.
7) The total of (5) and (6) above shall not be greater than 50 percent of the land that is, in the aggregate,

non-wetlands, non-floodplain, non-steep slopes, or road right-of-way.

8) Divide the total land area adjusted in accordance with the above formula by the minimum lot size of the
prior residential zone(s) in which the site was located. The formula shall be applied to each zoned parcel
within the total site. Where the prior zone is not a Single Family Residence Zone, the R-40 Single-Family
Residence Zone minimum lot size shall be utilized in the above formula.

9) The number of dwelling units may be increased by the Commission provided, however, that the
theoretical population density, computed using Water Pollution Control Authority engineering
standards, does not exceed the population of the prior residential zone based solely on the land area of
the site.

A. Permitted Uses in Village Cluster Development District

Permitted uses shall be residential and customary accessory residential uses and the only building types shall be single
family, duplex, and multi-family. Multi-family structures shall have no more than four (4) dwelling units in a building.

The ratio of building types shown on the site plan shall fall within the following ranges:

15-25 percent - Single-family units
25-50 percent - Duplex units
Balance percent - Multi-family units

An Exclusive Use Area of not more than 10,000 square feet shall be provided for each dwelling unit. An Exclusive Use
Area (EUA) shall be defined as a parcel of land used exclusively by the owner of the residential unit placed upon it but
the ownership of the parcel constitutes less than fee simple title to the land area. There shall be no less than fifty (50)
feet between adjacent structures containing dwelling unit(s) on Exclusive Use Areas. The same distance shall be
maintained between accessory structures on adjacent Exclusive

Use Areas. Exclusive Use Areas of larger dimension may be provided around multi-family units.

There shall be a fifty (50) foot minimum space between multi-family buildings. The balance of the site not included for
roads and utility easements and not used for Exclusive Use Areas shall be held by a homeowner's association or be
placed under a conservation restriction in favor of the Town.

The above factors may be varied by Special Exception following a public hearing. (Amended June 2, 1997)

B. Village Cluster Area and Site Requirements

Area and Site Requirements (amended June 2, 1997)
e  Minimum Site Size Ten (10) acres

e Required yards - (entire site) Front Thirty-Five (35) feet
Side Thirty-Five  (35) feet
19| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Rear Thirty-Five (35) feet
e  Minimum Frontage Two hundred (200) feet

e Minimum Width Site width Measured parallel to street
Two hundred (200) feet for a minimum depth of four
hundred (400) feet

e Site coverage Not to exceed 25 percent.

e Building Height Two (2) stories or thirty-five (35) feet.
No accessory structure may exceed fifteen (15)
feet in height.

e Buffer There shall be provided a minimum 100-foot
landscaped area along the frontage of all public
streets, and 50 feet along the remaining
perimeter.

Area and site requirements may be varied by Special Exception following a public hearing. Building height may not be
varied by Special Exception.

1. Allinterior circulation streets shall be constructed in accordance with the Highway Construction and Design
Standards for the Town of Simsbury.

2. All utilities shall be placed underground.

3. A minimum of 20 percent of the total site dedicated to the Town in fee simple title or encumbered by
conservation restriction as provided in Section 5.a.2 shall be allocated as recreation facilities or open spaces for
active and passive recreation.

4. Parking - Two (2) spaces shall be provided for each dwelling unit. Parking spaces shall not be arranged in
tandem. Visitor parking may be provided at a rate of one (1) space per four (4) dwelling units. Areas assigned as
visitor parking shall not be included in coverage calculations.

5. The Zoning Commission may not change the classification to Village Cluster Zone if the zoning classification of
that parcel (or of those parcels) of land on August 24, 1988, was not the same as the classification from which
the change to Village Cluster Zone is being sought.

3.12 SINGLE FAMILY OPEN SPACE CLUSTER ZONE (AMENDED JULY 21, 1997)

The purpose of this section is to permit, by Zone Change, alternate development patterns in the single-family R-160, R-
80, R-40, R-25 and R-15 residence zones. The goal of this zone is to encourage development that is sensitive to the
environment and ecological features of the site and to minimize the undue use of land to meet existing zoning lot
regulations. The zone encourages the preservation of land in its natural state for the benefit of the residents of the Town
of Simsbury and to allow the development of residential structures in a manner consistent with a more historically
traditional New England character. Development at the density provided below may be permitted if it preserves more
open space than would otherwise occur and preserves and contributes to the Town’s natural and scenic resources, its
streams, ponds, marsh lands, aquifers, parks, playgrounds, historic sites, wildlife habitats, farmland, forests, ridges, or
open space. Development under this section shall emphasize the clustering or grouping of single-family residences on
one or more portions of the site as contrasted to a street and lot layout that typifies a single-family subdivision
development pursuant to subdivision regulations administered by the Planning Commission. Natural site features shall
be preserved by minimizing disturbance to existing vegetation and by minimizing changes to existing topographic

20| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



conditions on the site. All structures shall relate harmoniously to the terrain and to the use and scale of existing
buildings in the vicinity that have a functional or visual relationship to the proposed buildings.

A. Special Requirements for Single Family Open Space Cluster Zone SF-CZ

Each application shall be on a form prescribed by the Zoning Commission and shall include a site plan prepared in
accordance with Section 11000 of the Zoning Regulations. In passing upon any application for such development, the
Zoning Commission shall also consider the factors set forth in Section 11 of the Zoning Regulations.

The Zoning Commission may grant a Zone Change permitting a single-family open space cluster development under this
Section provided that it has made specific findings of fact that all of the criteria noted below are met by the
development. Exclusive Use Areas (EUAs) may be converted to fee simple lots after approval of an application filed
pursuant to this Section 11 in accordance with these regulations and by approval of a subdivision plan, by the Planning
Commission, provided however, that a simultaneous application for subdivision approval has been filed with the
Planning Commission by the applicant. If a request for subdivision is not filed simultaneously with the zoning application
then future subdivision of the property is prohibited.

1. The development shall consist of single-family houses used for residential purposes and shown on the approved
site plan.

2. The total area of the development shall be at least 10 acres under single ownership.

3. Coverage of any Exclusive Use Area by the structures proposed to be constructed thereon, shall not exceed
twenty-five (25%) percent of the area of the EUA, unless specifically permitted by the Zoning Commission, by
means of Special Exception, after consideration of the standard set forth in Section 11.2; but in no event may
the lot coverage exceed thirty seven and one half (37.5%) percent.

4. The dwelling unit density shall be no greater than the density permitted by these Regulations in the underlying
residential zone. The specific number of dwelling units permitted will be determined by the Zoning Commission,
after evaluating the results of two methods of computing density. The first method is the density resulting from
a schematic subdivision layout that complies with the lot configuration for the zone and any other provisions as
required by the Subdivision Regulations and deleting areas for the development of structures covered by
floodplain and wetlands. Twenty percent of the total site should be shown as open space. The second is the
density resulting from a calculation prepared in accordance with the formula below.

Determine the total land area encompassed by the development;

e Deduct from the total land area not less than 20 percent for open space as required and as specified in
the Subdivision Regulations. The land that is to comprise the 20 percent open space shall meet the
requirements of Section Ill of the Subdivision Regulations.

e Deduct from the total land area 12 percent for roads and utility easements in the R-15 Zone, 11 percent
in the R-25 Zone, 10 percent in the R-40 Zone, and 8 percent in the R-80 Zone and R-160 Zone.

e Deduct floodplain land as defined by the Simsbury Zoning Regulations not included in (2) above; or,
deduct land identified as floodplain by the Federal Emergency Management Agency on the Flood
Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) as Zone A and Zone B, as regulated by the latter in accordance with the
Town of Simsbury Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance.

e Deduct 50 percent of the land not included in (2) and (4) above designated as inland wetlands and
watercourses as shown on a map entitled “Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Map of the Town of
Simsbury, Connecticut. (Adopted 12/3/83, as amended)”

21 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



e Deduct 50 percent of the land with slopes greater than 20 percent (“Steep slopes”) and not included in
(2) above.

e The total of items (5) and (6) above shall not be greater than 50 percent of the land that is, in the
aggregate, non-wetlands, non-floodplain, non-steep slopes, and non-road right-of-way.

e Divide the total land area adjusted in accordance with the above formula by the minimum lot size of the
underlying residential zone in which the site is located.

e The frontage of the total area of development shall be at least 200 feet on a public street. The Zoning
Commission may vary this requirement by Special Exception.

e An Exclusive Use Area (EUA) which shall be not more than 15,000 square feet but not including the area
of the driveway leading to the EUA shall be delineated for each dwelling unit. An EUA shall be defined as
a parcel of land used exclusively by the owner of the residential unit placed upon it but the ownership of
the parcel constitutes less than a fee simple title to the land area.

e No building shall exceed a height of thirty-five (35) feet as measured by the State Building Code method.

e There shall be no less than 50 feet between adjacent dwelling units and accessory structures on
adjacent EUA’s.

e There shall be a landscaped area of 100 feet in depth around the total perimeter of the site. No planting
shall be required in said perimeter, when, in the judgment of the Zoning Commission, the area is
adequately vegetated. The Zoning Commission may vary this requirement by Special Exception.

e The balance of the site not included for roads and utility easements and not used for EUAs shall be held
by a homeowners’ association or be placed under Conservation restriction.

e Parking shall be provided in accordance with these regulations.

e The development shall be connected to municipal sewer and public water systems.

e Main circulation roads shall be constructed to Highway Construction and Design Standards for the Town
of Simsbury. Widths may be varied by the Zoning Commission if recommended by the Planning
Commission.

e Utilities shall be constructed underground.

e The remaining land not included as part of the 20% dedication as open space shall be dedicated to the
Town as public open space, parks or playgrounds as provided in the Subdivision Regulations or at the

discretion of the Zoning Commission it shall be dedicated under permanent conservation easement to
the Town or other appropriate agency.

22 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 4 BUSINESS DISTRICTS

4.1 PURPOSE

/{Comment [SG1]: ?

4.2 DESIGNATION OF BUSINESS DISTRICTS

District Name District Description
Symbol

Restricted Business Zone B-1

General Business Zone B-2

Designed Business Development B-3

Zone

Professional Office PO

4.3 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS

The table below is a quick look at the dimensional requirements for Business Zoning Districts.

full details associated with each Zoning District.

BUSINESS DISTRICTS

District
Symbol Minimum Required
Lot Front Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Building Height
Lot Size Frontage  Setback Setback Setback
B-1 No Minimum N/A 25 ft. 20 ft. 25 ft. 40 ft.
B-2 No Minimum N/A 25 ft. 20 ft. 25 ft. 40 ft.
B-3 No Minimum 200 ft. 50 ft. 40 ft. 50 ft. 40 ft.
PO No Minimum 100 ft. 35 ft. 20 ft. 25 ft. 40 ft.

Section XXX contains the

Maximum
Impervious
Coverage *
40%
40 %
40 %

40%

*Impervious sutface shall include surface area created by buildings, parking areas of all surface types, and circulation drives.

4.4 EXCEPTIONS TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Where a parcel in single ownership is developed as a single unit under two or more designed development

districts (B-3 and PO), the total site required may be reduced to the site area required for the most restrictive

applicable district.

B. The Zoning Commission may, after notice and public hearing, grant a special exception to allow up to 50 percent

increase to the maximum coverage allowed in any zone. The Commission shall require a site plan prepared in

accordance with Section 11 and other information it deems necessary. In evaluating the request for special

exception, the Commission shall consider the standards set forth in Sections 11 and 12.

C. Measurement of Required Yards in B-3, Professional Office, and I-2.

e Where a contiguous area is in multiple ownership, It may be developed under a single site plan with

"Height, Area, and Yard Requirements" governing the boundaries of the entire parcel so developed

e  Where individual parcels are developed individually, "Height, Area, and Yard Requirements" shall apply

to each parcel.

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

23 | Page



e Minimum lot sizes shown in the "Height, Area, and Yard Regulations" are intended to govern non-
contiguous parcels. Where two or more lots are located in a single design zone, lot area requirements
shall relate to the area of the entire zone rather than any specific lot.

Landscaped Buffer in Non-Residential Zones Adjacent to Residential Zones

e Where a non-residential zone abuts a residential zone, the Commission may require a dense landscaped

buffer sufficient to screen any detrimental effect upon the abutting, existing, or future residences.
The regulations governing height are maximum heights permissible, and the area and yard requirements are
minimum permissible.
Front yards on corner lots- front yard requirements are enforced on both street fronts.
Corner visibility: On any corner lot, no fence, wall, hedge, shrub or other structure or growth shall be
constructed or maintained in a manner which will decrease the sight line within 10 feet from the edge of
pavement.
Construction in Required Yards (adopted May 20, 1996)-Notwithstanding other provisions of this regulation,
fences, walls, hedges, and driveways may be permitted in any required yard or along the edge of any yard
subject to the provisions in Section 3140 (Corner Visibility). For any building requiring a site plan, the Zoning
Commission may approve any structures required for handicapped access shown on the site plan to be
constructed in any required yards. For any building not requiring a site plan, the Zoning Enforcement Officer
may permit any structures required for handicapped access to be constructed in any required yard, provided
that no practical location can be found outside of the required yard.
The provisions of these regulations limiting the maximum height of buildings shall not apply to restrict the
height of a church spire, tower or belfry, or a flagpole, chimney, water tank, elevator bulkhead, or similar uses.
Through Lots (or Double Frontage Lots)- On a through lot, a front yard is required on both frontages.
Measurement of Required Yards on Irregular Lots- Where the front lot line is an arc or the side lines converge

toward the front lot line, the required frontage may be measured along the rear line of the required front yard.

4.5 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL PERMIT USES

SP- Site Plan, SE- Special Exception, NO- Not allowed
Business Permitted Uses B-1 B-2 B-3 PO
Professional Office uses SP SP SP SP
Bank SP SP SP SP
Studio SP SP SP NO
Retail stores, and personal service shops not involving manufacture of SP SP SP NO

products except those sold at retail on the premises and provided further
that no more than five (5) operators shall be employed in the
manufacturing process, but not including gasoline service stations,

automobile sales, repairs, storage, and car washes.
Restaurants with or without liquor, beer or wine licenses SE SE SE NO
Taverns SE SE SE NO

24 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Specialty, limited menu, sandwich, or other eating place with or without

curb service

Convenience stores selling food items

Commercial parking lot available to the public for or as an accommodation

to clients or customers.

Markets, supermarkets and specialty food stores

Outside storage in connection with the operation of a business (Adopted

April 15, 1996)

Business Permitted Uses

Residential uses if clearly accessory to the principal business use or if

designed as part of a business comple, if the following apply:

e Residential uses must be located above the principal use.

e The total square footage of all residential uses does not exceed 40
percent of the total floor area of all uses.

e The residential uses are constructed at the same time or after the
development of the principal area, but never before.

e Use is part of an approved site plan.

e New residential uses in existing or rehabilitated
commercial uses shall be considered a Special Exception
and require a public hearing. Such uses shall conform to
standards above.

Multi-use Sports, recreational and restaurant complex. (Adopted October
15, 2003)
Licensed medical marijuana dispensary (Adopted October 22, 2013)

e The dispensing of medical marijuana may only take place on the
premises which have been properly permitted to do so and may
only be done under the requirements and restrictions of those
contained in CGS 21a-408-1 through 21a-408-70.

e A maximum of two (2) medical marijuana dispensary facilities are
permitted within the Town of Simsbury at any time. Any proposal
to relocate such a dispensary shall:

1. Only be granted upon agreement by the property owner to
abandon such use at the original location as verified by
notarized affidavit submitted to the Commission, and

2. Be the subject of a new special exception application to the
Zoning Commission and shall be subject to all applicable
standards.

Printing, where the product is sold at retail on the premises
Wholesale business, sales office, or sample rooms

Private club

Motor or motel hotel

Funeral homes

Bakery, laundry, clothes cleaning and dyeing establishments
Radio and television studios

Repair services or businesses which are not heavy industrial in nature
(amended December 19, 2011)

Any other business of the same general character as above
Bowling alleys and similar commercial recreational places
Automobile sales, repair, and storage

Automobile service stations

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

SE

SE
SP

SE
SE

B-1
SP

SE

SE

NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO

NO
NO
NO
NO

SE

SE
SP

SE
SE

B-2
SP

SE

SE

SP
SP
SP
SP
SP
SP
SP
SP

SP
SE
SE
SE

SE

SE
SP

SE
SE

B-3
SP

SE

SE

SP
SP
SP
SP
SP
SP
SP
SP

SP
SP
SP
SP

NO

NO
NO

NO
NO

PO
NO

NO

NO

NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO

NO
NO
NO
NO

25| Page



Car washes- where car washes are included as any part of an application, NO SE SP NO
a report from a professional engineer on the disposal and impact of
wastewater and cleaning products must be included with the application.

Sales and storage of contractor’s equipment NO SE SP NO
Veterinary hospitals and commercial kennels NO SE SP NO
Theaters, except drive ins NO SE SP NO
Church, School, Library SE SE SE SE
Assisted living facility, Congregate Senior Housing Facility and/or SE SE SE NO

Continuing Care Retirement Community with accessory uses

4.6 BUSINESS USE STANDARDS
COMMERCIAL GARAGES AND SERVICE STATIONS

A.

1.

No permit shall be issued for the erection or enlargement of facilities for automobile sales, repair,
storage, service, or washing, or for the conversion of any premises not so used for such purposes, if
any part of the lot is situated within a 400-foot radius of any part of a lot used for a school, public
playground, church, hospital, public library, or institution for children. No existing facilities for
automobile sales, repair, storage, service, or washing shall be decreed to become a non-conforming
use through the subsequent erection of such uses.

On all corner lots, all vehicular entrances to or exits from, and curb openings shall be set back a
minimum of twenty-five (25) feet from the corner property lines. All curb openings whether on a
corner lot or not, shall not exceed forty (40) feet in width at the curb line and thirty (30) feet at the
property line. There shall be a minimum of any series of driveways.

ALCOHOLIC USES
Permitted uses which sell or serve alcoholic beverages are declared to possess such special
characteristics that each must be considered an individual case

1.

The sale of alcoholic beverages may be permitted by the Zoning Commission by Special
Exception. Such Special Exception shall pertain to a specific location and a specific class of
permit, as defined by the State Liquor Control Act.

In considering the proposed liquor outlet, the Commission shall be guided by the following:

a. The need for the proposed use in the proposed location.

b. The existing and future character of the neighborhood in which the use is proposed.
c. Traffic which is likely to be generated by the proposed use.

d. Safeguards necessary to protect adjacent property and the neighborhood in general.

A retail use or outlet selling alcoholic liquor having a lawfully existing location may be relocated
within one thousand (1,000) feet of its existing location without the need for another Special
Exception providing that the new location is also within a zone which permits the sale of
alcoholic liquors and providing that the new location does not exceed the limits imposed by
Subsection 4 below. No use selling or dispensing alcoholic liquor located in a Residential Zone
shall be moved to a new location in a Residential Zone.

Any change in the class of permit issued by the State of Connecticut, or an enlargement of the
use which exceeds ten (10) percent of the gross floor area originally approved under this section
or existing prior to July 1964, shall be considered a new use, and application for approval under
this section is required.

26 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



5. All applications submitted under this section shall be accompanied by a site plan prepared in
accordance with. All applications must state, specifically, what class of permit will be applied for
from the Department of Liquor Control.

6. Temporary liquor permits, associated with temporary events, may be granted by the Zoning
Commission as a site plan approval, provided events are limited to no more than 15 times per
calendar year for any organization and that all other applicable zoning, building, fire and State
codes are satisfied. Once a site has been approved, temporary liquor permits may be granted
administratively by the Zoning Enforcement Officer. Should the property change ownership, a
new temporary liquor permit must be sought. Additionally, if, in the opinion of the Zoning
Enforcement Officer, there is a concern with any information provided as part of the application
process, or if complaints were received from the previous year’s event, the Zoning Enforcement
Officer may refer the application to the Zoning Commission for site plan approval.

Any organization who would like to request events in excess of 15 times per calendar year will
be required to apply for a Special Exception. (Adopted November 19, 2018)

C. HEALTHCARE FACILITIES

The Zoning Commission may after public notice and hearing grant a Special Exception to develop
a health care facility in any zone.

1. Procedure

Applications for such Special Exceptions shall be made on forms provided by the Commission and
shall include a site plan prepared in accordance with Section 11.2. All such applications shall be
accompanied by evidence satisfactory to the Commission that all necessary licenses and permits
from the Connecticut State Department of Health for the operation and maintenance of the
proposed use either have been issued or will have been issued by the time the Commission decides

the application. The Commission shall utilize criteria contained in Section 11000 and 11120 in Comment [SG2]: ?

evaluating the application.
2. Location

No site shall be approved unless it is on or within three hundred (300) feet of a road classified as
arterial as set forth in the Simsbury Plan of Development and unless it is connected to public water

and sewers.

3. Area and Site Requirements

Minimum Parcel Size Twenty (20) acres

Maximum Coverage 25 percent

Maximum Density Eight (8) patient beds per acre*

Minimum Frontage 200 feet

Minimum Side/Rear Yard In no case shall any structure or parking area be located
less than one hundred (100) feet from any property line

Maximum Building Height Two (2) stories or thirty-five (35) feet. No accessory

structure may exceed the height of fifteen (15) feet.

27 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



*Independent living units shall be counted as two (2) beds for each efficiency unit or two (2) beds
per bedroom.

4.

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

Other Site Requirements

Buildings shall be sited and landscaping and buffer areas provided to assure maximum
privacy to the patients and adjoining uses.

Parking Areas
Parking spaces shall be provided at the rate of 0.75 spaces per patient bed.
Open Spaces

Suitable recreation facilities appropriate in function and area to the needs of the
residents shall be provided.

Drives and Access and Egress Points

Internal circulation shall provide for the easy movement of vehicles, pedestrian traffic
including handicapped pedestrian movement, and convenient access of emergency
vehicles. All internal circulation roads shall be constructed in accordance with Highway
Construction and Design Standards for the Town of Simsbury.

General

No approval shall be granted which would be detrimental to the public safety, create or
increase traffic hazards, tend to have a depreciating effect on the neighborhood
properties, or is not in keeping with the stated intent of these regulations.

28 | Page



SECTION 5 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS

5.1 PURPOSE|

/[ Comment [SG3]: ?

5.2 DESIGNATION OF INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS

District Name District Description
Symbol

Restricted Industrial Zone 1-1

General Industrial Zone 1-2

5.3 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
The table below is a quick look at the dimensional requirements for Industrial Zoning Districts.

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS

District
Symbol Minimum Required Maximum
Impervious
Lot Front Yard Side Yard Rear Yard Building Height Coverage *
Lot Size Frontage  Setback Setback Setback
1-1 10 ACRES N/A 50 FT. 40 FT. 50 FT. 40 ft. 40%
1-2 No Minimum N/A 25 ft. 20 ft. 25 ft. 40 ft. 45%

Impervious surface shall include surface area created by buildings, parking areas of all surface types, and circulation drives

5.4 EXCEPTIONS TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
1. The Zoning Commission may, after notice and public hearing, grant a special exception to allow up to 50 percent

increase to the maximum coverage allowed in any zone. The Commission shall require a site plan prepared in
accordance with Section 11.2 and other information it deems necessary. In evaluating the request for special
exception, the Commission shall consider the standards set forth in Section 12.

2. Measurement of Required Yards in B-3, Professional Office, and I-2.

e Where a contiguous area is in multiple ownership, It may be developed under a single site plan with
"Height, Area, and Yard Requirements" governing the boundaries of the entire parcel so developed

e  Where individual parcels are developed individually, "Height, Area, and Yard Requirements" shall apply
to each parcel.

e Minimum lot sizes shown in the "Height, Area, and Yard Regulations" are intended to govern non-
contiguous parcels. Where two or more lots are located in a single design zone, lot area requirements
shall relate to the area of the entire zone rather than any specific lot.

3. Landscaped Buffer in Non-Residential Zones Adjacent to Residential Zones
e Where a non-residential zone abuts a residential zone, the Commission may require a dense landscaped

buffer sufficient to screen any detrimental effect upon the abutting, existing, or future residences.

29 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



10.

The regulations governing height are maximum heights permissible, and the area and yard requirements are
minimum permissible.

Front yards on corner lots- front yard requirements are enforced on both street fronts.

Corner visibility: On any corner lot, no fence, wall, hedge, shrub or other structure or growth shall be
constructed or maintained in a manner which will decrease the sight line within 10 feet from the edge of
pavement.

Construction in Required Yards (adopted May 20, 1996)-Notwithstanding other provisions of this regulation,
fences, walls, hedges, and driveways may be permitted in any required yard or along the edge of any yard
subject to the provisions in Section B.2 (Corner Visibility). For any building requiring a site plan, the Zoning
Commission may approve any structures required for handicapped access shown on the site plan to be
constructed in any required yards. For any building not requiring a site plan, the Zoning Enforcement Officer
may permit any structures required for handicapped access to be constructed in any required yard, provided
that no practical location can be found outside of the required yard.

The provisions of these regulations limiting the maximum height of buildings shall not apply to restrict the
height of a church spire, tower or belfry, or a flagpole, chimney, water tank, elevator bulkhead, or similar uses.
Through Lots (or Double Frontage Lots)- On a through lot, a front yard is required on both frontages.
Measurement of Required Yards on Irregular Lots- Where the front lot line is an arc or the side lines converge

toward the front lot line, the required frontage may be measured along the rear line of the required front yard.

5.5 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL PERMIT USES
SP- Site Plan, SE- Special Exception, NO- Not allowed

Industrial Permitted Uses 1-1 1-2
Office Buildings SP SP
Research Laboratories SP SP
Warehouses and the manufacture, processing, or assembly of goods SP SP
Private or commercial recreation such as tennis, handball, paddle tennis, SE SP
gymnasiums or similar facilities
Business uses such as banks, industrial salesrooms, restaurants or cafeterias, and SE SP
similar uses which are clearly supportive of the permitted primary uses in an
industrial park or district.
Warehouse, wholesale, or storage NO SP
Sale and underground storage of fuel, building materials NO SP
Grain sales and storage NO SP
Contractor’s storage yards NO SP
Public utility garages, pole yards, and similar facilities NO SP
Truck Terminals and warehouses NO SP
Uses where waste, discarded or salvaged materials are bought, sold, exchanged, NO SP
baled, packed, disassembled or handled, including auto wrecking, house
wrecking, and used lumber as long as such uses are conducted entirely within
enclosed building.
Wireless Telecommunication Sites located on buildings and shielded from view- NO SE
standards
Wireless Telecommunication Sites where antenna is mounted to existing towers, NO SE
utility poles, water towers, light standards, bridges or other structures

30| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Medical Marijuana production facilities SE SE

Sand, stone and gravel quarries including the manufacture of products composed
of materials extracted from said quarries, along with principal and accessory NO NO

buildings relating to such operation or manufacture

Assisted living facility, Congregate Senior Housing Facility and/or Continuing Care
Retirement Community with accessory uses

Vehicle Repair facility, excluding sales, located completely within a building. No

SE SE

SE SP

outdoor storage of unregistered vehicles/equipment is to be permitted.

5.6 SPECIAL EXCEPTION FOR HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS IN THE I-1 AND I-2 ZONES
The Zoning Commission may, after public notice and hearing, grant a special exception to the height requirement of this
Section 5, for an individual site in the I-1 or I-2, Industrial Zones, subject to the following standards:

1.

2.

The Commission may require approval of a site plan prepared in accordance with Section 11.

In evaluating the request for special exception, the Commission shall consider the standards set forth in
Section 12.

For the purposes of computing the height of a structure, the measurement shall not include flagpoles, chimneys,
water tanks, elevator bulkheads, or mechanical penthouses.

The height of a structure shall mean the average of the highest and lowest points on a structure as measured
five (5) feet from the finished grade of foundation.

The Commission shall not grant a special exception for height that would allow a structure to exceed either
seventy-five (75) or four (4) stories.

31| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 6 FLOODPLAIN ZONE

6.1 PURPOSE
To promote public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize losses caused by periodic flooding

6.2 DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT

District Name District Symbol Description

Floodplain Zone FP

6.3 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES
SP- Site Plan, SE- Special Exception, NO- Not allowed

Floodplain Permitted Uses

Open space uses to the extent that they are not prohibited by any other SP
ordinance or regulations and provided they do not require buildings,

structures, fill, pavement, or the storage of equipment or materials.

Agricultural uses including farming, nurseries, forestry, and grazing: SP
provided that fertilizer, manure, and chemicals are stored at least one

hundred (100) feet away from and stream

Buildings, structures, and signs related to permitted uses SE
Parking areas as an accessory to adjacent permitted uses within or SE
adjacent to the floodplain

Public roads SE
Filling, paving, and grading of land provided: SE

a. Such filling is accessory to abutting permitted uses or a
use permitted in the Floodplain zone

b. The flow of the river or its related streams shall not be
retarded, and the storage capacity that alleviates flooding
elsewhere is not reduced

6.4 IDENTIFICATION OF THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA

The Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) in its Flood
Insurance Study (FIS) for Hartford County, dated May 16, 2017, accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), dated
September 26 2008, and other supporting data applicable to the Town of Simsbury, and any subsequent revisions
thereto, are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this regulation. Since mapping is legally adopted by
reference into this regulation it must take precedence when more restrictive until such time as a map amendment or
map revision is obtained from FEMA.

The SFHA includes any area shown on the FIRM as Zones A, AE, AO, and AH, including areas designated as a floodway on
a FIRM. SFHAs are determined utilizing the base flood elevations (BFE) provided on the flood profiles in the Flood
Insurance Study (FIS) for a community. BFEs provided on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) are only approximate
(rounded up or down) and should be verified with the BFEs published in the FIS for a specific location. Also included are
areas of potential, demonstrable or historical flooding, including any area contiguous with but outside the SFHA

32| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



identified by FEMA, and where the land surface elevation is lower than the base flood elevation (BFE) as shown in the
FIS, and the area is not protected from flooding by a natural or man-made feature.

6.5 FLOODPLAIN ZONE ADMINISTRATION
STRUCTURES ALREADY IN COMPLIANCE

A structure or development already in compliance with this regulation shall not be made non-compliant by any
alteration, modification, repair, reconstruction or improvement and must also comply with other applicable local, state,
and federal regulations. No structure or land shall hereafter be located, extended, converted, modified or structurally
altered without full compliance with the terms of this regulation and other applicable regulations.

INTERPRETATION

In the interpretation and application of this regulation, all provisions shall be: 1) considered as minimum requirements;
2) liberally construed in favor of the governing body, and; 3) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers
granted under State statutes.

WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY

The degree of flood protection required by this regulation is considered the minimum reasonable for regulatory
purposes and is based on scientific and engineering consideration and research. Larger floods can and will occur on rare
occasions. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This regulation does not imply or guarantee
that land outside the Special Flood Hazard Area or uses permitted in such areas will be free from flooding and flood
damages. This regulation shall not create liability on the part of the Town of Simsbury or by any officer or employee
thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this regulation or any administrative decision lawfully made
thereunder. The Town of Simsbury, its officers and employees shall assume no liability for another person’s reliance on
any maps, data or information provided by the Town of Simsbury.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR

Duties of the floodplain administrator shall include, but not be limited to:
1. Review all permit applications for completeness.

2. Review all permit applications to determine whether the proposed t and building sites will be reasonably safe
from flooding.

3. Review all development permits to assure that the permit requirements of this regulation have been satisfied.
4. Review all permit applications to assure that all necessary federal or state permits have been received.
5. Require that copies of such permits be provided and maintained on file with the permit application. Such

permits include, but are not limited to, Coastal Area Management (CAM) Permit, Water Diversion Permit, Dam
Safety Permit, and Army Corps of Engineers 401 and 404 Permits.

6. Notify the regional planning agency and affected municipality at least thirty-five (35) days prior to a public
hearing if any change of regulation or use of a flood zone will affect an area within five hundred (500) feet of
another municipality.

7. Notify the adjacent communities and the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP), Land and
Water Resources Division, prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse, and submit evidence of such
notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

33| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or relocated portion of said watercourse so that the
flood carrying capacity is not diminished.

Obtain, record and maintain the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including
basement) of all new construction, substantial improvements or repair to a structure that has sustained
substantial damage.

Obtain, record and maintain the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which the new construction,
substantial improvement or repair to a structure that has sustain substantial damage has been flood-proofed.
When flood-proofing is utilized for a particular structure, the floodplain administrator shall obtain certification
from a registered professional engineer or architect.

Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the area of special flood hazard (for
example, where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions) the
floodplain administrator shall make necessary interpretation. The person contesting the location of the
boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in this regulation.

Require the applicant to provide base flood elevation data for all proposed development.

When base flood elevation data or floodway data have not been with a permit application, the zoning
enforcement officer shall obtain, review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation and floodway data
available from a federal, state or other source in order to administer the provisions of this regulation.

All records pertaining to the provisions of this regulation shall be obtained and maintained in the office of the
floodplain administrator.

Upon completion of the permitted development and prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO),
necessary as-built surveys (prepared by a Connecticut Licensed Professional as per Connecticut State Statutes)
and engineering and architectural certifications shall be provided to the floodplain administrator demonstrating
compliance with the approved plans and standards set forth in this regulation.

6.6 PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION
GENERAL STANDARDS

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAs) the following provisions are required:

1.

New construction, substantial improvements, and structures that have sustained substantial damage shall be
constructed using methods and practices that minimize flood damage.

New construction, substantial improvements, and structures that have sustained substantial damage shall be
constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.

New construction, substantial improvements, and repairs to structures that have sustained substantial damage
shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure resulting from
hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.

New construction, substantial improvements and repair to structures that have sustained substantial damage
cannot be constructed or located entirely or partially over water unless they are a functionally dependent use or
facility.

The bottom of all electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, HVAC ductwork, and
other service facilities, or any machinery or utility equipment or connections servicing a structure shall be
elevated at or above two (2) feet above the base flood elevation (BFE) to prevent water from entering or
accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding. This includes, but is not limited to, furnaces,

34| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

oil or propane tanks, air conditioners, heat pumps, hot water heaters, ventilation ductwork, washer and dryer
hook-ups, electrical junction boxes, and circuit breaker boxes.

New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood
waters into the system.

New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood
waters into the system and discharges from the system into flood waters.

On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination
from them during flooding.

Above-ground storage tanks (oil, propane, etc.) which are located outside or inside of the structure must either
be elevated at or above the base flood elevation (BFE) on a concrete pad, or be securely anchored with tie-down
straps to prevent flotation or lateral movement, have the top of the fill pipe extended above the BFE, and have a
screw fill cap that does not allow for the infiltration of flood water.

In any portion of a watercourse that is altered or relocated, the flood carrying capacity must be maintained.
Notify adjacent communities and the Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection
(CTDEEP), Land and Water Resources Division (IWRD) prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse.

If any portion of a structure lies within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA), the entire structure is considered
to be in the SFHA. The entire structure must meet the construction requirements of the flood zone. The
structure includes any attached additions, garages, decks, sunrooms, or any other structure attached to the
main structure. Decks or porches that extend into a more restrictive flood zone will require the entire structure
to meet the standards of the more restrictive zone.

If a structure lies within two or more flood zones, the construction standards of the most restrictive zone apply
to the entire structure (i.e., structure must be built to the highest BFE). The structure includes any attached
additions, garages, decks, sunrooms, or any other structure attached to the main structure. (Decks or porches
that extend into a more restrictive zone will require the entire structure to meet the requirements of the more
restrictive zone.)

Compensatory Storage. The water holding capacity of the floodplain, except those areas which are tidally
influenced, shall not be reduced. Any reduction caused by filling, new construction or substantial improvements
involving an increase in footprint to the structure, shall be compensated for by deepening and/or widening of
the floodplain. Storage shall be provided on-site, unless easements have been gained from adjacent property
owners; it shall be provided within the same hydraulic reach and a volume not previously used for flood storage;
it shall be hydraulically comparable and incrementally equal to the theoretical volume of flood water at each
elevation, up to and including the 100-year flood elevation, which would be displaced by the proposed project.
Such compensatory volume shall have an unrestricted hydraulic connection to the same waterway or water
body. Compensatory storage can be provided off-site if approved by the municipality.

Equal Conveyance. Within the floodplain, except those areas which are tidally influenced, as designated on the
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for the community, encroachments resulting from filling, new construction or
substantial improvements involving an increase in footprint of the structure, are prohibited unless the applicant
provides certification by a registered professional engineer demonstrating, with supporting hydrologic and
hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice, that such encroachments shall
not result in any (0.00 feet) increase in flood levels (base flood elevation). Work within the floodplain and the
land adjacent to the floodplain, including work to provide compensatory storage shall not be constructed in such
a way so as to cause an increase in flood stage or flood velocity.

35| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



6.7 STANDARDS FOR WATERCOURSES WITHOUT ESTABLISHED BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS (UN-NUMBERED
ZONE A), ADOPTED FLOODWAYS AND/OR FLOOD MAPPING, AND FLOODWAYS
The Floodplain Administrator shall require base flood elevation (BFE) data be provided with any application for new
construction, substantial improvement, repair to structures which have sustained substantial damage or other
development in Zone A without a FEMA-published BFE (un-numbered A Zone). The Floodplain Administrator shall
obtain, review and reasonably utilize any BFE and floodway data available from a federal, state or other source,
including data developed for subdivision proposals, as criteria for requiring that new construction, substantial
improvements, repair to structures which have sustained substantial damage or other development in un-numbered A
Zones on the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) meet the standards. If no BFE can be determined, the
lowest floor, including basement, must be elevated to two (2) feet above the highest adjacent grade next to the
structure.

When BFEs have been determined within Zone AE on the community’s FIRM but a regulatory floodway
has not been designated, the zoning enforcement officer must require that no new construction, substantial
improvements, repair to structures which have sustained substantial damage or other development, including fill, shall
be permitted which will increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one (1.0) foot at any point
within the community when all existing and anticipated development is considered cumulatively with the proposed
development.

The floodplain administrator may request floodway data of an applicant for watercourses without
FEMA-published floodways. When such data is provided by an applicant or whenever such data is available from any
other source (in response to the municipality’s request or not), the community shall adopt a regulatory floodway based
on the principle that the floodway must be able to convey the waters of the base flood without increasing the water
surface elevation more than one (1.0) foot at any point within the community.

The zoning enforcement officer shall obtain, review and reasonably utilize any BFE and floodway data
available from a federal, state or other source, as criteria for requiring that new construction, substantial improvements,
repair to structures which have sustained substantial damage or other development in any area of potential,
demonstrable or historical flooding within the community meet the standards in Section 4.4 and Section 5.3.

Under the provisions of 44 CFR Chapter 1, Section 65.12, of the National Flood Insurance Program
regulations, a community may approve certain development in Zones AE and AH, on the community’s FIRM which
increases the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one (1.0) foot, provided that the community first
completes all of the provisions required by Section 65.12.

Floodways: Located within Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) are areas designated as floodways on the
community’s Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) or Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps (FBFM). Since the floodway is
an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of flood waters which carry debris, potential projectiles and has erosion
potential, no encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, repairs to substantially
damaged structures and other developments shall be permitted unless certification, with supporting technical data, by a
registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating, through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in
accordance with standard engineering practice, that encroachments shall not result in any (0.00 feet) increase in flood
levels during occurrence of the base flood discharge. Fences in the floodway must be aligned with the flow and be of an
open design. A permit may be given which allows encroachments resulting in increases in base flood elevations
provided the community first obtains a conditional floodway revision by meeting the requirements of C.F.R. 44, Chapter
1, and Subsection 65.12.

36| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



6.8 SPECIFIC STANDARDS

1.

In no case shall any new building or structure intended for human occupancy (residential or non-residential) be
permitted in the Floodplain Zone. Manufactured (Mobile) Homes, manufactured home parks and subdivisions,
and recreational vehicles (RV) are prohibited in the Floodplain Zone.

Existing residential and non-residential structures within or adjacent to the Floodplain Zone undergoing a
substantial improvement or repairing substantial damage may be expanded provided that the entire structure
meets the construction requirements listed below.

New construction may take place adjacent to the Floodplain Zone provided that habitable spaces and occupiable
rooms as defined within these regulations shall meet the construction requirements listed below and if it runs
through the subject property. For the purposes of this regulation, adjacency occurs when the FEMA 100-year
base flood elevation crosses or touches the property at any point.

Residential Construction

All new construction, substantial improvements, and repair to structures that have sustained substantial damage
which are residential structures shall have the bottom of the lowest floor, including basement, elevated (2) two
feet above the base flood elevation (BFE). Electrical, plumbing, machinery or other utility equipment that service
the structure must be elevated two feet above the BFE.

Non-Residential Construction

All substantial improvements to existing structures and repair to existing structures that have sustained
substantial damage which are commercial, industrial or non-residential structures shall:

(a) Have the bottom of the lowest floor, including basement, elevated two feet above the base flood
elevation (BFE).

(b) In lieu of being elevated, non-residential structures may be dry flood-proofed to two (2) feet above
the BFE provided that together with all attendant utilities and sanitary facilities the areas of the
structure below the required elevation are watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the
passage of water, and provided that such structures are composed of structural components having the
capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy. A registered
professional engineer or architect shall review and/or develop structural design specifications and plans
for the construction, and shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in accordance
with acceptable standards of practice for meeting the provisions of this section. Such certification shall
be provided to the zoning enforcement officer on the FEMA Floodproofing Certificate, Form 81-65.

(c) The bottom of all electrical, plumbing, machinery or other utility equipment that service the
structure must be elevated two feet above the BFE.

37| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 7 NON-CONFORMITIES- LOTS, USES AND STRUCTURES

7.1 PURPOSE

Within the districts established by this regulation or amendments that may later be adopted, there exist lots, structures,
and uses of land and structures which were lawful before this regulation was passed or amended, but which would be
prohibited, regulated, or restricted under the terms of this regulation or future amendment.

It is the intent of this regulation to permit these non-conformities to continue until they are removed, but not to
encourage their survival. Such uses are declared by this regulation to be incompatible with permitted uses in the
districts involved. It is further the intent of this regulation that non-conformities shall not be enlarged upon, expanded
or extended if such a change increases the non-conformity, or be used as grounds for adding other structures or uses
prohibited elsewhere in the same district.

A non-conforming use of a structure, a non-conforming use of land, or a non-conforming use of a structure and land
shall not be extended or enlarged after passage of this regulation by attachment on a building or premises of additional
signs intended to be seen from off the premises, or by the addition of other uses of a nature which could be prohibited
generally in the district involved. To avoid undue hardship, nothing in this regulation shall be deemed to require a
change in the plans, construction, or designated use of any building on which actual construction was lawfully begun
prior to the effective date of the adoption or amendment of this regulation.

7.2 NON-CONFORMING LOTS OF RECORD AND IN SUBDIVISIONS

In any district in which single family dwellings are permitted, notwithstanding limitations imposed by other provisions of
this regulation, a single family dwelling and customary accessory buildings may be erected on any single lot of record at
the effective date of adoption or amendment of this regulation. This provision shall apply even though such lot fails to
meet the requirements for the area or lot frontage, or both, that are generally applicable in the district, provided that
yard dimensions and other requirements not involving area or frontage, or both, of the lot shall conform to the
regulations for the district in which such lot is located

Nothing in this regulation shall restrict the future construction of structures in conformance at the effective date of
these regulations in subdivisions in the process of approval at such effective date or in subdivisions approved prior to
such effective date.

7.3 NON-CONFORMING USES OF LAND

Where, at the effective date of adoption or amendment of this regulation, lawful use of land exists that is made no
longer permissible under the terms of this regulation as enacted or amended, such use may be continued so long as it
remains otherwise lawful subject to the following provisions:

1. No such non-conforming use shall be enlarged or increased nor extended to occupy a greater area of land than
was occupied at the effective date of adoption or amendment of this regulation.

2. No such non-conforming use shall be moved in whole or in part of any other portion of the lot or parcel
occupied by such use at the effective date of adoption or amendment of this regulation.

7.4 NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURES

Where a lawful structure exists at the effective date of adoption or amendment of this regulation that could not be built
under the terms of this ordinance by reason of restrictions on area, lot coverage, height, yards, or other characteristics
of the structure or its location on the lot, such structure may be continued so long as it remains otherwise lawful subject
to the following provisions:

1. No such structure may be enlarged or altered in any way which increases its non-conformity.

2. Should such structure be destroyed or damaged it may be repaired or replaced to an extent which does not increase
the non-conformity.

38| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



3. Should such structure be moved for any reason for any distance whatever, it shall thereafter conform to the
regulations for the district in which it is located after it is moved.

7.5 NON-CONFORMING USE OF STRUCTURES

If a lawful use of a structure, or of a structure and premises in combination, exists at the effective date of adoption or
amendment of this regulation that would not be allowed in the district under the terms of this regulation, the lawful use
may be continued so long as it remains otherwise lawful subject to the following provisions:

1. No existing structure devoted to a use not permitted by this regulation in the district in which it is located shall
be enlarged, extended, constructed, reconstructed, moved, or structurally altered in a manner which increases
the non-conformity except in changing the use of the structure to a use permitted in the district in which it is
located.

2. Any non-conforming use of a structure, or structure and premises, may be changed to another non-conforming
use provided that the Zoning Commission, either by general rule or by making findings in the specific case, shall
find that the proposed use is equally appropriate or more appropriate to the district than the existing non-
conforming use. In permitting such change, the Commission may require appropriate conditions and safeguards
in accordance with the provisions of this regulation.

3. Any structure, or structure and land in combination, in or on which a non-conforming use is superseded by a
permitted use, shall thereafter conform to the regulations for the district in which such structure is located, and
the non-conforming use may not thereafter be resumed.

39| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 8 SPECIAL REGULATIONS

8.1 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT ZONE (PAD) (ADOPTED MAY 3, 2010)
PURPOSE:

The purpose of this Regulation is to establish a process for a change of zone pursuant to Connecticut General Statues §
8-3 to permit the planned area development of tracts of land within the enumerated eligible zone(s). The intent of this
Regulation is to:

e Encourage proposals of mixed use and other attractive, innovative developments in certain non-
residential zones as guided by the adopted 2007 Plan of Conservation and Development (POCD).

e Afford proponents of such developments prompt nonbinding feedback on Preliminary Development
Plans from as many interested parties as possible;

e Afford the Zoning Commission discretion to establish certain zoning standards for projects deemed
appropriate; and

e Assure those submitting Master Development Plans for such projects a predictable and efficient process
of consideration without undue delay.

It is the further intent of this Regulation to encourage master planning of sites to create attractive, livable,
environmentally wholesome, and pedestrian friendly public spaces appropriate to their surroundings, consistent with
the Town of Simsbury’s comprehensive plan and guided by its adopted Plan of Conservation and Development and its
Guidelines for Community Design to:

Permit flexibility in the application of land development regulations that will encourage innovative
development and redevelopment for residential and nonresidential purposes meeting the demand for
diverse housing and other development and land use by creating variety in type, design, and layout of
dwellings and other buildings and structures including traditional neighborhood development;

Provide flexibility in architectural design, placement, and clustering of buildings, use of open areas,
provision of adequate circulation facilities, including pedestrian and vehicular facilities and parking; and

related site and design considerations;

Encourage the conservation of natural features, preservation of open spaces and critical and sensitive
areas, and protection from natural hazards;

Provide for efficient use of public facilities;
Encourage and preserve opportunities for energy-efficient development and redevelopment; and

Promote and implement the concept of sustainability as it pertains to such land development or
redevelopment which is in line with the term “Smart Growth” as it is defined in PA. 09-230; and

Promote attractive and functional environments for nonresidential areas which are compatible with
surrounding land use(s).

While offering a predictable and efficient process and potential relief from certain zoning standards, this
Regulation imposes additional measures and administrative procedures to assure compliance with
generally applicable land use regulations.

40 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



A. Definitions
1. Comprehensive Plan: The adopted zoning regulations and zoning map of the Town of Simsbury.

2. Planned Area Development (“PAD”): A development approved pursuant to this Regulation and approved as a
floating zone as provided for by this Regulation.

3. Planned Area Development Zone: A tract or parcel of land approved for a Planned Area Development pursuant
to this Regulation.

4. Underlying Zone: That zone district existing on a tract or parcel(s) of land at the time of filing the Master
Development Plan pursuant to Section Five (B.) of this Regulation and to which the tract or parcel will revert if a
Planned Area Development Zone development is not started and completed within the time limits established
by Section 8-3 of the Connecticut General Statues (CGS), these Regulations and this Regulation.

5. Mixed Use Development or Mixed Land Use: To be considered a mixed use development or mixed land use a
proposed development shall include:

e Two or more significant revenue-producing uses (such as retail, educational, entertainment, office,
residential, hotel, civic, cultural, recreation) that are to some extent, mutually supporting

o Significant physical and functional integration of project components (and thus a relatively close-knit
and intensive use of land) which may include uninterrupted pedestrian connections; and

e Development in conformance with a coherent plan that stipulates the type and scale of uses, permitted

densities, and related items.

6. Mixed Use Building: A building with at least one floor of residential use and at least one floor of non-residential
use.

B. Eligible Zones and Minimum Tract Size

A Planned Area Development shall be permitted only in the following zones and for parcels of land containing at least
the following minimum acreage:

BUILDING ZONE MAP MINIMUM ACRES
ZONE CLASSIFICATION CONTINGUOUS TRACTS
Industrial Zone I-1 10 acres

Industrial Zone I-2 No minimum lot size
PO Zone No minimum lot size
Simsbury Center Zone No minimum lot size
Restricted Business Zone B-1 No minimum lot size
General Business Zone B-2 No minimum lot size
Design Business Zone B-3 No minimum lot size

For the purposes of this Section contiguous tracts shall mean tracts which are part of a single, integrated master plan
and which would share common boundaries or are separated by a town or state highway. Any lot not conforming to the
minimum required lot size at the time of the adoption of this Regulation shall be deemed to be legally non-conforming
and shall be acceptable for application for, or inclusion in, a PAD application. A Planned Area Development may include
contiguous parcels of land having different underlying zones.

C. Permitted Uses

41 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Any use(s) permitted as of right or by Special Permit or Special Exception in the Simsbury Zoning Regulations are eligible
for inclusion in a PAD and may be permitted in a Planned Area Development Zone. Such uses may be combined in a
Mixed Use Development in accordance with the Development Plan Standards set forth in this Section.

D. Master Development Plan Standards

It is the intention of this Regulation to encourage and guide the coordinated development of a group or groups of
principal buildings and uses within a development site and to encourage mixed use development proposals which
achieve the objectives of the adopted Plan of Conservation and Development. In evaluating the appropriateness of the
proposed development, all due consideration shall be given to, among other things, the recommendations of the Plan of
Conservation and Development for the area being considered. Proposed PAD projects which are based on appropriate
Form Categories as found on pages 53-57 of the adopted 2007 POCD will be considered most compliant with the
recommendations of the Plan of Conservation and Development.

1. Master Development Plan General Requirements: In addition to the standards contained in the Simsbury
Zoning Regulations which are not in conflict with the specific standards and review criteria set forth in this
Regulation, all approved Master Development Plans submitted under this Regulation shall be in accordance with
the following standards:

a. Coverage: Coverage shall consist of the following two elements:

i Building Coverage: Building coverage shall be calculated by determining the
total footprint of all buildings proposed to be constructed on a site. Where the
site is composed of more than a single parcel, the building coverage shell be
shown for each lot and for the site as a whole. The maximum building coverage
for a PAD total site shall be determined by the applicant’s ability to control all
stormwater either on the PAD site or on property under the control of the
applicant.

ii.  Site Coverage: Site coverage as defined in these regulations shall be calculated
by determining the total impervious area on a site. Where the site is composed
of more than a single parcel, the site coverage shall be shown for each lot and
for the site as a whole. The maximum site coverage for a PAD total site shell be
determined as that site coverage for which all stormwater can be controlled as
noted in a. (above) and which the Commission finds acceptable based on the
standards contained in any section of these Regulations.

iii. Building Height: No building shall exceed the height permitted in the underlying
zone as stated and as calculated in the Simsbury Zoning Regulations.

iv. Open Space and Public Amenities: Each proposed Master Development Plan
submitted under this Regulation shall include areas of open space and public
amenities in a design, form, location and area to be approved by the Zoning
Commission. Public amenities and open space areas shall be made available
through dedication for public use at the option of the Board of Selectmen upon
recommendation of the Zoning Commission. If not so dedicated, adequate
provisions shall be made for the maintenance and upkeep of such open space
areas and public amenities, including recreational and public facilities provided
therein. Such provisions shall include an organization set up by the developer in
a form acceptable to the Zoning Commission with the power of obtaining
assessments through enforceable covenants against privately owned land
within the development for purposes of ongoing maintenance and upkeep of

42 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



the areas and facilities established as part of an approved Master Development
Plan.

b. Parking: In lieu of the parking standards set forth in the Regulations, the Zoning Commission
may modify the parking requirements within a proposed Planned Area
Development Zone as follows:

i. The total number of parking spaces required may be reduced to the number the
Commission determines to be necessary based on the applicant’s parking study
and pursuant to Regulation Ten for the individual uses proposed for the site
upon demonstration by the applicant that the proposed uses have
complementary and adequate parking characteristics. Any request for reduction
in parking from the established standards shall be accompanied by a parking
study prepared by a qualified professional engineer.

ii.. For multiple-phased projects within a Planned Area Development Zone, the
Commission may require the applicant to prepare a revised parking plan for any
subsequent phase after the first phase if experience demonstrates that parking
provided is not adequate. Such revised plan shall be submitted prior to approval
of any site plan for a new phase and shall provide parking adequate to meet the
demonstrated need of the additional phase of the development. The
Commission may require the construction of the required additional parking if it
is determined to be necessary to accommodate existing, proposed, or potential
uses on the PAD tract.

c. Lighting: Lighting plans shall show no light trespass off the proposed Master Development Plan
site and shall use the minimum safe lighting level for the proposed use and particular
application. Wherever feasible, all lighting proposed in a Master Development Plan shall employ
full cut off recessed lighting fixtures. A photometric outdoor lighting plan shall be submitted as
part of the Master Development Plan. All lights shall be shielded so that indirect light falling
outside the Planned Area Development Zone into areas shall be of low intensity and shall not
adversely affect motorists or abutting property owners.

d. Drainage: All stormwater generated by the proposed Master Development Plan shall be
managed using the best current technology, and provision shall be made for necessary long-
term maintenance of stormwater systems. If possible, the stormwater should be treated and
infiltrated on site. Erosion shall be controlled, both during construction and thereafter, by,
among other techniques, landscaping, with native trees and native shrubs as well as avoiding
creating or disturbing steep slopes. This Regulation does not abridge laws and regulations
protecting wetlands and watercourses or the regulation of activities in regulated upland review
areas or other activities that adversely affect wetlands or watercourses.

e. Master Development Plan Design Standards: A proposed Master Development Plan submitted
under this Regulation shall incorporate the following design standards. In evaluating the
appropriateness of the proposed development, all due consideration shall be given to, among
other things, the recommendations of the Plan of Conservation and Development for the area
being considered. Specifically see the POCD pages 88-91 for PAD proposals in the northern
gateway and POCD pages 95-99 for PAD proposals in the southern gateway.

i Block Shape, Layout and Size. Wherever possible, proposed blocks
within a Master Development Plan shall create a localized grid of
pedestrian and vehicular travel ways where parking is located, where

43 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



appropriate and desirable, along proposed streets or in areas to the rear
of buildings, and the fronts of buildings (where their primary entries are
located) shall be established as close to the street as practicable, while
allowing for pedestrian circulation.

iil Building-to-Building Relationship: Each proposed building, as well as its
constituent parts, shall be in a balanced relationship with each other
and existing proposed buildings.

iii. Enclosure: Proposed streets, squares, parks and other elements of the
public realm shall be established by a relationship between buildings
and landscape elements that creates a sense of enclosure for the
pedestrian.

iv. Massing: The overall visual impact of each proposed building’s volume,
defined as a combination of height, width and depth, shall be proposed
to complement the other design elements of the proposed Master
Development Plan.

V. Rhythm: The spacing of proposed buildings along the street or the
pattern of building masses and the spaces in between them shall
complement the other design elements of the Proposed Master
Development Plan.

Vi. Roof and Fagade Articulation: A variety of roof shapes and relief in
building walls shall be proposed to work in concert to avoid monotony
and to create visual interest.

vii.  Scale: The size of the design elements and details of the proposed
Master Development Plan shall be proposed to relate to the human
proportion.

viii.  Solid to Void Relationship: The pattern of openings in the fagade of

each proposed building shall reinforce and complement the other
design elements of the proposed Master Development Plan.

E. PAD Zone Establishment: To encourage the submission of development proposals that (a) take full advantage of
the Form Categories as found on pages 53 through 57 of the adopted 2007 Simsbury POCD, and (b) comply with
the Standards and Review Criteria set forth in this Regulation, the standards pertaining to a Planned Area
Development shall be those specifically set forth in the approved Master Development Plan and the Site Plan
thereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of the Simsbury Zoning Regulations, including without limitation,
those set forth in the underlying zone shall continue to govern any Master Development Plan adopted by the
Commission unless otherwise addressed by a specific standard contained in this Regulation or a standard
approved by the Commission as a part of an approved Master Development Plan or Site Plan.

F. Procedure and Application: The procedure of making application for and obtaining approval of a Planned Area
Development Zone shall be governed by the laws and regulations applicable to all zone changes, text
amendments and map amendments to the Simsbury Zoning Regulations, including Regulation Thirteen.

At the time of submission of a Preliminary Development Plan, the applicant shall be informed of the schedule of
fees on file in the Zoning Commission office covering the application. Such fees, as approved by the Board of
44 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Selectmen, shall be paid by the applicant at the time of submission of an application as required by the schedule
of fees.

The Planned Area Development review process shall consist of four steps: Preliminary Plan Initial Staff Review,
Preliminary Development Plan review, Master Development Plan and Zone Change and Site Plan Review and
approval.

a. Preliminary Plan Initial Staff Review:

All prospective applicants considering development within established or proposed
Planned Area Development zones are encouraged to review with the Town Planner, on
an informal and non-application basis, preliminary development plans. Utilization of this
process may enable a prospective applicant to obtain meaningful preliminary feedback
prior to a major commitment of resources. To maximize the benefits of an informal
review, it is recommended that prospective applicants provide enough information to
allow the subject proposal to be considered with respect to the Town’s Plan of
Conservation and Development, the Guidelines for Community Design, and important
development factors, such as, but not limited to the following: water supply, sanitary
waste disposal, drainage and storm water impacts, traffic and circulation, fire protection
and impacts on the natural environment and neighboring properties.

b. Preliminary Development Plan Review

The purpose of the Preliminary Development Plan is for the applicant to present a
conceptual master plan for the development of the site. The applicant shall
submit 12 paper copies and 1 electronic copy of a Preliminary Development Plan
to the Zoning Commission for distribution and review.

ii. The Zoning Commission and the Planning Commission, either jointly or severally,
shall consider the Preliminary Development Plan at a public meeting, or meeting
as the case may be within sixty-five (65) days of the receipt date of a Preliminary
Development Plan. Date of receipt shall be the next regularly scheduled meeting
of the Zoning Commission. After receipt of the Preliminary Plan and before the
public meeting, it shall be submitted by Town staff to the Design Review Board.
The Chairman of the Zoning Commission shall chair any joint meeting regarding
the Preliminary Development Plan.

iii. At the meeting on the Preliminary Development Plan, the applicant shall present
such plan, which will contain at a minimum the proposed uses, building(s) and
major structure layout, road and parking patterns, proposed amenities including
recreation and open space, building coverage, density, general architectural style
of buildings.

iv.  The purpose of this meeting is to receive preliminary information from the
applicant and input from the public and to elicit comment and suggestions from
the Zoning Commission, the Planning Commission and the Design Review Board,
the Conservation Commission, and other Simsbury boards and commissions, if
applicable, to provide the applicant with enough commission input and public
comment to decide whether to proceed with the expense of preparation of the
Master Development Plan.

V. The applicant may return for further guidance to a Planned Area Development
Subcommittee of Zoning Commission as the Commission may establish. The
45 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



applicant shall be encouraged to make presentations and to engage in dialogue
with other boards, commissions, and officials whose input will be sough or
required for approval of any Master Development Plan that might be submitted.

vi.  The applicant may make such changes to the Preliminary Development Plan as he
deems appropriate, provided, however, the Zoning Commission may within its
discretion, if it considers those changes substantial, require the submission of a
new Preliminary Development Plan to an additional public meeting.

vii.  Any opinions or suggestions expressed by members of the Zoning Commission or
any other board or commission as to the Preliminary Development Plan shall be
tentative only and shall not hinder or preclude such members from making an
independent judgment as to the acceptability of the Master Plan of Development
based upon all evidence in the record at the time of a final decision.

G. Master Development Plan and Zone Change:

Zoning Commission approval of a Master Development Plan is required in order to place the floating zone
designation on the proposed PAD property. The Master Development Plan and the PAD zone change are thus
linked together. The Master Development Plan contents and requirements shall continue to control the
characteristics, extent, density and content of the proposed PAD through the final site plan approval process.

Subsequent to the meeting on the Preliminary Development Plan, the applicant may submit a Master
Development Plan to the Zoning Commission, which shall refer the application to the Planning Commission for
review according to the standards set forth in the General Statues for the review of an application for a change
of zone. The application shall also be referred to the Conservation Commission for comment at this time.

The Master Development Plan shall, where applicable, be prepared and certified by a licensed architect, or a
professional civil engineer, landscape architect, traffic engineer, soil scientist and any other professional
discipline necessary for a complete review of the application by town staff, and shall include or be accompanied
by the following information unless specifically waived by the Director of Planning.

1. Location of existing and proposed zone of property and the nature of the applicant’s
interest, including a boundary map certified to the State of Connecticut A-2 and T-2
map survey standards, which map is to be adopted as description of the zone
boundaries, if the PAD is approved.

2. Anarrative and plan describing present and proposed and building uses, categorized as
residential, non-residential, civic, etc. and the acreage and square footages assigned to
each. Each narrative and plan shall also contain information regarding the lot or lots
included in the proposed PAD, placement of buildings on the land, and information
regarding the proposed building forms and proposed uses of buildings and uses.

3. Proposed dwelling unit densities, including the number of dwelling units and rooms
within the units, including schematic floor plans for each type of unit proposed.

4. Building intensities, including use, dimensions and locations of present and all
proposed structures

5. Proposed vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns, including location and

dimension of private and public streets.

46 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Revision Date: 03/04/2020

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Location of proposed off-street parking areas with dimensions, including location, size
and number of parking spaces, access routes, parking barriers and walkways.

Proposed pedestrian walks, malls and other paths, public and private.

Proposed open space, including a calculation of the area of the proposed open space,
such as parks, lawn areas, and recreational facilities, and such proposed covenants or
easements.

Landscaping, present and proposed, including major tree and shrub area, present and
proposed water elements and related treatment of open space, screening, present and
proposed topography.

Proposed utilities, including water supply, sewage disposal, electrical service, exterior
lighting and drainage, including capacity and additional storm water runoff flow
produced for water courses utilized. If the proposed Planned Area Development is
within an area not presently served but within a master utility plan area, the proposed
utility system shall be adaptable to municipal services when provided.

Preliminary building plans, including schematic floor plans, exterior elevations and
perspective drawings.

Description of types of building materials and facing, including fire retardant, energy
conservation and green building design characteristics for all proposed buildings as well
as site design characteristics.

Relation to existing and future land uses in the surrounding area, including
transportation and other infrastructure components.

Priority schedule of construction of the various units, buildings, landscaping and other
elements of the plan, including any proposed phasing of the PAD.

Proposed future division of the PAD into proposed future lots using lot lines or by
building or other reasonable separations.

An outdoor lighting plan including a photometric plan.

A traffic study of the area as affected by the proposed development, including present
and anticipated traffic counts, volumes, flow patterns, and capacity analysis of present
and proposed interchanges, intersections and entrances and exists servicing the
development shall be done by a professional engineer, experienced in traffic studies
and licensed to practice in the State of Connecticut. In addition, upon his review of the
traffic study, a report, including a clear narrative summary of the traffic report on these
items and other security-related items shall be submitted to the Commission. The
Commission will also request comments on this report from the Town Engineer,
Director of Public Works and the Simsbury Legal Traffic Authority.

A report from the Fire Marshal on firefighting feasibility of the proposed development.

If the site is within the service area of the public sanitary sewerage system, a report
from the Simsbury Water Pollution Control Authority regarding the adequacy of the
existing or proposed sanitary sewer system. If no public sanitary sewers are available, a

47 | Page



report from the Farmington Valley Health District regarding the adequacy of an existing
or proposed private sewage disposal system is required.

20. A report from a licensed civil engineer certifying the adequacy of the existing or
proposed drainage storm water drainage system, public street design, the design of
elements to be served by the Department of Public Works, and the engineering
capacity of the proposed storm water design in relation to the existing roads, storm
water management system and utility infrastructure of the Town.

21. Areport from the CRCOG if the zone change requires such report and a report from the
Planning Commission if the CGS requires such report for the proposed zone change.

22. Areport from the Design Review Board on the proposed buildings, planting and
landscaping plans and PAD implementation as outlined in the application as the
application relates to the adopted Guidelines for Community Design.

23. In addition to any permits that may be required from the Inland Wetlands and
Watercourses Agency, a preliminary report from the Conservation Commission on the
environmental impact of the proposed development.

24. A report from any other advisory committee whose opinion is deemed appropriate by
the Zoning Commission.

25. Any other information which the Zoning Commission may reasonably require or the
applicant may wish to submit in support of the application.

26. The Commission may request a report or recommendation from any other staff person,
agency, or consultant as provided by ordinance, when it deems such a report necessary
to its deliberations.

All applications shall be signed by the owner of the property or the owner’s authorized agent and accompanied by a
copy of the deed to the property. The application shall also include all required fees. Any proposed modification of
existing standards or requirements shall be made known and explained to the Commission in writing as part of the staff
memo on the application.

H Master Development Plan Review Process:

A determination shall be made by the Simsbury Town Planner that a complete Master Development Plan has been filed
and forward it to the Zoning Commission for consideration, review, comment and action as required by the Connecticut
General Statues for a zone change application. The Zoning Commission shall refer the application to the Planning
Commission and the Conservation Commission and the Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency for its review under
the standards applicable to a change of zone application. The Planning Commission shall then consider such plan and
make an appropriate recommendation thereon to the Zoning Commission. Regardless of the recommendations of the
Commission, the applicant shall have the right to consideration and action by the Zoning Commission for a change of
zone to Planned Area Development Zone consistent with the requirements of this regulation and the Connecticut
General Statutes.

The Zoning Commission may require additional documents to be submitted and explanatory statements or descriptive
material to be appended. The Zoning Commission shall approve or disapprove the Master Development Plan after a
public hearing in the manner as required by law for a change of zone. Approval of the Master Development Plan may
include such changes, limitations, restrictions or conditions, as the Zoning Commission shall consider appropriate. If

48 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



approved, the Master Development Plan and related documents shall be a text amendment and a map change to the

Simsbury Zoning Regulations, denoted as “PAD No.

|. Review Factors and Criteria

”

1. Review Factors: In addition to the Standards set forth in this Section, the following Review Factors may
be considered in reviewing and evaluating development proposals submitted under this Regulation:

. The potential impact of the proposed Master Development Plan on

existing dedicated and/or preserved areas of open space.

Where appropriate and desirable, the availability of access connections
between the proposed Master Development Plan and existing
commercial, recreational and other community facilities.

The availability of existing or potential public transportation connections to serve the
proposed Master Development Planned area.

. The transitional character of the proposed Master Development Plan to the existing

built environment surrounding the development site.

. The potential impact of the proposed Master Development on highways

and other public facilities, including utilities.

The potential impact of the proposed Master Development Plan on the
preservation of existing residential neighborhoods.

. The satisfaction of any other standards and review criteria set forth in

this Regulation.

2. Criteria: To carry out the Purpose and Intent of this Regulation and in applying the Standards and
Review Factors set forth in this Section, more favorable consideration will be given to proposed
Master Development Plans submitted under this Regulation which address the following

criteria.

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

. Create compact, mixed use environments, which are pedestrian-oriented, providing

adequate circulation and parking for vehicles but facilitating pedestrian and bicycle
movement.

. Create logical and orderly development patterns and land transitions among uses of

varying intensity and compatibility.

. Mix residential and commercial uses to enhance one another and to be compatible

with surrounding uses, integrating new commercial development within residential
areas, not in strips along thoroughfares.

. Provide significant open space and recreational opportunities for residents,

employees and the public.

. Protect and enhance existing natural resources that are of environmental, historic or

scenic importance as determined by the Zoning Commission.

49 | Page



f. Employ building designs which complement and enhance the desirable architectural
qualities of the existing built environment surrounding the development parcel.

g. Promote environmental sustainability through low impact design practices and other
methods.

h. Encourage pedestrian usage of the development site, including meaningful
pedestrian connections to the existing built environment, by building sidewalk level
elements (e.g. protective canopies, stairs benches columns, wall or roof projections
and recesses, etc.) to human scale and incorporating weather protection,
convenience and safety features;

i. Install underground utilities connections to serve future off-site, adjacent
developments and, where appropriate, relocate existing overhead utility services
below grade;

j. Where appropriate, integrate and preserve existing mature vegetation and a variety
of plant species into the Master Development Plan and avoid the use of invasive

species;

k. Where possible, facilitate access to bus stops and other transit opportunities as well
as other community facilities so as to minimize adverse impacts on highways and
other public facilities.

J. Findings Required:

The Zoning Commission may approve the creation of a Planned Area Development Zone provided that findings are made
that the facts submitted with the application establish that:

1. The standards, requirements and required findings contained in this Section have been met.

2.The developer has provided, where appropriate, for the sustained maintenance of the development in general,
and also for the open space or public amenities in accordance with Section Five above.

3. Utilities, drainage and recreational facilities have been physically laid out as not to unduly burden the capacity of
such facilities, such other facilities presently connected therewith, and such facilities proposed by the adopted
Town Plan of Conservation and Development.

4. The streets, roads, drives and blocks will be suitable and adequate to carry anticipated traffic and increased
densities will not generate traffic in such amounts as to overload the existing or proposed street network in the
area.

5. The capacity of the existing or proposed utility services are adequate for the proposed development.

6. The development will be in keeping with the purpose and intent of this Regulation as defined in Section One, the
general public interest and the comprehensive plan.

K. Conformity with Subdivision Regulations:

Where required, the Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the Simsbury Subdivision Regulations. To the extent
practicable, the processing of any applications for subdivision approval shall be coordinated with the processing of an
application under this Planned Area Development regulation.

50| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



L. Post Approval Process:

A certified mylar of the approved Master Development Plan, signed by the Commission as provided by law, shall be filed
in the Office of the Town Clerk by the owner at his expense within ninety (90) days following approval by the Zoning
Commission, and any Master Development Plan not so filed within ninety (90) days shall be void, unless extended by the
Commission as provided by law. Reproducible linen or mylar, black and white copies of the approved Master
Development Plan shall also be filed with the offices of the Building Official, the Town Engineer and Town Planner.

M. Site Plan Submission, Required Finding and Action:

Prior to any action on a site plan for a PAD the Zoning Commission shall make a finding as to the conformity of the
proposed site plan with the approved Master Development Plan. Site Plans which are found to be in substantial
conformance with the approved Master Development Plan may after review by the Commission be approved or
modified and approved. Site Plans which are found not to be in substantial compliance with the approved Master
Development Plan shall be denied.

No zoning permit may be issued and no building shall be constructed and no land shall be used prior to the approval of a
site plan which plan shall comply with Section 11 of these Regulations and, without duplication, the following:

1. Architectural renderings and perspectives of all proposed structures and their interaction
with existing on site structures;

2. Proposed use categories of all proposed buildings. When multiple uses are proposed,
percentages of floor area for each use shall be shown;

3. Detailed building plans, including schematic floor plans and exterior elevations;

4. Traffic impact report of the area as it may be affected by the proposed development,
including present and anticipated traffic counts, flow patterns, and capacity analysis of present
and proposed interchanges, intersections and entrances serving the development shall be
analyzed by a professional traffic engineer licensed to practice in the State of Connecticut. Such
report to include certification that the proposed site plan conforms with the traffic study.

5. Identification of vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns, including location and
dimension of private and public streets and common drives;

6. Location of proposed off-street parking areas with dimensions, including location, size and
number of parking spaces, access routes, parking barriers and walkways;

7. Proposed pedestrian facilities, public and private;

8. Priority schedule of construction of the buildings, landscaping, infrastructure and other
elements of the plan;

9. A narrative and plan indicating conformity of the proposed site plan to the approved Master
Development Plan, including lots, building placement on the lots, proposed building use and

building form.

10. Phasing:

51| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



The Zoning Commission may establish as a condition of its approval time limits for any
development or phases thereof. Such time limits may be revised by resolution of the Zoning
Commission, upon application, provided the Zoning Commission shall find the revision to be in
the public interest. If, after the expiration of a time limit set in the approving resolution, the
applicant has failed to obtain a building permit for the work required under an approved site
plan, the Commission may schedule a hearing to consider an action to change the undeveloped
portion of the PAD to the previous underlying zone.

11. Bonding:

a. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the developer shall provide the
Town with a performance bond in a form satisfactory to the Town Attorney
covering the costs of public improvements unless said public improvements are
bonded under the provisions of the Simsbury Subdivision Regulations. Said bond
shall be in an amount satisfactory to the Town Engineer and shall be
conditioned on completion of said public improvements within 5 (five) years of
the date of issuance of the first such building permit, except that such time limit
may be extended by resolution of the Zoning Commission, upon application.

b. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the developer shall provide the
Town with a performance bond covering the cost of facilities common to the
entire development, including but not limited to public amenities such as
recreational facilities, club houses, private road, buffer areas, and walkways as
specified. Said bond shall be in a sum satisfactory to the Town Engineer and
shall be conditioned on the completion of said common facilities within 5 (five)
years of the date of issuance of the first such certification of occupancy, except
that such time limit may be extended by resolution of the Zoning Commission,
upon application.

c. IfaPlanned Area Development is to be developed in stages and the Zoning
Commission finds that the common facilities are divided so that they are
approximately evenly distributed over the total number of proposed stages and
that each stage, together with its common facilities, shall be capable of
complete and self-sufficient existence without the completion of the final stages
the Zoning Commission may allow the developer to provide the Town with a
performance bond covering the cost of facilities common to and contained
within each stage, on a stage-by-stage basis and shall be conditioned on the
completion of said common facilities for each stage, except that such time limit
may be extended by resolution of the Zoning Commission, upon application.

12. Changes in Approved Plan:

a. Minor changes in an approved Final Development Plan may, with the written
approval of the Town Planner, be made provided such changes shall not substantially affect the
overall architectural and site design of the Planned Area Development. Such changes shall in no
way affect overall density, impact or nature of the development. Such minor changes may
include but are not limited to:

e the location of catch basins, manholes, and other technical aspects of
drainage,

« slight alterations of the location of roads, sidewalks, structures or buildings
due to unforeseen topographic or geologic features;

o slight alterations of finished contours,

eminor rearrangement of lighting standards, benches, and other incidental

52| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



street furniture.

For any particular PAD the Zoning Commission may eliminate any of these items from the list it
considers to be minor changes.

If the Town Planner shall have any question as to whether such a proposed change is minor or
not, such change shall require the review and written approval of the Zoning Commission.

b. Any change in an Approved Master Development Plan which is not considered
to be a minor change shall be considered and processed as an application for change of zone to
PAD.

13. Site Plan Compliance:

a. Prior to the issuance of any building permit or the commencement of any site work,
the developer shall schedule a job meeting with the Town Engineer, the Town Planner and the
Building Official in order to establish compliance with the approved site plan and any conditions
placed thereon, construction schedules and procedures. The developer shall be responsible for
notifying all contractors and utility companies involved in the project of this meeting. A job
meeting will not be held unless all affected contractor and utility companies are represented.

b. To ensure strict compliance with the approved Master Development Plan, the
approved site plan and the certified record drawings shall be reviewed by the Town Engineer
and the Town Planner. If either of those town officials or their designated representatives
determines that said improvements do not comply with the Master Development Plan and the
approved site plan, the Town Planner shall notify the developer of such non-compliance and
give the developer a period of thirty (30) days to remedy the non-compliance. Failure to remedy
the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Town Engineer and the Town Planner within said
thirty (30) day period shall be sufficient cause for revocation of the approval of the Master
Development Plan by the Zoning Commission at a public meeting.

c. Certified Record Drawings: The developer’s engineer shall furnish the developer a
complete set of prints upon which the developer shall incorporate and update the as-built
record of all the approved Master Development Plan work on a continual basis as construction
progresses. All surveys, measurements, and such other data required for the determination of
the as-built records of the construction of all work shall be obtained under the direction of a
Connecticut registered land surveyor or professional engineer. These drawings shall be signed
and sealed by the registered land surveyor and/or professional engineer, as to materials,
construction methods and location.

The complete set of prints shall be maintained at the job site at all times, and the
developer shall be responsible for having clearly, neatly, accurately, and promptly recorded
thereon, as the work is performed, the as-built record of the work. Principal dimensions,
elevations and such other data as required shall be recorded for all work. Should there be a
question as to the type and amount of data to be recorded, Town Staff shall be responsible for
determining the type of data necessary.

The marked-up prints shall be available for inspection by Town Staff during regular
business hours and shall be corrected immediately if found either inaccurate or incomplete.

At the completion of the project, and before any performance bond held by the Town is
released, a set of as-built plans shall be submitted on mylar to Town Staff for acceptance. The

53| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



plans shall be signed and sealed by a Registered Professional Engineer licensed in Connecticut
and/or a Registered land surveyor licensed in Connecticut as may be applicable.

8.2 HOUSING OPPORTUNITY DEVELOPMENT ZONE
PURPOSE:

This regulation is adopted for the following purposes:

a. To comply with those portions of the Town’s Plan of Development that encourage on a long-term basis,
diverse housing patterns, including “starter” homes and other affordable housing;

b. To encourage the construction of housing that is both affordable as defined by state statutes and is
consistent with design and construction standards present in the community;

c. To assist the Town in complying with the State Zoning Enabling Act, Conn. Gen Stat. § 8-2, as amended

by Public Act 91-392, by adopting zoning regulations that encourage multi-family dwellings and promote
housing choice and economic diversity, including housing for low and moderate income households; and

d. To efficiently utilize existing infrastructure and promote neighborhood planning by providing, where
infrastructure support is available, a mix of housing types, densities, sizes, and prices, while also
providing substantial public and private open space and recreational areas.

DEFINITIONS:

Housing Opportunity Development (“HOD”). A proposed housing development in which, for at least thirty (30) years
after the initial occupancy of units within the proposed development, (1) not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the
dwelling units will be conveyed by deeds containing covenants or restrictions which shall require that such dwelling
units be sold or rented at, or below, prices which will preserve the unit as affordable housing, as defined in Conn. Gen.
Stat. § 8-30g, for persons or families whose income is less than or equal to eighty percent (80%) of the area median
income or the statewide median income, whichever is less; and (2) not less than ten percent (10%) of the dwelling units
shall be conveyed in the same manner to persons or families whose income is less than or equal to sixty percent (60%)
of the area median income or the statewide median income, whichever is less.

Housing Opportunity Unit. As used in this HOD Regulation, “Housing Opportunity Unit” means housing for which
persons and families pay thirty percent (30%) or less of their annual income, where such income is less than or equal to
eighty percent (80%) or sixty percent (60%) as applicable, of the lesser of area median income for the Town of Simsbury
or the statewide median income, as determined by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

A. USES PERMITTED IN AN HOD ZONE:

1. Single-family detached dwellings, on either common interest ownership property or subdivided lots.

2. Attached single-family dwellings consisting of two or more residential units, but not more than six.

3. On-site facilities for active and passive recreation, including community buildings and clubhouses, swimming
pools, athletic fields, walking trails, bicycle routes, tennis courts, basketball courts, playgrounds, and picnic
areas.

4. Uses or structures accessory to the above uses to the extent permitted by, and subject to the procedures,
limitations and conditions of, Section 3.6 of the Zoning Regulations.

5. Use of a residence for personal business purposes to the extent permitted by, and subject to the procedures,
limitations, and conditions of, Section 3.6 of the Zoning Regulations.

6. Home businesses and professional offices in residences as permitted by Section 3.6 of the Zoning Regulations.

7. Public utility and infrastructure uses.

8. Water supply tanks in existence on the date that rezoning to HOD becomes effective.

B. USES PROHIBITED IN N HOD WITH AN AQUIFER OVERLAY ZONE

54| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



1. In any portion of an HOD Zone located within an Aquifer Overlay Zone as defined in LArticIe‘ 10, Section J of the /{Comment [SG4]: 1

Zoning Regulations and as identified on the Zoning Map:

(a) Individual lots with on-site septic systems shall be at least 40,000 square feet in size.

(b) Community septic systems shall be restricted.

(c) All single family cluster units and buildings containing more than one dwelling shall be served by
sewers.

(d) Burial of underground petroleum liquid, diesel fuel, and gasoline storage tanks shall be
prohibited.

(e) In the secondary and tertiary aquifer recharge areas, site stormwater drainage shall be designed
for maximum aquifer recharge in compliance with the Town of Simsbury’s Master Drainage
Study except where stormwater may be contaminated.

2. Parcels Eligible For Rezoning To HOD.

a. No parcel of land shall be rezoned to Housing Opportunity Development unless it satisfies the following
criteria:

(i) Not less than 300 nor more than 400 contiguous acres held in single ownership;

(i) Currently zoned for residential use;

(iii) Not less than 400 feet of frontage on a Town road;

(iv) Located within 500 feet of a collector street;

(v) Access to a public water supply that provides adequate volume, pressure and quality for
domestic and emergency needs; and

(vi) For those portions to be developed with residential dwellings at a density in excess of
that required by the applicable public health code for on-site sewage disposal, access to
the public sewer system.

b. For the purpose of determining contiguous acreage held in single ownership as set forth in 5.a(1), a public

street or road shall not interrupt contiguity so long as the subject property abuts such street or road on both
sides for a distance of at least 400 feet.

C. HEIGHT, AREA, AND YARD REQUIREMENTS

1. Overall Housing Opportunity Development:
Maximum Gross Density 2.0 units per acre
Maximum Impervious Site Coverage 25 percent
Total Minimum Open Space 10 percent
Minimum Open Space To Be Conveyed 10 percent

To Town of Simsbury

2. Single-Family Detached Dwellings On Subdivided Lots, Connected to Public Sewer:
Minimum Lot Area 15,000 square feet
Minimum Lot Frontage 100 feet (except 30 on cul de sacs with 100 foot
building line)
Minimum Front Yard 35 feet
Minimum Side Yard 15 feet
Minimum Rear Yard 25 feet
Maximum Building Height 35 feet
Maximum Stories 2%
3. Single-Family Detached Dwellings on subdivided lots, with on-site Sewage
Disposal:

Minimum Lot Area, Within

55| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Aquifer Protection Zone 53,333 square feet

Minimum Lot Area, Outside

Aquifer Protection Zone 40,000 square feet
Minimum Lot Frontage 100 feet (except 30 feet on cul-de-sacs with 100 feet
At building line)
Minimum Building Square 80 foot dimension, 10,000 square feet
Minimum Front Yard 50 feet
Minimum Side Yard 40 feet
Minimum Rear Yard 50 feet
Maximum Building Height 35 feet
Maximum Stories 2%
4. Attached Dwellings With Two Or More Units Connected To Public Sewer:

Minimum Setback From
Perimeter of HOD Zone When
Abutting Existing Residential 50 feet

Minimum Setback From
Public Right-Of-Way 30 feet

Minimum Setback From

Public Road Curb 30 feet
Maximum Building Height 35 feet
Maximum Stories 2%
5. Single Family Detached Dwellings on subdivided Flag Lots:
Minimum Lot Size, On Septic 53,333 square feet
Minimum Lot Size, On Sewer 40,000 square feet

Minimum Street Frontage

And Width of Access 30 feet
Minimum Building Square 80 foot dimension, 10,000 square feet
Minimum Front Yard 50 feet
Minimum Side Yard 40 feet
Minimum Rear Yard 50 feet
Maximum Height 35 feet
Maximum Stories 2%
6. On-Site Recreational Facilities:
(a) Community Building/Clubhouse:

Maximum Height 35 feet
Maximum Stories2 %

(b) Tennis courts.

(c) Basketball courts.

D. LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS

1. A Master and Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan for a Housing Opportunity Development shall provide for the
following landscaping:

a. Between any proposed attached dwellings or multi-unit buildings and any existing off-site single-family
detached dwellings on subdivided lots, a landscaped or natural area, called a “perimeter buffer,” of not
less than 50 feet wide.

56 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



b. Between all proposed on-site single-family detached dwellings on subdivided lots and fronting on an
existing Town road, a minimum 50 foot “tree belt” consisting of a double row of deciduous trees.

E. ROAD CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND ROAD DEDICATION REQUIREMENTS
1. Within an HOD, roads to be dedicated to the Town shall be constructed in conformance with Town standards.

2. Within an HOD, private roads serving a maximum of 20 units shall be shown on the Master and Final Site Plan and
Subdivision Plan constructed with the following dimensions:

(a) 26 foot minimum pavement width;
(b) 50 foot minimum centerline radius; and
(c) 20 foot minimum outside radius at turnarounds (40 foot diameter).

3. Within an HOD, private drives serving ten dwelling units or less shall be shown on the Master and Final Site Plan and
Subdivision Plan constructed with the following dimensions:

(a) 20 foot minimum pavement width;

(b) 50 foot mini mum centerline radius; and

(c) 20 foot minimum outside radius at turnarounds (40 foot diameter).
F. COMMON INTEREST OWNERSHIP REQUIREMENTS

1. In order to achieve the purposes of this HOD regulation as set forth in Section 1 above; to promote neighborhood
coordination and cooperation within an HOD; to provide for the maintenance of on-site recreation facilities, private
roads, and landscaped buffers and tree belts; to provide for the maintenance of infrastructure; and to provide for
maintenance of dwelling units not situated on subdivided Jots; all dwelling unit owners in an HOD, including the owners
of single-family detached homes on subdivided lots, shall be members of a common interest ownership association
formed and governed in accordance with the Connecticut General Statutes.

2. To fulfill the purposes of the previous subparagraph, an application for a Housing Opportunity Development shall
include, in draft form, a declaration arid bylaws prepared in conformance with the Connecticut Common Interest
Ownership Act, Conn. Gen. Stat. § 47-200 et seq. In order to accommodate varying unit types within an HOD, such
common interest ownership documents may establish a master unit owners association comprising the entire HOD, as
well as subsidiary associations of development areas or clusters within the HOD.

3. Any fees charged by a common interest ownership association or sub association within an HOD shall be limited by
and in conformance with “Additional Requirements” for Housing Opportunity Developments set forth in Section 22 of
this HOD regulation. Specifically, the Affordability Plan and common interest ownership documents for an HOD shall
provide that no such fees shall be set by an association or sub association so that an occupant’s monthly expenditures
for housing will exceed the “maximum monthly payment” for an affordable unit as defined in Section 22e of this
Regulation.

G. OPEN SPACE AND EXCLUSIVE USE AREA FOR COMMON INTEREST UNITS

Within an HOD, not less than ten percent (10%) of the gross area shall be set aside as open space, and not less than ten
percent (10%) of the gross area shall be conveyed in fee to the Town of Simsbury. Such areas shall include, but are not
limited to, areas for active or passive recreational uses; and perimeter buffers or tree belts as described in Section 7 of
this Regulation; and upland regulated areas surrounding wetlands or watercourses. Any open space subjected to a
conservation easement shall preserve it for such uses in perpetuity. The common interest ownership documents for an

57| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



HOD shall provide for an exclusive use area for each dwelling unit located in a common interest ownership area of the
HOD.

H. PARKING REQUIREMENTS

1. Within an HOD, off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with Section 10 of these Zoning Regulations, i.e.,
two spaces per dwelling unit.

2. An application for a Housing Opportunity Development shall identify on the Master and Final Site Plan the location
and number of parking spaces that will serve all units located in common interest ownership areas.

1. SIGNAGE REQUIREMENTS

1. Signage within a Housing Opportunity Development shall comply with Section 9 of these Zoning Regulations.

2. The Master Site Plan and Subdivision Plan for an HOD shall depict the conceptual design and location of all proposed
signage, and the Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan shall depict all proposed signage as required by Section 9 of these
Zoning Regulations.

J. TRASH REMOVAL

The Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan for a Housing Opportunity Development shall provide for the number, location,
and screening of dumpsters or trash receptacles at community facilities. For individual units, the Final Site Plan and
Subdivision Plan shall provide for trash storage and removal.

K. LANDSCAPING

Landscaping of buffers and perimeters and the aesthetic quality achieved thereby shall be considered a critical part of
the Master and Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan for a Housing Opportunity Development. Such Plans, therefore, shall
provide at a minimum for the following:

1. All roads to be built to Town standards and dedicated to the Town shall be planted with deciduous trees, 50
feet on center, on both sides of the road.

2. The landscaping plan shall provide, for all dwellings except single-family detached dwellings on subdivided
lots, one or more shade trees, along with an illustration or detail of minimum foundation plantings.

3. The landscaping plan shall provide for all tree belts to be planted with two rows of deciduous trees at a
minimum of 50 feet on center.

4. The landscaping plan shall provide in all perimeter buffers (as defined in this Regulation) plantings to achieve
screening from adjacent properties.

L. LIGHTING

A Master and Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan for a Housing Opportunity Development shall provide, with illustrative
detail, for exterior street lighting fixtures at intersections of Town roads, and as may be required for the safety of
vehicular or pedestrian traffic.

M. UTILITIES
1. All electrical and telephone lines shall be located underground in conformance with Town highway specifications.

2. No certificate of zoning compliance shall be issued for any dwelling unit until such unit has been connected to all
required utilities.

58 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



N. EARTH DISTURBANCE FOR SITE PREPARATION

When the construction of a Housing Opportunity Development requires, for environmental purposes, the excavation or
mixing of on-site earth materials but not off removal, the Master Site Plan and Subdivision Plan shall be accompanied by
a report, prepared by a licensed professional engineer, explaining the need and environmental basis for such excavation
or mixing, and the written opinion of such engineer that such activity is necessary to allow residential use of the
property; will not involve off-site removal of the material; and can be accomplished in a manner consistent with public
safety. The Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan shall be accompanied by a plan, prepared by a licensed professional
engineer, for the physical conduct of such excavation or mixing.

O. SITE PLAN AND SUBDIVISION PLAN REQUIREMENTS

Due to the substantial minimum acreage of a parcel eligible for Housing Opportunity Development, the sequence of site
plans and subdivision plans for an HOD shall be as follows:

1. With an application to the Simsbury Zoning Commission and the Simsbury Planning Commission for
approval of a Housing Opportunity Development, an applicant shall submit the following information in the form of a
Master Site Plan and Subdivision Plan:
(a) Key Map at 1”7 = 800’ scale.
(b) Map at 1” = 300’ scale depicting existing zoning of parcel to be rezoned and zones of
adjacent land,
(c) 500 foot perimeter map, with Assessor’s parcels listed.
(d) Information at scale 1” = 100’:
(1) Title block, north point, scale, location map, and names of the engineer,
architect, landscape architect, or surveyor preparing the plan. Seals shall be
provided at signing of mylars.
(2) Approval blocks.

(3) Boundaries of property, certified to a State of Connecticut A-2 Map Survey Standard, of
area to be rezoned to HOD.

(4) Existing and proposed contours at not more than two (2) foot vertical intervals.
Wetlands as defined by soil type and flood- plains shall be delineated.

(5) Existing and proposed roads, pedestrian walkways, driveways, loading and parking areas
and spaces.

(6) For off-site traffic improvements, a development plan with existing and proposed
conditions;

(7) Location and dimension of all existing and proposed buildings, structures, walls, and

area fences.
Building setback lines shall be shown.

(8) Location, nature, and extent of watercourses and waterbodies.

(9) Location, size, and design of existing and proposed storm drainage, sewage disposal,
and water supply facilities. Design calculations, soil types, deep test hole data, and
percolation test data shall be shown for on-site sewage disposal systems.

(10) Location, size, and type of proposed landscaping including existing trees of 24 or more
inches in diameter, measured at a trunk height of three feet above the ground. Heavily
wooded areas shall be shown by foliage lines.

(11) Location, dimensions, and conceptual design of all proposed exterior signs.

(12) Location and design of all proposed street lighting.

(13)  An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan and narrative prepared in accordance with the
document entitled “Connecticut Guidelines For Soil Erosion and Sediment Control”
prepared by the Connecticut Council on Soil and Water Conservation, dated January
1985. The Zoning Commiission shall review and certify said Plan and shall direct its
designated agents to inspect for compliance with said Plan.

(14)  Conceptual renderings, elevations, and floor plans.

59| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



(15) Preliminary grading plan.

(16) Preliminary utilities plan.

(17) Preliminary profiles for roads to be constructed to Town standards and dedicated to the
Town.

(18)  Traffic study prepared by a licensed engineer.

(19) If earth excavation is proposed as set forth in Section N of this HOD Regulation, a report
describing need and environmental basis for excavation.

(20) Open space plan identifying the areas of the development that will be open space; the
areas and facilities to be used for active or passive recreation; connections to existing
Town open space; areas that will be conveyed to the Town as open space; and any
improvements, structures, buildings, or accessory uses to be located in open space.

(21) Phasing plan, explaining the sequence of construction of the development areas in
coordination with construction of infrastructure and recreational uses.

(22) Draft common interest ownership documents prepared in accordance with this HOD
Regulation.

(23)  Asrequired by Section 8.2(0) of this HOD Regulation, an Affordability Plan explaining
the administration of affordability restrictions and covenants.

(e) Information at scale 1’ = 40:

e Allinformation required by the Simsbury Inland Wetlands and Watercourses
Regulations for any regulated activities to be conducted as part of the construction of
the HOD.

2. Approval by the Zoning Commission and Planning Commission (and, if applicable, the Commission having
jurisdiction over inland wetlands and watercourses) of the Master Site Plan and Subdivision Plan shall constitute an
approval of such Plans that are conditional upon the submission and approval of a Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan as
set forth below. Following approval of a Master Plan, the applicant shall submit for review and approval, prior to the
time that each phase is designated for construction, a Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan containing all of the remaining
information required by Section 11000 of the Zoning Regulations with respect to site plan requirements, and with
respect to subdivided lots all of the remaining information required by the Simsbury Subdivision Regulations, such
submissions to be at the scale required by those Regulations.

3. After approval of a Master Site Plan and Subdivision Plan, submission of Final Site Plan and Subdivision
Plan shall not constitute a new subdivision or site plan application under the General Statutes or Town Zoning or
Subdivision Regulations, so long as (1) Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan is in substantial conformance with the
approved Master Site Plan and Subdivision Plan.

4. Duration Of Final Site Plan Approval. In accordance with § 8-3 and §8-26g of the General Statutes,
approval of a site plan and subdivision plan, respectively, as part of a Final Site Plan and Subdivision Plan, may require
completion of all work in connection with such plans within ten years.

5. Start Of Construction. Construction of each phase of an approved HOD shall commence within one year
of the written designation of each phase by the developer as being ready for construction, and each phase, including
public improvements, shall be completed within three years of the start of construction of such phase, provided that the
overall HOD shall proceed in accordance with this HOD Regulation.

6. Bonding Of Public Improvements Shown On Final Site Plan And Subdivision Plan. When a phase
designated for construction includes a public improvement, the posting of any performance or other bond or financial
security intended to ensure the completion of any such public improvement shall occur prior to the start of construction
of that phase of the HOD.

7. Additional Requirements For A Housing Opportunity Development.

60 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



a. Construction Quality And Location of Units. Housing Opportunity Units shall be of a construction
quality that is comparable to market-rate units within the development. The Final Site Plan and
Subdivision Plan shall identif5t the locations within the HOD of Housing Opportunity Units.

b. Pro-Rata Construction, If the development is to be built in phases, the Housing Opportunity Units
shall be built on a pro rata basis as construction proceeds.

c. Bedroom Ratios. In a Housing Opportunity Development, no Housing Opportunity Unit shall have less
than two bedrooms, and at least thirty percent (30%) of such Units shall have three bedrooms.

d. Monthly Payment. Calculation of the maximum monthly payment for a Housing Opportunity Unit, so
as to satisfy Conn. Gen. Stat § S-30g, shall utilize the area median income data as published by the U. S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (a) for a rental unit, as in effect on the day the lease is
signed; and (b) for an ownership unit, as in effect on the day a bond for deed or similar contract of
conveyance is accepted by the seller.

e. Maximum Monthly Payment. The maximum payment that the occupant for a Housing Opportunity
Unit shall pay shall not be greater than the amount that will preserve such unit as “affordable housing”
as that term is defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 8-30g and shall include the following:

1. For rental housing, the maximum monthly housing payment shall include the cost of rent;
common charges in the case of a rental in a common interest community, if the tenant is
directly responsible; heat; and utility costs, including hot water and electricity, but excluding
telephone and cable television.

2. For ownership housing, the maximum monthly housing payment shall include periodic
mortgage payments, based on a commercially reasonable down payment for affordable housing
buyers and prevailing interest rates at the time of sale; taxes; insurance; common charges in the
case of ownership of a unit in a common interest community; heat; and utility costs, including
hot water and electricity, but excluding telephone and cable television.

f. Principal Residence. Housing Opportunity Units shall be occupied only as a tenant’s or purchaser’s
principal residence. Subletting of Housing Opportunity Units shall be prohibited.

g. Notice Of Availability. At the same time that the market-rate units in a Housing Opportunity
Development are first advertised to the general public, notice of availability of the Housing Opportunity
Units shall be provided by advertising such availability in the real estate section of a newspaper of
general circulation in the Town of Simsbury, and by providing notice to the Simsbury Board of
Selectmen, the Simsbury Town Clerk, the Simsbury Planning Commission, and the Simsbury Zoning
Commission.

h. Prioritization Of Applicants. For one of every five Housing Opportunity Units which becomes available
for initial sale or rental, preference shall be given to applicants who are otherwise qualified and are
Town of Simsbury municipal employees or Simsbury Board of Education employees.

i. Standard Deed Or Lease Provision. Each deed or lease for a Housing Opportunity Unit will contain
substantially the following provision:
This unit is sold or rented as an “affordable housing unit” as defined in Coin. (3en. Stat. § 8-30g,
and is available only to persons or families whose income is at or below eighty percent (80%) or
sixty percent (60%), as applicable, of the area median income for Simsbury or the statewide
median income, whichever is less, as determined by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This development has been approved by agencies of the Town of Simsbury based

61 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



in part on the condition that a defined percentage of units will be preserved as affordable
housing units. The restrictions related to affordability are required by law to be strictly enforced.

j. Utility Allowance for Rental Units. The monthly rent for a Housing Opportunity Unit includes a monthly
allowance for utilities, which are heat, hot water, and electricity, but excluding telephone and cable
television. Heat and utility cots may be calculated by reasonable estimate.

k. Thirty Year Period. The thirty (30) year affordability period shall be calculated separately for each
Housing Opportunity Unit in a Housing Opportunity Development, and the period shall begin on the
date, as defined at closing, of occupancy of the Unit.

|. Affordability Plan. In conjunction with an application for approval of a Master and Final Site Plan and
Subdivision Plan for a Housing Opportunity Development, the applicant shall submit an “Affordability
Plan,” which shall describe how the regulations regarding affordability will be administered. The Plan
shall include provisions for administration of and compliance with the provision of this section, notice
procedures to the general public of the availability of affordable units, identification of those units which
are to be designated affordable, procedures for verification and periodic confirmation of unit occupancy
income, and compliance with affordability requirements. Such Plan shall also include drafts of
documents that will be used in the administration of the affordability restrictions and any explanations
which will be provided to the unit occupants concerning such restrictions.

m. Enforcement. A violation of the Regulations contained in Section 8.2 shall not result in a forfeiture or
reversion of title, but the Zoning Commission shall otherwise retain all enforcement powers granted by
the Connecticut General Statutes, including the authority under § 8-12 to issue notices of violation, to
impose fines, and to seek injunctive relief.

8.3 WORKFORCE HOUSING OVERLAY ZONE

PURPOSE:

The Workforce Housing Overlay Zone (WHO?Z) is intended to create additional housing opportunities within Simsbury
while promoting the appropriate development of Simsbury’s historic Town center and other areas of the community.

A. NATURE OF ZONE

1.

2.

The WHOZ exists in addition to the current (underlying) zone for the property.

The WHOZ enables a property owner to apply for approval of a housing development using the
provisions of this Section instead of those for the underlying zone.

The provisions of the WHOZ are an option for the property owner and such owner would voluntarily
choose to comply with these provisions when or if new housing as authorized herein is proposed.

In the event any conflict between the provisions of this Section and any other Section of the
Regulations, the provisions of this Section shall control.

B. PROCESS

The overall process for development within a WHOZ district includes:

a. Establishment of the WHOZ district (a zone change application to the Zoning Commission in
accordance with Section 14 of these Regulations) including a declaration of the proposed type of
sub-district and plans and drawings depicting the proposed development,

b. Approval of a Special Permit and accompanying Site Plan by the Zoning Commission in accordance
with Sections 11 and Section 12 of these Regulations,

c. Filing of approved plans, and

62| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



C.

d.

Issuance of building permits by the Town of Simsbury

Pre-application meetings for any proposed development are strongly recommended.

DESCRIPTION OF SUB-DISTRICTS

Due to the diversity of desired development patterns in different parts of Simsbury, the Workforce Housing Overlay

Zone consists of six (6) different sub-districts as reflected on the zoning map:

1. Mixed Use (WHOZ-MXD) —Simsbury Center and other areas with potential for development with mixed use
developments and/or buildings.

2. Mixed Housing (WHOZ-MXH) —a development including a combination of housing types.

3. Multi-Family (WHOZ-MF) —existing mill buildings and other areas with potential for development with multi-
family housing.

4. Townhouse (WHOZ-TH) —areas with potential for residential townhouse development (a residential building
consisting of three or more attached units in which each unit shares a wall extending from foundation to roof
with the adjacent unit(s) and has exterior walls on at least two sides).

5. Duplex (WHOZ-DX) —areas with potential for development with duplex housing units designed to be compatible
with single-family units in adjacent residential neighborhoods.

6. Single Family (WHOZ-SF) —areas with potential for development with single-family units compatible with
adjacent residential neighborhoods.

D.

PERMITTED PRINCIPAL PLANS

The following uses are permitted in the various sub-districts subject to granting of a Special Permit by the Zoning

Commission:

1. Mixed Use |a. Mixed use development and/or mixed use buildings with a residential density at up to 20 units /
acre of site area (not including any area designated as wetland, watercourse, slopes greater than
25 percent, or 100-year floodplain).

b. Uses and structures accessory thereto.
2. Mixed a. Two or more housing types at maximum densities for each as provided herein.
Housing b. Uses and structures accessory thereto.
3. Multi- a. Multi-family residential development at up to 20 units / acre of site area (not including any area
Family designated as wetland, watercourse, slopes greater than 25 percent, or 100-year floodplain).
b. Uses and structures accessory thereto.

4. Townhouse |a. Townhouse residential development at up to 10 units / acre of site area (not including any area

designated as wetland, watercourse, slopes greater than 25 percent, or 100-year floodplain).
b. Uses and structures accessory thereto.

5. Duplex a. Duplex residential development (two-unit buildings) at up to 10 units / acre of site area (not
including any area designated as wetland, watercourse, slopes greater than 25 percent, or 100-
year floodplain).

b. Uses and structures accessory thereto.
6. Single a. Single family residential development at up to 6 units / acre of site area (not including any area
Family designated as wetland, watercourse, slopes greater than 25 percent, or 100-year floodplain).
b. Uses and structures accessory thereto.
E. DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS

The dimensional standards of the underlying zone shall continue to apply except that the Zoning Commission may,
through granting of a separate Special Permit, modify any dimensional standard in order to:

63| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020




Facilitate the creation of housing opportunities as provided in this Section.
Address on-site constraints or protect important resources.

Enhance the development and/or surrounding neighborhoods.

Be consistent with the setbacks of nearby buildings.

PwnNE

HOUSING AFFORDIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

At least twenty percent (20%) of all dwelling units constructed in a development approved under this Section of the
Regulations shall be deed-restricted to be affordable to and occupied by households earning 80 percent or less of
the area median income for Simsbury, as determined and reported by the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD).

When a calculation performed under this subsection results in a number that includes a fraction, the fraction shall
be rounded up to the next higher whole number.

Each such affordable unit shall be subject to a housing restriction acceptable to the Town Attorney and the Zoning
Commission, which shall be recorded on the Simsbury Land Records and shall, at a minimum, include the following:

e Anidentification of the affordable housing units within the development.

e A requirement that such affordable unit shall only be occupied by a household earning 80 percent or less of
the area median income for Simsbury, as determined and reported by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

e A statement of whether the affordable units will, at the time of initial occupancy, be rented or owner-
occupied.

e A statement of the method for determining the rental rate or sale price or resale price of an affordable
housing unit at any point in time.

e A statement that the term of the deed restriction for each affordable unit shall be a minimum of thirty (30)
years from the date of first occupancy of that affordable unit.

The applicant shall prepare and submit a final “Housing Affordability Plan” in accordance with CGS § 8-30g, section
8-30g-1 et seq. of the Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies and the “Housing Affordability Plan Requirements”
as adopted by the policy of the Zoning Commission and as the same may be amended from time to time, including:

e The name and address of the proposed administrator of the deed restricted affordable units.

e Provision that the proposed administrator shall file an annual report to the Zoning Commission by January
31, in a form specified by the Zoning Commission, certifying compliance with the provisions of this Section.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

Unless otherwise approved by the Zoning Commission, all developments approved under this Section shall be served
by public water and public sewer.

Unless otherwise approved by the Zoning Commission, any development approved under this Section shall provide
for off-street parking as follows :

a. As provided in Section 6.2 of the Town Center Code, or
b. As provided in Section 10 of the Simsbury Zoning Regulations.

Any developments proposed under this Section shall, unless modified by the Zoning Commission, construct or
improve the sidewalks abutting the project site in order to enhance the pedestrian nature and character of the
proposed development and the surrounding area.

The subject property shall be located within a linear distance of 750 feet from Hopmeadow Street.

BUILDING DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION GUIDELINES

64 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Since design of buildings and sites is an important part of integrating housing at permissible densities into the
community, all development in the WHOZ shall be referred to the Design Review Board and it is expressly stated that
the quality of the overall design of any development will be an important consideration as part of the granting of any
Special Permit.

1. Overall Character

a.

Proposed development projects should enhance the general flavor of a historic New England community and,
where appropriate, complement the scale and architecture of adjacent buildings.

An overall design theme (including building placement, building massing, exterior treatments, signage and other
design considerations) shall be established where harmony in textures, lines, and masses is provided and
monotony is avoided.

The illustrative WHOZ design guidelines on the following pages shall be used by applicants and the Zoning
Commission as a general reference for desirable characteristics of buildings and sites.

Within the Town Center area, the design and site development provisions of the Town Center Code shall also be
used, when appropriate.

The “Guidelines for Community Design” established by the Design Review Board shall also be used as a
reference for desirable characteristics of buildings and sites.

A desirable streetscape and attractive landscape transitions to adjoining properties shall be provided.

Landscape treatment shall be provided to enhance architectural features, shield unsightly areas, provide shade,
and relate to the natural environment and topography.

2. Building Placement

a.

b.

C.

d.

Buildings shall be organized in a coordinated and functional manner that is compatible with site features and the
desirable characteristics of adjoining areas.

In general, new buildings shall be placed near to the public street and shall be oriented with the main fagade
parallel to the public street in order to strengthen the overall streetscape. The Zoning Commission may modify
or waive this requirement when the applicant demonstrates that a greater setback or alternative orientation
(such as the main fagade perpendicular to the street) will enhance the overall effect of a historic New England
community and/or allow for the creation of a public amenity (such as a wider sidewalk, a public seating area,
etc.).

Off-street parking and loading shall not be located between buildings and a public street unless approved by the
Zoning Commission and any parking area visible from a public street or public sidewalk, shall be screened with
landscaping, walls, fencing, or combination thereof.

Buildings shall be designed and located on the site so as to retain the existing topography and desirable natural
features of the land to the extent feasible.

3. Building Mass

a.

b.

C.

d.

Monolithic building forms shall be avoided through the use of variations in wall placement, color, texture and/or
material and variations in the height of buildings or use of architectural features such as balconies, cornices,
step-backs, or other articulating features.

The height and scale of each building shall be compatible with its site and the existing or planned character of
the area.

Architectural features shall be evaluated based on the scale of the building(s), the quality of the design, and the
relationship to surroundings.

Facades and rooflines shall be articulated and/or varied to reduce the appearance of inappropriate bulk and
provide architectural interest.

4. Exterior Materials and Colors

a.

Exterior building materials and their placement on a building shall be consistent with the overall look of a
historic New England community.

65| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



b.

Building materials shall have durable quality and shall be selected for harmony or compatibility of the building
with adjoining desirable materials.

5. Doorways and Windows

a.

In mixed use and multi-family developments, recessed doorways are preferred. Where a recessed doorway is
not used, an awning or similar architectural overhang is encouraged. Adequate lighting for the doorway shall be
incorporated into the design of the doorway.

Windows should be taller than they are wide and windows on upper floors should not be larger than windows
on lower floors.

Windows should be inset from the exterior wall surface and shall have visually prominent sills, lintels, or other
forms of architectural detailing to add visual relief to the wall.

6. Roofs and Mechanical Equipment

a.

Roof forms should be appropriate for a historic New England community and complement the principal building
in terms of style, detailing, and materials.

Roof overhangs (eaves and cornices) should be a minimum of two feet (2’) or as appropriate to the proposed
architecture.

Any mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view using landscaping, walls, fencing, parapets or
other architectural elements, or combination thereof.

Utility and service equipment areas shall be screened from public view with materials compatible with the
building.

ILLISTRATIVE WHOZ DESIGN GUIDELINES

lllustrative WHOZ Design Guidelines - Single Family Dwellings

Favorable Design Unfavorable Design|
Treatments|

66 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Design Elements Which Are Encouraged / Required Discouraged Elements

e 1.5t0 2.5 story buildings e 1.0 story buildings

e Building comprised of distinct parts with smaller footprints e Monolithic forms

e Articulated forms and facades e Flat facades

e Rich architectural details (porches, eaves, shutters, e Limited architectural detailing
columns, dormers, chimneys, trim, etc.) e Plain facades

e C(Classically proportioned facades e Flatter roofs

e Entrances face the street e  Windows with horizontal

e Pitched roofs proportions

e Windows with vertical proportions e Weak relationship to street /

e Strong relationship to street / sidewalk sidewalk

e Parking on-street or behind buildings e Dominant garages / parking

lllustrative WHOZ Design Guidelines — Duplex / Townhouse Dwellings
Favorable Design Treatments Unfavorable Design Treatments|

Duplex Dwellings

67 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Design Elements Which Are Encouraged / Required Discouraged Elements

e 2.0to 2.5 story buildings (or as appropriate to site e 1.0 story buildings
context) e Monolithic forms
e Articulated forms and facades and materials e Overly repetitive forms
e Good architectural details (porches, eaves, shutters, e Monotonous materials
columns, dormers, chimneys, trim, etc.) e Flat facades
o Well proportioned facades e Limited architectural
e Good building materials detailing
e Pitched roofs e Plain facades
e Windows with vertical proportions e Flatter roofs
e Strong relationship to street / sidewalk e Windows with horizontal
e Parking on-street or behind buildings proportions
e Single-family appearance for duplex buildings e Weak relationship to street /
e Entrances face the street sidewalk
e Dominant garages / parking
e Entrances face parking areas

lllustrative WHOZ Design Guidelines — Multi-Family Dwellings and Mixed Use Buildings

Favorable Design Unfavorable Design Treatments

Treatments

Multi-Family Dwellings Mixed Use Buildings

68 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Design Elements Which Are Encouraged / Required Discouraged Elements

e 2.0to 3.5 story buildings (or as appropriate to site e 5.0+ story buildings
context) e Monolithic forms
e Articulated forms and facades e Flat facades
e Good architectural details (lintels, dormers, trim, etc.) e Limited architectural detailing
e Classically proportioned facades e Plain facades
e Entrances face the street e Windows with horizontal
e Adaptive re-use of historic buildings proportions
e Pitched roofs / flat roofs, deep cornices e Weak relationship to street /
e  Windows with vertical proportions sidewalk
e Strong relationship to street / sidewalk e Dominant parking
e Mixed use — strong glass presentation on first floor

8.4 ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY, CONGREGATE SENIOR HOUSING FACILITY OR CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT
COMMUNITY
1. Intent

The purpose of an Assisted Living Facility, Congregate Senior Housing Facility or Continuing Care Retirement Community
is to provide an alternative living arrangement to meet the special needs of the population over 55 years of age,
including those who are physically or mentally handicapped or who need supportive care. Supportive care, (such as meal
services, assistance with activities of daily living, and transportation), may be provided to an individual on a permanent
or temporary basis and may vary from little or no services for an individual, to full supportive services, depending upon
the needs of the individual. This provision recognizes housing and care facilities for those age 55 and over as having less
impact than other higher density housing options, and therefore meriting separate consideration. Furthermore,
provision of specially designed housing units under this regulation is in keeping with the goals and objectives for housing
diversity as set forth in the 2007 Plan of Conservation and Development for the Town of Simsbury. In approving this
section, the Commission finds that all such facilities are best located in transitional areas between residential
neighborhoods and business or commercial areas, and adjacent to arterial streets. Said facilities shall be designed to be
of similar scale, mass, and architectural design of surrounding residential land uses.

2. Procedure

The Zoning Commission may after public notice and hearing grant a Special Exception for the construction of an Assisted
Living Facility, Congregate Senior Housing Facility or Continuing Care Retirement Community in any applicable zone.
Applications for such Special Exceptions shall be made on forms provided by the Commission and shall include a site
plan prepared in accordance Section 11.2. The Commission shall utilize criteria contained in Section 12.1 in evaluating
the application.

3. Location

69| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



No site shall be approved unless it is for property on an arterial road or another road which meets the criteria for a
collector road. Items to be considered in the review of such a site plan shall include:

a. Pavement width

b. Adequate sub-base construction

c. Drainage characteristics

d. Road conditions and geometry as compared to the volume of traffic and other characteristics

e. Such development may not be a local road which serves primarily as access to a single family residential area.
4. Utilities

Proposed sites shall be serviced by public water and public sewers with documented capacity and allocation to serve the
proposed facility.

5. Other Site Requirements

Buildings shall be sited and landscaping and buffer areas provided to assure privacy to the residents and adjoining uses.
The Zoning Commission shall have the authority to determine if the architectural design, scale and mass of buildings,
including exterior building materials, colors, roof lines, and building elevations is of a character to harmonize with and
preserve the appearance of the surrounding area. Mechanical equipment and refuse containers shall be screened from
view.

6. Drives and Access and Egress Points

Internal circulation shall provide for the easy movement of vehicles, pedestrian traffic including handicapped pedestrian
movement, and convenient access of emergency vehicles. All internal circulation roads shall be constructed in
accordance with Highway Construction and Design Standards for the Town of Simsbury. At the Commission’s discretion,
said standards may be reduced in order to maintain a design which is consistent with or complements the character of
the Town of Simsbury.

7. Building Types

A structure or groups of structures may include any one or a combination of the following: (i) a free standing building
containing multiple residential units; (ii) groups of buildings containing multiple residential units; (iii) groups of buildings
with a maximum of four attached units and/or single unit buildings.

8. General

No approval shall be granted which would be detrimental to the public safety, create or increase traffic hazards, or is not
in keeping with the stated intent of these regulations.

9. Age Restrictions

Occupancy of Assisted Living Facilities, Congregate Senior Housing Facilities or Continuing Care Retirement Community is
restricted to those 55 or older to the extent allowed by Federal and State Fair Housing laws and any other applicable
laws and subject to the following exceptions:

a. If a couple occupies a unit, one member of the couple must meet the minimum age limit as defined by
Federal and State Fair Housing laws and any other applicable laws; and

b. A dwelling unit may be occupied by the surviving member of a household, regardless of age and any
other applicable laws; and
70 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



C. The operator of the facility shall verify, on an annual basis, to the Zoning Enforcement Officer that the
facility is in compliance with the age requirements of this Section. Such verification shall include
submittal of copies of any reports, forms or other documents required to be maintained and/or

submitted pursuant to and evidencing compliance with Federal and State Fair Housing Laws.

10. Bulk, Area, and Site Requirements
Minimum Parcel Size 5 Acres
Maximum Coverage
Residential Zones 25%

Non-residential Zones

As Required in Underlying Zone

Maximum Density
Assisted Living Facility

Congregate Senior Housing

Lot Area Per Unit
2,000 Square Feet/Unit

3,000 Square Feet/Unit

residential Zones

Minimum Front Side/Rear Yard. Non-

Minimum Frontage, Overall Parcel 200 Feet
Minimum Yards, Residential Zones
Front 100 Feet
Side 100 Feet
Rear 100 Feet

As Required in Underlying Zone

Maximum Height

As Required by Underlying Zone except
that in any zone when the lot is in
excess of 40 acres and the location of
the proposed structure’s location is
great than 500 feet from any abutting
residentially used structure that is
located outside the facility property, the
maximum height shall not exceed 65
feet. (amended June 3, 2019)

Distance Between Buildings

50 Feet

Parking Standards
Assisted Living Facility

Congregate Housing Facility

1 Space Per 2 Units

1 Space Per Unit

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

71| Page



8.5 AGRI-TOURISM

A. Purpose:

The purpose of this regulation is to allow Agri-tourism uses in Simsbury, while maintaining the rural
character, preserving farmland, and protecting the health, safety and welfare of the citizens. Agri-tourism
presents a unique opportunity to combine aspects of tourism and agriculture to provide a number of
financial, educational and social benefits to the community while allowing farmers to supplement their
farming activities with activities and events directly related to the farm and farming.

Ag-Activities and Agricultural Events

Ag-Activities and Agricultural Events are considered to be customary and incidental to the operation of a
farm and therefore these uses are as of right.

B. General Requirements for Non-Agriculturally Related Uses:

1.

10.

Parcel Size: The minimum parcel size shall have 10 acres. Multiple parcels under the same
ownership may be included. All parcels must be owned and occupied by the applicant.

Neighboring premises: The proposed use and improvements shall not adversely affect the
enjoyment, usefulness and value of premises in the general neighborhood thereof. The location
of outdoor events and activities shall take into consideration the current use of the surrounding
properties. The Commission may require specific separating distances and/or appropriate buffer
strips with plantings, fences, or walls that screen the activity from adjacent properties.

Parking: No parking shall occur within 100 feet of any abutting residential property line. The
applicant shall demonstrate that the parking spaces are of sufficient number to accommodate the
proposed use. There shall be no on-street parking.

Noise: Amplified music is allowed Sunday through Thursday 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and Friday
and Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. No noise shall exceed 75DB at the property line.

Lighting: Lighting shall be contained to the property and shall not emit outside of the property
boundaries onto abutting properties or the public right-of-ways.

Number of Events: The number of events to be held shall be specified. Non-agricultural related
events shall be limited to 15 times within a calendar year.

Approval for operation of a child care facility such, as summer day camp, is not subject to this
section of the regulations.

Hours of Operations: the hours of operation for all activities shall not begin before 9:00 a.m. nor
finish after 10:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday. Friday and Saturday hours of operation shall
be 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. These times do not include event set up or clean up.

Temporary Structures- Temporary accessory structures such as tents shall not exceed 4800 sq. ft.
of floor area. Temporary structures shall not remain up for more than 6 months in a calendar
year.

Overnight Lodging: No overnight lodging is allowed for non-agricultural events

72 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



C. Approval Process:
Non-Agriculturally related uses

A site plan approval is required, provided events are limited to no more than 15 times per calendar year for any
site and that all other applicable zoning, building, fire and State codes are satisfied.

Once a site plan has been approved, approval for non-agricultural related uses may be granted administratively by
the Zoning Enforcement Officer. Should the property change ownership, approval for non-agriculturally related
uses site plan must be by new property owner.

Additionally, if, in the opinion of the Zoning Enforcement Officer, there is a concern with any information
provided as part of the application process, or if complaints were received from the previous year’s events, the
Zoning Enforcement Officer may refer the application to the Zoning Commission for site plan approval.

a. Application Requirements:

The location of the parcel(s) to be used for the events, by street address or assessor’s parcel number,
Documentation of an agricultural or farming principal use.
The specific types of event(s) to be conducted,
The date of such event(s),
The maximum number of attendees for each event requested,
A site plan may be required if deemed necessary by the Commission; however, at a minimum of plan
drawn to scale showing areas of parking, event location, lighting, distance to nearest property/residence
and other necessary information for the Commission to make a decision is required.
g. An agricultural or farming principal use shall be determined by the Commission and is required for any
application for these accessory uses. Supporting documentation, to be provided by the applicant, shall
provide a copy of the following:
i. The Tax Assessor’s designation of the parcel as PA 490 (Farmland, Open Space, Forest Land)
ii. Farmer’s Tax Exemption Certificate (issued by the Department of Revenue Services, State of
Connecticut)

~® a0 o

73| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 9 SIGN REGULATIONS BY ZONE

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this section is to further promote the public health, safety and welfare by providing adequate standards
to control the location, height, size, number, illumination and overall design of signs. The specific requirements and
standards of this section have been formulated to prevent undue distraction of motorists and pedestrians, to insure
compatibility of signs with permitted land uses, to provide reasonable standards by which uses within various zones may
relate their function to the general public, and to preserve the general welfare by controlling the aesthetics and
attractiveness of signs in order to:

a. protect the residential, commercial, industrial and recreational character of each zone;
b. mitigate any negative impact on adjoining properties;
[ assist in achieving a more desirable environment in order to maintain property value and to

encourage economic growth.

The general sign guidelines and standards provided for in this section are intended to offer town residents and
businesses a basic introduction to the key elements of importance in signage, as well as to encourage both creativity and
innovation in sign design.

9.1 RESIDENTIAL ZONES
Only the following signs are permitted:

a. One nameplate or sign per dwelling unit giving only the name of the occupant or use of
the premises not to exceed one (1) square foot and historic information signs not to
exceed two (2) square feet. Condominium or Apartment complexes and housing
approved under Cluster Zone Regulations may display one (1) sign not to exceed
twenty (20) square feet provided such sign is shown on an approved site plan.

b. One real estate sign not to exceed six (6) square feet in area, advertising the sale or
lease of the premises on which the sign is displayed, except that a sign not over thirty-
two (32) square feet advertising the sale or lease of the premises on which the sign is
displayed, except that a sign not over (32) feet with a maximum height of six (6) feet
may be allowed under a Temporary Sign Permit issued by the Zoning Enforcement
Officer for a period of not more than six (6) months to advertise a [real estate
development] new subdivision or cluster development.

[ A contractor's sign not over thirty-two (32) square feet in area and a maximum height of
six (6) feet when displayed on the premises, while active construction is in progress,
may be allowed under a Temporary Sign Permit provided the site has received site plan
approval. A temporary contractor's sign, not to exceed twelve (12) square feet in area or
a height greater than three (3) feet, may be allowed under a temporary sign permit
issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer in conjunction with an active Building Permit.

74| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



9.2 NON-RESIDENTIAL ZONES

Bulletin boards on premises of churches and educational institutions not over twelve
(12) square feet in area and shown on an approved site plan.

A farm identification sign affixed to a farm structure or as a free-standing element
provided, however, that the sign area does not exceed twenty (20) square feet and
shown on an approved site plan. A sign identifying farm produce for sale on a seasonal
basis provided that the sign does not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet and is shown on
an approved site plan or a Farm Identification Sign or farm symbol painted on a wall
may be permitted as a Special Exception.

A sign identifying a use granted by special exception provided that the sign area does
not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet and is shown on an approved site plan.

Traffic directional signs and public notice and warning signs, political signs (including
signs which express personal opinion about any subject), any signs required by any
other code, ordinance or law i.e. Foreclosure, Liquor Permit, or going-out-of-Business
signs. Such signs shall not exceed six (6) square feet or the minimum size required by the
pertinent code, ordinance or law. These signs shall be removed within one week after
the event to which they pertain.

In the Business, Professional, Office, and Industrial Zoning Districts and the Simsbury Center Zone, the following signs
are permitted provided that their dimension, location, and approval complies with the conditions of this regulation:

a.

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

Those permitted in residence zones.

Business signs for permitted uses which have received approval from the Zoning
Commission through the Site Plan or Sign Plan Approval process. See Section 9115 for
Sign Plan Requirements

Temporary window signs not to exceed an additional twenty-five (25) percent of the
allowable square footage based upon the building frontage. For the purposes of this
regulation, merchandise displayed in a window, with descriptive information, which is
not legible from more than forty (40) feet outside of the building, shall not constitute a
sign.

Vehicular or Pedestrian Traffic Directional Signs which are shown on an approved Site
Plan, however, the total area of traffic directional signs shall not be included in the
calculations for the total allowed square footage.

Signs affixed to vehicles which are used on a day to day basis by the business which they
advertise (i.e. delivery vehicles, tow trucks, or vehicles which carry equipment away
from the business office).

Signs on property for which no Site or Sign Plans have been approved, provided a Permit

has been issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer certifying that the sign complies with
the following pre-approved specifications:

75| Page



Size: No more that 24" x 30" 11/2" border with
1/8" inline border 1/4" from the 1 1/2" border with 1/4"
concave detail in the inside edge of the perimeter trim,
with 1 1/2" inverted radius corners.

Colors: Backgrounds shall be white or off-white (10 parts white
to 1 1/2 parts ivory). Border colors shall be dark green,
maroon or black.

Materials: The sign shall be made of wood.

Lettering: Optima style print letters in black Letters - 3" high,
maximum Numbers - 1 1/2" high, maximum

Contact: 3 lines, maximum, for business name, street number at
bottom center with a black horizontal line separating
the business name from the street number.

Mounting: Wall Arm Posts All mounts must be painted the same
color as the border or the background of the sign.

9.3 SIGN DESIGN STANDARDS
The following design standards shall be utilized in evaluating proposed signs in all zones:

a.

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

Each lot or combination of lots shown on one common site plan shall be allowed one (1)
free standing sign. The total area of all wall, canopy and free standing signs shall be one
(1) square foot of signage for every running foot of building frontage(s) except that in no
case shall any free standing sign be more than thirty-two (32) square feet.

Wall signs shall not exceed two-third (2/3) of the length of the building frontage, but in
no case, shall exceed the total sign area specified in 9114 (a) above.

Free standing signs shall not exceed ten (10) feet in total height (including all supporting
structures), as measured at the average grade, or twelve (12) feet in length (including all
supporting structures). The minimum height from the ground to the bottom of the sign
area shall be twenty-four (24) inches.

Free-standing signs shall be adequately landscaped at ground level for a minimum
horizontal distance of four (4) feet from the base and a minimum vertical distance of
twelve (12) inches from ground level. Plant material shall consist primarily of low-
growing evergreen shrubs, however, low-growing deciduous shrubs, annuals and/or
perennial flowering plants and/or groundcovers may be used in the planting bed.

Signs attached to walls shall not project more than fifteen (15) inches from the surface
to which they are attached.

Except as may be required by Building, Fire or other Life Safety Code, no sign shall be
attached to any tree, fence, utility pole or be permitted to be painted directly onto any
pavement or opaque wall of any building or structure. Permanent signs limited to letters,
numbers and logos shown on an approved Sign or Site Plan may be affixed to window.
Temporary signs may be affixed to windows as allowed in Section 9.2 (c)

76 | Page



g All signs allowed under this section shall be located within the property lines of the site that
they are intended to serve. In no case shall any part of the sign or supporting structure
project beyond the property line.

h. Signs may be externally lighted or back-lit, but shall be designed so as not to allow any light
to project through the face of the sign nor shall the lights themselves make up the lettering.

i Any property containing more than two (2) businesses shall submit a unified sign plan.
Multiple signs required for multiple uses on single zoning lots or multiple uses shown on a
combined site plan shall be limited to the square footage specified in this section and further
shall be limited to one (1) wall or canopy sign per use and one (1) free-standing sign for the
total parcel. The Commission may, by Special Exception, allow more signs where, in its
judgment, the specified use and its related sign requirements are of such peculiar or
extraordinaty nature as to require such variation.

See Section| [for specific prohibitions /[Comment [SG5]: ?

9.4 SIGN PLAN REQUIREMENTS
Submit an application for the sign plan along with the required fee. The application must include:

a. A map of the property, or at least enough of the property to clearly indicate where the
sign will be erected;

b. A detailed plan of the proposed sign showing the dimensions, colors, and materials of
the sign and all supporting structures, the lighting and the landscaping (a full color
drawing would be helpful).

The Commission shall consider the size, scale, landscaping, and support of the sign in
relation to its specific location, purpose of the sign, other buildings and signs in the
immediate vicinity and how closely the sign conforms to the Town of Simsbury's Design
Guidelines.

9.5 TEMPORARY SIGNS
1. Temporary Outdoor Signs for Public Purposes

Temporary outdoor signs for charitable, civic, or non-profit purposes shall be permitted in all zones by Permit
issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer under the following conditions:

a. A Temporary Sign Permit is issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer. The
application, which clearly states the size and location of the sign(s) and clearly
indicates that the owner of the property has approved of the sign's posting,
must be completed and signed by the applicant.

b. No permit shall exceed sixty (60) days and the sign shall be removed by the
applicant upon expiration of the Permit.

[ No temporary sign authorized under this sub-section shall exceed 32 square
feet.
2. Temporary Signs for Business Purposes.

The following temporary signs shall be allowed by Permit from the Zoning Enforcement Officer in the
Simsbury Center Zone, the Professional Office Zone, all Business Zones (B-1, B-2, B-3), and the Industrial I-1
and I-2 Zones.

77| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



1. Temporary sign in lieu of a permanent sign which is pending before the Zoning Commission or an approved
sign which is under construction; under the following conditions:

a. A Temporary Sign Permit is issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer. The
application, which clearly states the size and location of the sign(s), must be
completed and signed by the applicant;

b. The temporary sign shall be affixed to the exterior of the structure or located
within the structure and visible from the exterior and shall not exceed thirty-
two (32) square feet;

c. No Permit for this type of sign shall be valid for more than ninety (90) days or
until the permanent sign has been installed. The sign shall be removed upon
expiration of the Permit;

d. If a new business is opening, or an existing business coming under new
ownership or management on a lot which has a previous sign approval, this
section may be utilized to post a sigh announcing that information, however, in
this case, no Permit shall be issued for more than ninety (90) days.

2. Temporary Signs to Advertise Special Business Events.

One temporary free-standing sign per business advertising a special sale, promotion, or other important
business events shall be permitted four (4) times per calendar year under the following conditions:

a. A Temporary Sign Permit is issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer which
clearly states the size and location of the sign(s), must be completed and signed
by the applicant;

b. Such sign shall not be more than twelve (12) square feet in area nor be more
than four (4) feet in total height;

(o Permits shall be issued in fourteen (14) day increments;

d. No sign shall be placed within the right-of-way of any town or state road nor
obstruct the sign line of any intersection;

e. All signs must be in good repair, and have a professional appearance

f. No sign allowed under this subsection shall be within one hundred fifty (150)
feet of another sign allowed under this subsection.

9.6 PERMANENT SIGNS FOR IDENTIFICATION OR PUBLIC PURPOSES

Permanent signs for municipal, civic, institutional, charitable purposes or signs to identify a subdivision or for nonprofit
purposes are permitted as a special exception in any zone following a public hearing, subject to the conditions listed
below:

a. Written permission from the property owner or agency having jurisdiction over the

property where the sign is to be located shall be obtained.

78 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



9.7 TEMPORARY SIGNS

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

No sign shall exceed twenty (20) square feet, but both sides may be used for a total
display area not to exceed forty (40) square feet.

All signs specified in the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and
Highways" by the U. S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration,
as amended, shall be exempt from the provisions of this section.

Any sign, in any zoning district where a site plan is required, which is not shown on an
approved Site Plan or Sign Plan unless such sign is a temporary or pre-approved sign for
which a Permit has been issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer.

Any sign that no longer advertises a bona fide business, product, service or activity being
conducted. Such sign shall be taken down and removed from the premises by the owner
or his agent thirty (30) days from cessation of the activity.

Movable or portable signs, including those which may be attached to a vehicle when
such vehicle is not an integral part of the operation of the business which the sign
advertises.

Signs which allow light to project through the face of the sign or where the lights
themselves make up the lettering or symbols. Also signs which have flashing, rotating, or
other forms of intermittent lighting are prohibited.

Signs which rotate or are otherwise designed to move.

No sign shall be erected, altered, refurbished or otherwise modified after the effective
date (1990) of this regulation except in accordance with these regulations and after the
receipt of a sign Permit issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer. Signs which are
lawfully non-conforming with respect to these regulations may be maintained and
repaired without the need for any permit from the Zoning Enforcement Officer except
that the signs shall not be changed in any manner which would increase their non-
conformity.

79| Page



SECTION 10 PARKING STANDARDS

10.1 OFF STREET PARKING REGULATIONS
1. Parking Spaces

An application for a building permit for the erection or enlargement of any building or structure for
which off-street parking is hereinafter required, or an application for uses requiring a public hearing
or site plan approval shall be accompanied by a scale plan of not less than 1" = 40' showing parking
area and space, including the means of access and interior circulation and traffic control.

2. Description of Parking Spaces and Areas

Each parking space shall have an area of not less than nine (9) feet by eighteen (18) feet, plus
adequate driveways and aisles. No area shall be credited as a parking space which is in any part also
credited or used as a loading space. All required parking spaces, except for single-family residences,
shall be located on paved surfaces, drained and permanently marked to delineate individual
parking spaces. Parking areas shall be maintained by the owner of the premises.

3. Location of Parking Areas

Parking spaces and circulation drives shall not be located within twenty-five (25) feet of the front
property line or within fifteen (15) feet of the side property line or within ten (10) feet of the rear
property line. The Zoning Commission may reduce the side parking setback by five (5) feet and
require additional landscaping. Where parking areas abut a residential zone, parking spaces and
circulation drives shall not be located within the front, rear, or side yard setbacks. (amended May
15, 2017)

The Zoning Commission may require landscaping, planting, parking islands, and site improvements
to reduce the visual and noise impacts of parking areas.

Parking spaces as required shall be located either on the same lot with the principal use to which it
is accessory or within a radius of five hundred (500) feet of any part of the property which it is
intended to serve, provided however that the area is of the same zoning classification. Joint use of
off-street parking facilities is recommended and permitted provided that the amount of such
facilities shall not be less than the sum of the various users computed in accordance with the
requirements of this section.

4. Parking Space Requirements
In all zones, permanently maintained off-street parking spaces shall be provided in accordance with

the following Parking Space to Gross Floor Area Ratios. The Zoning Commission shall determine the
parking requirement where a specific use is not listed by determining a similar use.

80 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



10.2 PARKING SPACE RATIOS

USE MINIMUM REQUIREMENT PARKING SPACES FOR EACH 500 SQUARE
(1) FEET OF GROSS FLOOR AREA (2)

Single Family D. U. 2 per D. U.
Multi Family D. U. 2 perD. U.
Hospital 2.
Sanitarium 2.
Nursing Home 2.
Corporate Office Headquarters (5) 1.5
Commercial Office 2.5
Commercial Recreation .75
Medical Office 3.3
Retail Stores (3) 3.3
Shopping Centers (4) 2.75
Day Care Facility 1.
Dairy Bars 3.3
Restaurants 3.3
Clubs 3.3
Grills 3.3
Places of Amusement 1 per 3 seats 2.
Public Assembly 2.
Funeral Homes 10.0
Industrial 1.
Manufacturing 1.
Wholesale Trade .25
Warehousing .25
Storage, Retail 2.5
Auto Showrooms 5.
Auto Body Shops 2.
Computer Facilities .5
(1) Minimum requirements shall be in addition to other parking requirements.
(2) Gross floor areas shall not include unfinished basements.
(3) Retail stores up to 10,000 gross square feet.
(4) Retail stores over 10,000 gross square feet.
(5) Corporate Office Headquarters over 50,000 gross square feet.

5. Special Exception to Parking Requirements

The Zoning Commission may, after public notice and hearing, grant a Special Exception to the "Off-
Street Parking Regulations" to:

a. Decrease the number of parking spaces required up to 50 percent by creating a future
reserve parking area shown on the site plan, or

b. Reduce the required dimensions of the individual parking space on up to 50 percent of
the required spaces,

81 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



c. Modify the surface construction requirements of the proposed reserve area to decrease
storm water run-off and increase groundwater infiltration.

d. Modify the surface construction requirements to allow alternative all-weather surfaces.

e. Waive up to twenty five (25%) percent of the total parking requirements for
developments comprised of a mix of land uses which have peak parking demands at
different times of day or week so as to justify an assumption of multiple use of the same
parking spaces. (adopted August 11, 2008)

The Commission may require a site plan prepared in accordance with Section 11 and information
concerning the number of employees, visitors, and other persons expected to use the parking area.
In considering the request for Special Exception, the commission shall consider the standards set
forth in Section 12. As a condition of approval for a decrease in the number of parking spaces
required, (a) above, the site plan shall stipulate that the owner and all successive owners will install
any or all of the reserve spaces, as the Commission deems necessary within six (6) months of the
Commission's request.

6. OFF-STREET LOADING REGULATIONS

a. In any district, in connection with every building or part thereof hereafter erected, having a gross
floor area of 10,000 square feet or more, which is to be occupied by manufacturing, storage,
warehouse, goods display, retail store, wholesale tore, market, hotel, hospital, laundry, dry cleaning,
or other uses similarly requiring the receipt or distribution by vehicles of material or merchandise,
there shall be provided and maintained on the same lot with such building, one (1) loading space for
each 20,000 square feet or major fraction thereof of gross floor area so used in excess of 20,000
square feet.

e Each loading space shall be not less than ten (10) feet in width, twenty-five (25) feet in
length, and fourteen (14) feet in height.

e No such spaces shall be located closer than fifty (50) feet to any other lot in any residential
zone unless wholly within a completely enclosed building or unless enclosed on all sides by
a wall or uniformly painted board fence not less than six (6) feet in height.

82| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION

11 SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS

11.1 SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

A. SITE PLAN APPLICATION

1. Site Plan applications shall be submitted on forms supplied by the Commission for any development of
buildings, structures, activities, or uses designated in the Regulations as requiring Site Plan Approval.

2. Approval may be granted for work that is to be commenced and/or finished in phases provided that no
Zoning Permit shall be issued for any approved phase until a bond with security has been accepted by the
Commission to ensure completion and independent viability of that phase, regardless of the state of
completion of any other phase.

3. Anapplicant is encouraged to delineate contemplated future additions or phased expansion and
accompanying parking, landscaping, lighting, storm drainage on the initial application.

4. Applications for Site Plan Approval shall be accompanied by a class A-2 Survey and:

a.
b.
c.

a narrative description of the proposed development and all proposed uses.

existing and proposed topography

approval of, a copy of an application to, or a statement that no permit is required from the Inland
Wetlands and Water Courses Commission,

a written statement that the applicant has met in the field with the State Department of
Transportation concerning any proposed construction within the State Highway.

an original and three copies of full size detailed plans for review by the Commission.

all site plans shall also be submitted in a PDF digital format (amended/effective 7/28/14)

5. The Commission may require the submission of additional information as is deemed necessary to make a
reasonable review of the application with regard to:

a.

soil conditions - including locations and depth of rock ledge, ground water conditions, and other such
information,

a soils-engineering investigation - including a report addressing the nature, distribution, and strength
of existing soils and conclusions and recommendations for grading procedures and design criteria for
corrective measures,

easements and/or rights-of-way - including copies of any instrument evidencing such a right and a
statement that the applicant has notified such parties of the proposed alterations to the parcel and
the impact such alterations would have on the right

Drainage calculations depicting a zero percent increase of discharge onto neighboring properties
and/or water quality and sediment control.

6. Inthe review of site plans the Commission shall give specific consideration to the design of the following:

A. Traffic Access - That all proposed traffic access ways are:

a. adequate but not excessive in number,
b. adequate in width, grade, sight distances, alignment and visibility; and
c. not located too near street corners or other places of public assembly.

B. Circulation and Parking:

a. that adequate off-street parking and loading spaces are provided to prevent parking in public
streets of vehicles of any persons connected with or visiting the use, and

b. that the interior circulation system is adequate to provide safe accessibility to all required off
street parking.

83| Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



C. Storm Water Management

1.) Unless modified by the Commission, any development within the Town of Simsbury shall implement
the following provisions of Chapter 7 of the Connecticut Stormwater Quality Manual (2004), as may be

amended:

a) Pollutant Reduction as provided in Section 7.4 of the Connecticut Stormwater Manual (2004), as
may be amended

b) Ground water Recharge and Runoff Volume Reduction as provided in Section 7.5 of Connecticut
Stormwater Manual (2004), as may be amended

c) Peak Flow Control for the 2 year, 10 year, 25 year, 50 year, and 100 year events as provided in

Section 7.6 of the Connecticut Stormwater Manual (2004), as may be amended

2.) In the design of a Stormwater management system, design professionals (Professional Engineer
licensed with State of Connecticut) may propose low impact development techniques contained in the
Connecticut Stormwater Quality Manual (2004), as may be amended.

3.) The Commission may modify the Stormwater Management requirements of this Section provided
that the applicant has provided a detailed report from a professional engineer that demonstrates some
of the following conditions:

a)

b)

The characteristics of onsite soils prevent the optimal use of low impact development
features/techniques as outlined in the Connecticut Stormwater Manual (2004), as may
be amended.

The size or density of the development does result in significant impact which warrants
the use of low impact development features/techniques as outlined in the Connecticut
Stormwater Manual (2004), as may be amended.

The location of the development within a watershed and the low likelihood of an
adverse impact as it relates to pollutants, ground water recharge, run-off volume, need
for peak flow controls for the 2 year, 10 year, 25 year, 50 year, and 100 year events.

D. Soil Erosion and Sediment Control

1.) Any development within the Town of Simsbury which involves % acre or more of surface
disturbance is required to submit an erosion and sediment control plan pursuant to the 2002
Connecticut Erosion and Sediment Control Guidelines, as amended.

2.) Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Plan

a.

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

A soil and sediment control plan shall contain the proper provisions to adequately
control accelerated erosion and sedimentation and reduce the danger from storm water
run-off on the proposed site based on the best available technology and methods. Such
principles, methods and practices necessary for certification are found in the 2002
Connecticut Erosion and Sediment Control Guidelines.

Plans for soil and sediment control shall be developed in accordance with these
regulations using the principles as outlined in the 2002 Connecticut Erosion and
Sediment Control Guidelines, as amended. Soil erosion and sediment control plans shall
result in a development that minimize erosion and sedimentation during construction; is
stabilized and protected from erosion when completed; and does not cause significant
off-site erosion and/or sedimentation.

For soil erosion and sediment control measures/methods requiring engineered
measures per the 2002 Connecticut Erosion and Sediment Control Guidelines, as

84| Page



amended, calculations by a Connecticut Professional Engineer shall be used in
determining peak flow rates and volumes of run-off.

d. Said plan shall contain but not be limited to:

A narrative describing:

1.
2.

The development
The schedule for grading and construction activities including:

a. Start and completion dates

b. Sequence of grading and construction activities

c. Sequence for installation and/or application of soil erosion and
sediment control measures

d. Sequence for final stabilization of the project site

The design criteria for proposed soil erosion and sediment control
measures and storm water management facilities

The construction details for proposed soil erosion and sediment control
measures and storm water management facilities

The installation and/or application procedures for proposed soil and
erosion and sediment control measures and storm water management
facilities

The operations and maintenance program for proposed soil erosion and
sediment control measures and storm water management facilities

A site plan map at a sufficient scale to show:

1.
2.

8.

The location of the proposed development and adjacent properties
The existing and proposed topography including soil types, wetlands,
watercourses, and water bodies

The existing structures

The proposed area of disturbance including cleared, excavated, filled or
graded areas and proposed structures, utilities, roads, and if applicable
new property lines.

The location and design for all proposed soil erosion and sedimentation
control measures and storm water management facilities identified by
standard symbols and nomenclature shown in the 2002 Connecticut
Erosion and Sediment Control Guidelines

The sequence of grading and construction activities

The sequence for installation and/or application of soil erosion and
sediment control measures

The sequence for final stabilization of the development site

Any other information deemed necessary and appropriate by the applicant or

requested by the Commission and/or its designated agent.

3.) The Zoning Commission may issue conditions upon granting certification of erosion and
sediment control plan such as:

i A performance bond or other assurances which deemed acceptable by the Town
Attorney which cover the estimated costs associated with measures required to control
soil erosion and sedimentation as specified in the certified plan.

ii. No site development is to begin unless soil and erosion control plan is approved and
those measures/methods and facilities in the plan scheduled for installation prior to site
development are installed and functional

iii. Planned soil erosion and sediment control measures/methods and facilities are installed
as scheduled according to approved plan

iv. All control measures/methods and facilities shall be maintained in effective condition to
ensure compliance of the approved plan
V. Submission of inspection reports from a third party inspector that is reviewing the

measures/methods and facilities that are associated with the approved soil erosion and
sediment control plan for the duration of the project.

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

8 | Page



vi. Any other actions or submission requirement that the Commission determines is
essential to assure compliance to the approved soil erosion and sediment control plan.

8. Design Review Board- All applications submitted for site plan review and sign applications on non-
residential and mixed-use applications, will be referred to the Design Review Board to make a
recommendation to the Zoning Commission based on the Design Review Guidelines. The Town of
Simsbury’s Design Review Guidelines can be found on the Town Website or a copy may be obtained
from the Planning Department.

9. The Commission reserves the right to set conditions of approval for any site plan for the purpose of
health safety and welfare. Such conditions may include, but are not limited to hours of operation,
lighting, parking, landscaping, and number of vehicle trips per day.

10. No work shall be commenced until:

a. azoning permit has been applied for and approved,

b. record plans have been submitted by the applicant,

c. the applicant has filed a bond with the Commission in an amount acceptable to the Town Engineer and
the Commission and form acceptable to the Town Attorney guaranteeing completion of those items
specified by the Commission and these Regulations, and

d. The Commission has signed the record plans.

11. Bonds will not be released until:

a. the release has been requested, in writing, by the developer,

b. The Town Engineer, Zoning Officer or Town Planner has submitted a letter stating that all required
improvements have been satisfactorily completed and that all conditions and requirements of the
Commission's approval have been satisfied.

c. The applicant's engineer or surveyor has certified to the Commission, through submission of a set of
detailed "Record As Built" plans on translucent cloth or polyester film that all public improvements are
in accordance with submitted site plans.

d. Adigital PDF file shall also be submitted

12. Proposed modifications to approved site plans shall be submitted to the Director of Planning for review.
Minor changes may be approved by the Director of Planning or Assistant Town Planner or submitted to the
Commission for review. Major changes (additional building area, alteration of building location) shall be
submitted to the Commission for additional review.

13. The Commission may waive one or more of the application requirements on a case by case basis provided a
written request is submitted with the application requesting said waiver.

F. CHANGE IN USE OR STRUCTURE APPLICATION
Minor changes to existing uses, changes of uses permitted as of right in the zoning district with no
exterior modifications, minor additions to the primary buildings, under 15% or 1,000 sq. ft., whichever is
less, minor modifications to landscaping, and minor revisions to approved Site Plans, may be submitted
to the Director of Planning and Assistant Town Planner for review and possible approval. Such activities
may then be referred to the Commission for approval if deemed necessary.

86| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 12 SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUIREMENTS

12.1 SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

FINDINGS:

A Special Exception shall not be granted until the Zoning Commission has determined that all of the following conditions and

site plan requirements in compliance with the Zoning Regulations have been satisfied. It shall be the responsibility of the
applicant, at the time of the application for a Special Exception is made, to provide plans and reports which describe the
proposed development’s conformance with the required findings in this Section. Any data, plans, and reports submitted in

support of an application may be made as additional conditions and stipulations of approval for a Special Exception.

1.

Orderly Development

The location, type, character and size of the use and of any building or other structure in connection
therewith shall be in harmony with the appropriate and orderly development of the Town and the
neighborhood and will not hinder or discourage the appropriate development and use of the adjacent

property.
Property Values

The proposed use will not depreciate adjacent property values and the size and height of all proposed
buildings and the extent of all proposed site improvements shall be such as to harmonize with the existing
character of the neighborhood in which such use is to be established.

Public Safety

The nature and location of the proposed use and of any building or other structure in connection therewith
shall be such that there is adequate access to it for the purpose of fire protection, police protection and other
emergency equipment.

Traffic Considerations

The streets serving the proposed use are adjacent to carry all prospective traffic; adequate provision is made
for entering and leaving the subject site in such a manner that no undue hazard to traffic or undue traffic
congestion shall be created; adequate off-street parking and loading facilities are provided as required by
Section 10.2 of these Regulations; and the development of the subject site provides for the continuation and
appropriate improvement of streets terminating at or proposed to be constructed through the lot on which
the proposed use is to be located.

Landscaping and Buffers

The site on which the proposed use is to be located will be suitably landscaped to protect the neighborhood
and adjacent property and the proposed use of the subject property will not result in the loss of any existing
buffering between the subject site and adjacent single-family residentially zoned properties. When adequate

buffering is not found to exist, sufficient buffers between the proposed use and adjacent properties shall be
provided.

Relationship to Utility Systems, Drainage Systems and Impact on Community Facilities

The subject site has adequate water and sewer systems to service the proposed use. Adequate provisions for
storm water drainage can be provided without adversely affecting neighboring properties or adjacent public
drainage systems, and the proposed use will not adversely impact existing community facilities.

87 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 13 TEXT AMEDMENT APPLICATION

TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION

1. These Regulations may from time to time be amended, modified, changed or repealed by the
Commission on its own initiative or by petition.

2. Any petitions for text amendment shall be submitted in writing at a regular meeting of the
Commission on forms prescribed and shall be accompanied by the following:

3. 11 copies of the precise wording of the existing and proposed text, and a digital copy of text in word or
other appropriate format

4. The appropriate application fee, except that the Commission shall be exempt from any application fee.

5. Any amendment or change may be adopted only after due notice and public hearing in Accordance with
the provisions of Chapter 124 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

6. No petition for text amendment which has been rejected by the Commission shall be heard again within

one year from the date of rejection except that the Commission may grant a re-hearing before one year
if it finds, on facts presented in writing, that a material change in the situation justifies this action in the
interest of the public as well as the petitioners.

88 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 14 ZONE CHANGE APPLICATIONS

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATIONS

The boundaries of any Zone District established hereunder may from time to time be amended, modified, or changed by
the Commission on its own initiative or by petition.

1. Unless initiated by the Commission, all petitions for a change of zone must be made by the owners of
record of the property involved, their authorized agents, or the holder of an option to purchase.

2. Any petitions for amendment shall be submitted in writing at a regular meeting of the Commission on
forms prescribed.

3. Applications shall be accompanied by:

a. anoriginal and 3 (three) copies of a Class “D” survey map prepared at 24" x 36" at the same scale as
the Assessor's maps and,

b. the names, addresses and zip codes (when available) of all parcel owners as per the latest Town
Clerk’s records, keyed by parcel number, and

c. the appropriate application fee, except that the Commission shall be exempt from any application

fee.
d. all maps shall also be submitted in a PDF digital format
4. The maps shall show:

a. existing zone district lines (depicted by a heavy, broken line)

b. property for which the zone change is requested (shown in a shaded pattern)

c. aline representing the locus of points 500 feet in all directions from the parcel(s) for which the
change in classification is requested

d. lots and streets lying wholly or partially within 500 feet in all directions

e. appropriate legend indicating the specific request as well as the name of the applicant and owner(s)
of land included in the proposed change

f. lot or parcel numbering consistent with the system used by the Assessor’s office.

g. north arrow and location key map at a scale of 1" = 1000'

h. the Town line, when located within 500 feet of a proposed zone change

i

appropriate professional certification and clarification by a land surveyor

89 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 15 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT APPLICATIONS

15.1 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT REVIEWS BY STAFF
A. ZONING COMPLIANCE REVIEW APPLICATION

An application for a Zoning Permit shall be submitted to the Zoning Official prior to:

1. The construction, reconstruction, change of use, enlargement, extension, moving or structural alteration
of any building, sign, or other structure (other than a permitted fence);

2. Any occupancy; use or change in commercial occupancy; or any change in use of any land, building, or
other structure or part thereof.

3. An application for a Zoning Permit shall be accompanied by a plot plan certified by a land surveyor

showing such information as necessary to enable the zoning official to decide whether the proposed
building, alteration or use complies with all the provisions of these Regulations and including, at a
minimum, the following:
a. the actual dimensions of the lot to be built upon,
b. the exact size and location of the existing buildings and buildings proposed to be erected,
c. the dimensions of all open spaces and established building lines, and
d. Existing and proposed water supply and sewage disposal on the premises for which the
application is made and within 100 feet of the applicant's premises.
4. When an addition or an accessory building includes the construction or alteration of a principal building,
full foundation or frost wall, or is within 5 feet of any required setback, an A-2 Class Survey is required.
B. BUILDING PERMIT
1. No Building Permit shall be issued unless a Zoning Permit has been issued.
2. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued unless a Certificate of Zoning Compliance has been issued.

C. CERTIFICATE OF ZONING COMPLIANCE
An application for a Certificate of Zoning Compliance shall be submitted to the Zoning Official prior to:

1. The issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy by the Building Official,
2. The renewal or change of a non-conforming use.
An application for a Certificate of Zoning Compliance shall be accompanied by:
1. A plot plan as required for a Zoning Permit,
2. A letter from the Town Engineer, or his designee, stating that all site improvements, as

approved by the Commission as part of a site plan, have been completed.
The Zoning Official shall issue a Certificate of Zoning Compliance upon finding that:

1. The building, structure, sign or use is in compliance with an approved site plan, Special Permit,
and with these Regulations,

2. The use legally existed at the time of the adoption of these Regulations, or

3. The renewal or change of the non-conforming use is in conformity with the provisions of these
Regulations.

4, A Conditional Certificate of Zoning Compliance may be issued:

a. when winter conditions cause exceptional hardship from the strict application of this
section and such conditions delay completion of some required work that is not essential
to protection of public health, safety or welfare,

b. for individual buildings within a Special Permit area that are in compliance with the
provisions of this Section even though other structures in the complex are not yet in
compliance, or

c. Provided a Bond or other surety in an acceptable amount and form has been deposited
with the Commission under terms specified in these Regulations.

5. A Certificate of Zoning Compliance shall be deemed to authorize a use and is required for both
initial and continued occupancy and use of the building or land to which it applies, and shall
continue in effect as long as such building or land and the use thereof is in full conformity with
the provisions of these Regulations and any requirements pursuant thereto.

9 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



6. A record of all Certificates of Zoning Compliance shall be kept on file in the office of the Zoning
Official.

D. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY
1. No building or structure or any addition or alteration thereto hereafter erected shall be

occupied or used, in whole or in part, for any purpose until a Certificate of Occupancy shall have
been issued by the Building Official

2. Every application for a Certificate of Occupancy shall submit a written statement from the local
Health Official approving the finished water and sewer systems.

3. An application for a Certificate of Occupancy shall be accompanied by a class A-2 survey unless
waived by the Zoning Enforcement Official.

4. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued unless a Certificate of Zoning Compliance has been
issued.

5. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued for any dwelling unit until the right-of-way to such

building is made accessible to emergency vehicles.

91 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 16 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

A. POWER AND DUTIES

The Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) shall have the following powers and duties:

1. To adopt, from time to time, such rules and procedures as may be deemed necessary to carry into effect
the provisions of these Regulations.
2. To hear and decide appeals in conformity with the terms of these Regulations where it is alleged there is

error in any order, requirement, decision or determination by the Zoning Official in the enforcement of
these Regulations.

3. To determine and vary the application of the Zoning Regulations in harmony with their general
purpose and intent and with due consideration for conserving the public health, safety, convenience,
welfare and property values solely with respect to a parcel of land where, owing to conditions especially
affecting such parcel, but not affecting generally the district in which it is situated, a literal enforcement
of such regulations would result in exceptional difficulty or unusual hardship so that substantial justice
will be done and the public safety and welfare secured.

4. The Board shall have such other powers and duties as provided in the Connecticut General Statutes.

B. PROCEDURES [FOR ZBA]

Any application to the Board shall be submitted in writing on forms prescribed and available at the office of the Zoning
Official. All setback requests shall be shown on a Class A-2 Survey. Other requests may not require an A-2 Survey, per
the Zoning officials review.

1. Appeals from any order, requirement or decision of the Zoning Official shall be filed within thirty (30)
days of the rendition of such order, requirement or decision.
2. Completed application forms shall:

a. befiled in the Planning and Zoning Department and
b. be accompanied by the appropriate application fee, and
c. include the data necessary for a clear understanding and intelligent action by the Zoning Board of

Appeals
3. A Public Hearing shall be held on all applications for variance.
4. Proceedings on applications shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Connecticut General
Statutes.
5. All parties in interest or citizens may appear in person, or by agent or attorney;
6. The concurring vote of four members of the Board shall be necessary to reverse any order,

requirement, decision or determination of the Zoning Official, to decide in favor of the application of any
matter upon which the board is required to pass under these Regulations, or to vary the application of
these Regulations.

7. In granting any variance, the Board may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in conformity
with these Regulations.

8. Violations of such conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the variance
is granted, shall be deemed a violation of these Regulations and punishable under the Regulations.

9. Approval of a variance under this Section shall be conditioned upon the applicant's filing of the variance

on the Simsbury Land Records as required by the Connecticut General Statutes.
C. VARIANCES

A variance from the terms of these Regulations shall not be granted by the Board of Appeals unless and
until the Board shall make a written finding in its minutes as to all of the following:

1. That special conditions and circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land, structure, or building
involved and are not applicable to other lands, structures, or buildings in the area;
2. That these special circumstances relate to the condition of the land or parcel;
92 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



3. That the special conditions and circumstances are not related to the circumstances of the applicant and
have not resulted from the actions of the applicant or the predecessor in title;

4. That the special circumstances constitute an exceptional difficulty or unusual hardship not of the
applicant's making and are not solely a financial detriment;

5. That literal interpretation of the provisions of these Regulations would deprive the applicant of rights
commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same district;

6. That granting the variance requested will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege or use that
is denied by these Regulations to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district.

7. That these circumstances justify the granting of the variance,

8. That the variance, if granted, is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable use of the
land, building, or structure; and

9. That the granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of these
Regulations, and will not be injurious to the neighborhood, or otherwise detrimental to the public
welfare.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR USE VARIANCES

1. Every application for variance from the Use Regulations as distinguished from the Height and Area
Requirements shall be immediately transmitted to the Zoning Commission and the Planning
Commission, and on or before the public hearing held by the Board on such application for variance, the
Zoning Commission and Planning Commission shall make a report of their recommendation.

2. Public Information Notice Sign

Whenever an application filed with the Zoning Board of Appeals requires a public hearing, the applicant
shall display a Public Information Notice Sign on the site giving notice that an application is pending
before the Zoning Board of Appeals. The sign shall be in a manner and form prescribed by the Board and
be provided by the Board to the applicant. It shall be displayed in a highly visible place at each location
on the site where the property line abuts a public or private street or at a visible location nearest the
site. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to insure that the signs remain on display for a period
of fifteen (15) days prior to the public hearing and are removed within seven (7) days following the close
of the public hearing. The applicant, at the public hearing, shall supply the Board with an affidavit
certifying that the Public Information Notice Sign has been placed for the period specified.

3. No variance to the Zoning Regulations shall be granted that is conditioned on an approval by another
Board or Commission.

4. No variance shall be granted that will continue or expand a non-conforming use.
LIMITATIONS

No non-conforming use of the neighboring lands, structures or buildings in the same district, and no permitted or non-
conforming use of lands, structures, or buildings in other districts shall be considered grounds for the issuance of a
variance.

D. FLOODPLAIN ZONE VARIANCE PROCEDURES

Establishment of Variance Process: The Board of Appeals, as established by the Town of Simsbury, shall hear and decide
appeals and requests for variances from the requirements of this regulation. The Board of Appeals shall hear and decide
appeals when it is alleged there is an error in any requirement, decision or determination made by the zoning
enforcement officer in the enforcement or administration of this regulation. Any person aggrieved by the decision of
the Board of Appeals or any person owning land which abuts or is within a radius of one hundred (100) feet of the land
in question may appeal within fifteen (15) days after such decision to the State Superior Court of Hartford, as provided in

93| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Section 8-8 of the General Statutes of Connecticut. The zoning enforcement officer shall maintain the records of all
appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) in its biennial report.

Specific Situation Variances:

Buildings on a Historic Register

Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration of structures listed on the
National Register of Historic Places, the State Inventory of Historic Places, or any locally-adopted historic
district without regard to the procedures set forth in the remainder of this section and provided the
proposed reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration will not result in the structure losing its historical
designation.

Functionally Dependent Use or Facility

Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements and other development
necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use or facility provided the structure or other
development is protected by methods that minimize flood damage, creates no additional threat to
public safety and meets all the conditions for variance below.

Floodway Prohibition
Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels during the
base flood discharge would result.

Considerations for Granting of Variances: In passing upon such applications, the Board of Appeals shall consider all
technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified in other sections of this regulation and the items listed
below. Upon consideration of these factors and the purposes of this regulation, the Board of Appeals may attach such
conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes of this regulation.

11.

The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;

The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;

The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of such
damage on the individual owner;

The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;

The necessity of the facility to waterfront location, in the case of a functionally dependent facility;

The availability of alternative locations not subject to flooding or erosion damage for the proposed use;
The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;

The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain management program
for that area;

The safety access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;

The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment transport of the flood waters and the
effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and

The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions including maintenance
and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, and streets
and bridges.

Conditions for Variances: Variances shall only be used upon a determination that the variance is the minimum
necessary to afford relief considering the flood hazard; and in the instance of a historical building, a determination that
the variance is the minimum necessary as not to destroy the historic character and design of the building and result in
the loss of historic designation of the building. Variances pertain to a piece of property and are not personal in nature.
A properly issued variance is granted for a parcel of property with physical characteristics so unusual that complying
with the regulation would create an exceptional hardship to the applicant or the surrounding property owners. Those

94 | Page

Revision Date: 03/04/2020



characteristics must be unique to that property and not be shared by adjacent parcels. For example, economic or
financial hardship is not sufficient cause for a variance, nor are inconvenience, aesthetic considerations, physical
handicaps, personal preferences or disapproval of one’s neighbors.

1. Variances shall only be used upon (i) a showing of good and sufficient cause, (ii) a determination that
failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship, and; (iii) a determination that the
granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety,
extraordinary public expense, create nuisance, damage the rights or property values of other persons in
the area, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws, ordinances or
regulations. Only hardships that are based on unusual or unique physical characteristics of the property
in question, characteristics that are not shared by adjacent parcels, shall quality to meet subsection (ii)
above. Claims of hardship based on the structure, on economic gain or loss, or on personal or self-
created circumstances are not sufficient cause for the granting of a variance.

2. No variance may be issued within a regulatory floodway that will result in any increase in the 100-year
flood levels. A variance may be issued for new construction, substantial improvements and other
development necessary for the conduct of a “functionally dependent use” provided that there is good
and sufficient cause for providing relief; and the variance does not cause a rise in the 100-year flood
level within a regulatory floodway. The structure and other development must be protected by
methods that minimize flood damages.

3. Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the structure will be
permitted to be built with the lowest floor elevation below the base flood elevation (BFE), and that the
cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the lowest floor
elevation up to amounts as high as $25 for $100 of insurance coverage.

95| Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



SECTION 17 ADMINISTRATION AND DEFINITIONS

17.1 CONFORMITY REQUIRED

No structure, building and/or portion of a building shall be erected, excavated for, moved or structurally altered; nor
shall any use be established or changed in the Town of Simsbury without a zoning permit from the Zoning Enforcement
Officer or the Commission, issued in conformance with the provisions of these Regulations.

No lot shall be reduced, divided, or created such that the area, width or other dimensions of the lot or any of its required
yard setbacks shall be less than prescribed by these Regulations.

17.2 INTERPRETATION OF REGULATIONS
1. Prohibited if Not Permitted.

a. Any principal use of land, buildings or structures not expressly permitted by these Regulations in a particular
zoning district is prohibited in that district. For a principal use permitted by these Regulations, accessory uses
which are clearly and customarily incidental and are actually subordinate to the permitted principal use may be
permitted by the Zoning Enforcement Officer.

b. Any activity not expressly permitted by these Regulations in a particular zoning district is prohibited in that
district.

2. Minimum Requirement

a. In their interpretation and application, the provisions of these Regulations shall be held to be the minimum
requirements for the promotion of the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and general welfare, unless
the context clearly indicates that such provision is intended to be a maximum limitation.

3. Conflicting Standards

a. In the event that there are found to be conflicting requirements within these Regulations, the most restrictive
provision shall apply.

b. Other more stringent local, state, or federal laws or regulations may supersede the provisions of these
Regulations.

c. These Regulations do not release a person from having to comply with a more restrictive law, ordinance,
easement, covenant, rule, regulation, or permit.

The intent of these regulations is not to repeal, abrogate, annul or in any way impair or interfere with existing
provisions of other laws or ordinances, except those specifically repealed by these Regulations, or those that place
private restrictions upon property. Where these Regulations pose a greater restriction upon land, buildings or
structures than is imposed on or required by such existing provisions of law or ordinance, these Regulations shall
apply. Where two differing standards are provided herein, the more stringent shall apply.

17.3 INTERPRETATION OF TERMS
1. Interpretation of Specific Terms - For the purposes of these Regulations, certain words and terms shall be
interpreted as follows:

(1) Words used in the singular shall include the plural and the singular, and words
used in the present tense shall include the future.

The word "shall" is mandatory and not discretionary.

The word "may" is permissive.

The word "lot" shall include the words "piece" and "parcel."

The words "zone," "zoning district," and "district" have the same meaning.
The phrase "used for," shall include the phrases "arranged for," "designed for,
"maintained for," and "occupied for."

The phrase "these Regulations" shall refer to the entire zoning regulations.

(8) The word “Town” means the Town of Simsbury, Connecticut.

The word “Commission” means the Simsbury Zoning Commission.

w N

ul

intended for,"

~ () >
- —_—-_—= = =

—_
O
-

96 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



2. Words and Terms Defined

Words defined in Section 17.4 of these Regulations shall be interpreted as set forth in that Section.

3. Words and Terms Not Defined

Words used in these Regulations shall be determined to have the meanings as defined in Section 17.4. Doubt as to
the precise meaning of other words and terms shall be determined by the Commission after reference to:

a. Connecticut General Statutes, as amended;
b. Black’s Law Dictionary (latest edition);
c. Webster’s Third New International Dictionary;

17.4 DEFINITIONS
Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases in these Regulations shall be interpreted giving them the same
meaning as they have in common usage and so as to provide the most reasonable application.

Abutting/Adjoining: Having a common border with, or being separated from such a common border by a right-of-way,
alley or easement.

Accessory Apartment: A second dwelling unit in an existing single-family detached dwelling or added onto an existing
single family dwelling or located in an existing accessory building which may be expanded in accordance with the
applicable regulations, for use as a complete, independent living facility with provisions within the accessory apartment
for cooking, eating, sanitation and sleeping. Such a dwelling is an accessory use to the main dwelling. (amended June 17,
2014)

Accessory use or structure: A use or structure on the same lot with, and of a nature customarily incidental and
subordinate to, the principal use or structure.

Adjacent: Touching or contiguous.
Affordable Housing: Housing meeting the definitions of affordable housing in CGS §8-30g as amended.

Agricultural Operations: Operations and activities located on land defined as a farm under these Zoning Regulations
whose annual gross sales from agricultural products during the preceding calendar year were $1,000 or more. Permitted
accessory activities in support of agricultural operations include the baking of specialty breads and pies where the farm
is over 25 acres and the preparation and baking area is less than 400 square feet and the scale of the baking activity is in
scale and balance with the totality of the farm store operation. (amended February 5, 2018)

Agricultural Tourism: The opening to the public of a working farm or agricultural, horticultural or agribusiness operation
for the purpose of enjoyment, education, or active involvement in the activities of the farm or operation

Ag-tivities: Events, if limited duration on a farm, that are incidental to agricultural uses, including but not limited to,
hayrides, corn mazes, horse shows and other similar events, on-farm sales such as farm stands and pick your own
operations

Agricultural Event - An accessory and subordinate use on a parcel having a principal agricultural use or farming use

Antenna: Means a device used to receive or transmit electromagnetic waves. Examples include, but are not limited to
whip antennas, panel antennas and dish antennas.

Antenna Height: The vertical distance measured in feet from the base of the antenna support structure at grade to the
highest point of the structure. If the support structure is on a sloped grade, then the average between the highest and
lowest grades shall be used to calculate height.

97 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Apartment Building: A residential structure containing four (4) or more dwelling units, or a group of such buildings.

Applicant: An individual, firm, association, syndicate, partnership, corporation or the authorized agent thereof, having
recorded title to the land or building, or sufficient proprietary interest to seek development or use of the premises.

Application: An application shall consist of a completed form and fee as prescribed by the Commission including all
necessary and required documents/Department approvals.

Arborist: An individual licensed or otherwise certified and trained in arboriculture or forestry, and experienced in the
care, conservation and preservation of native and ornamental trees.

Assisted Living Facility: A residential community occupied by those aged 55 and over to the extent permitted by Federal
and State Fair Housing Laws and any other applicable laws that provide assistance with activities of daily living to the
residents. Services provided by the facility shall be provided on a 24-hour basis and shall include such services as
bathing, dressing, toileting, medication monitoring, and meal preparation. Services are also provided in the following
areas: linen service, recreation, security, transportation, shopping, and housekeeping. Assisted living facilities may also
provide for the daily living needs of memory impaired residents.

Awning: A roof-like cover, often of fabric, metal or glass, designed and intended for protection from the weather or as a
decorative embellishment, and which projects from a wall or roof of a structure over a window, walk, door, or the like.
(See also Sec. 2.11 of Town center Code)

Balloon, Advertising: A nonporous bag of light material filled with heated air or a gas lighter than air so as to rise and
float in the atmosphere and intended to be flown in the air at the end of a cable, wire, or rope for the purposes of
advertising or otherwise attracting attention to a commercial enterprise or event.

Banquet, Conference and Meeting Facilities: A facility for banquets, conferences, receptions, meetings, presentations,
parties, outings, educational, corporate, charitable or other social gatherings, including indoor and outdoor activities

Bed and Breakfast: An owner-occupied residence where not more than six guest rooms are rented to not more than 10
overnight guests on a daily basis for periods not exceeding one week

Berm: An earthen mound designed to provide visual interest on a site, screen undesirable views, reduce noise, or fulfill
other such purposes.

Boarding House: A boarding house is a residential use in which lodgers rent one or more rooms, that do not meet the
definition of a lawful dwelling unit, for one or more nights, frequently for extended periods of weeks, months, and years.
The common parts of the house are maintained, and some services, such as laundry and cleaning, may be supplied and
there are no separate kitchen facilities.

Buffer Strip: A strip of land along a commercial or industrial property line or commercial or industrial zone line abutting
properties zoned residential, which shall be free of any building or use other than existing natural woody growth and/or
appropriate landscaping and screening of suitable type, density and height and which may be a part of the minimum
yard requirements.

Buildable Area: A rectangular area, determined on a zone by zone basis, with minimum rectangular sides.

Building: An independent structure resting upon or attached to the ground, arranged, intended, designed or used for the
shelter, housing or enclosure of persons, animals or materials including but not necessarily limited to residential and
commercial structures, sheds, garages, stables, greenhouses, barns or other accessory buildings. A detached building is
one separated on all sides from adjacent buildings by open space from the ground up.

98 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Building, Accessory: A building, including plastic or canvas covered frames with or without a foundation and
transportable personal storage containers incidental or subordinate to and located on the same lot with the principal
building or use.

Building Frontage: Those building elevations that face upon a road or a parking area between the building and the road.

Building Height: The vertical distance, as shown on engineered plans showing surveyed grades, measured in feet from
the average finished grade of the ground surrounding a building or other structure or addition thereto up to the
midpoint between the ridgeline and the eave of a pitched roof, or up to the level of the highest main ridge or peak of
any other type of structure, excluding dormers extending less than one-half of the roof width, or to the top of any solar
panels or roof top mechanical equipment, whichever is greater.

Building Height Graphics

MEDPOINT RIDGE
O EAVE

0 0m m [

gl Sy

AVERACE CRADE ]

Building Height Building Height — Flat Roof

[ 0o
O oM

i sl AVERAGE GRADE

T A

i RO | ANERAGE GRADE

Building Height - Gambrel Building Height - Saltbox
Building Line: A line parallel to the street line at a distance equal to the required setback.
Building, Principal: A building in which is conducted the main or principal use of the lot on which said building is located.

Building Setback Line: The line within a lot defining the minimum required horizontal distance between the principal
building or use to be erected and an adjacent street or lot line.

Caliper: The diameter of a tree measured at a point four and one-half feet above grade.

Camp Trailer: A trailer which is currently registered with the Motor Vehicle Department as a Camp Trailer, and which is
for travel, recreational and vacation use only. This includes camper bodies not registered by the Connecticut
Department of Motor Vehicles.

9 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Campground: Any lot on which may be located two or more cabins, tents, other accommodations of a design or
character suitable for seasonal or other temporary recreational living purposes, including a day camp but not a mobile
home park, boarding or rooming house, tourist home, hotel or motel.

Car Wash Facility: An automated car washing and cleaning establishment attended during hours of operation equipped
to wash automobiles, pick-up trucks and small vans, with systems capable of complete recycling of all wash waters
utilized on site.

Civic Center: An area developed with a substantial concentration of public and governmental buildings or uses.

Club: An association of persons which is the owner, lessee or occupant of an establishment operated solely for a
recreational, social, fraternal, religious, political or athletic purpose whose activities are confined to the members and
guests, are not extended to the general public, and include the establishment so operated; but does not include such
clubs, the chief activity of which is a service customarily carried on primarily for business or gain.

Co-location: Means locating wireless communication facilities from more than one provider on a single site.

Commercial Use: Retail, personal, and business services; restaurants, inns, professional offices; banks; institutional uses
and equivalent uses as determined by the Commission.

Commercial Vehicle: Any truck, trailer, van or other equipment on wheels used in the operation of a commercial
activity. This term includes automobiles, vans, mini-vans and pickup trucks even if such vehicles feature a company
name, slogan or logo. Construction equipment and farming equipment of any type are included in this definition.

Community Center: A building used as and providing a place of meeting for religious, fraternal, social and/or recreational
programs generally open to the public and designed to accommodate and serve significant segments of the community.

Congregate Senior Housing Facility: A residential community occupied by those aged 55 and over to the extent
permitted by Federal and State Fair Housing Laws any other applicable laws with limited support services generally
providing meal service, laundry service, housekeeping, social and recreational activities, transportation and personal
services in a group setting.

Construction, Start of: Includes substantial improvement, and means the date Site Plan approval was issued, provided
the improvement was commenced in accordance with CGS Section 8-3(i). The actual start means the first placement of
permanent construction of a structure (including a manufactured home) on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or
footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation or placement of a
manufactured home on a foundation and installation of water, sewer and/or drainage facilities. Permanent construction
does not include land preparation such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets
and/or walkways; nor does it include the excavation for a basement, footings, or foundations or the erection of
temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not
occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure.

Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC):

A CCRC shall consist of individual, private residential units (independent living units) and common supportive facilities
(assisted living units) and provide or make available services required by the State of Connecticut statutes or regulations
for an Assisted Living Services Agency (ALSA). The CCRC may also include a skilled nursing component and a memory
care component. The Common supportive facilities may include but are not limited to: meal service offering two or
more meals per day, laundry service, housekeeping, maintenance, including routine chore services in a group setting to
persons of fifty-five (55) years of age and older who require help or aid with activities of daily living.

A CCRC may provide common facilities for use by occupants, including common rooms, laundry facilities, mailboxes,
entertainment facilities, communal dining area(s) with kitchen and supportive food preparation areas, administrative

100 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



offices, a convenience store for residents of the facility and areas for periodic medical examinations, limited treatment
and therapy, or similar uses. Residents may also include those clinically diagnosed with dementia and or physical
disabilities. (adopted February 9, 2009)

Contractor’s Yard- A tract of land where a contractor (landscaper, home builder, etc) stores materials, machinery,
equipment, vehicles and other supplies

Convalescent and Nursing Home: A building or group of buildings intended and designed solely for the temporary care of
the aged or infirmed with a full-time medical staff.

Cornice: Any horizontal member, structural or nonstructural, of any building, projecting outward from the exterior walls
at the roofline, including eaves and other roof overhang.

Coverage, Building: The area of ground beneath a building measured by the outer wall of habitable space, the dripline
of covered porches and covered decks and including 50% of the coverage by open patios, walkways, and entry platforms
or steps connected to the building but not including seasonal awnings, expressed as a percentage of the total lot area.

//\\

coee oo e H
\

OUTER WALL —\

COVERED
PORCH/DECK

ﬁ
|
\
\

TOTAL
BUILDING
COVERAGE

ez

OFEN PATIO OR
STEPS (50%)

Building Coverage

Coverage, Total: the total impervious surface on a parcel consisting of all surface area created by buildings, parking
areas of all surface types, and circulation drives.

Curb Cut: The providing of vehicular ingress and/or egress between property and an abutting public street.

Date of Receipt: Means the day of the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Commission immediately following the
submission to the Commission or its agent or 35 days after such submission, whichever date shall first occur.

101 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Day Care Center, Adult: A facility in which are received three (3) or more adults, age 55 or older, who are frail or
moderately handicapped and who stay for a period of more than one (1) hour, but not exceeding fifteen (15) hours
during any day each week, with no overnight accommodations, irrespective of compensation or reward.

Day Care Center, Child: A building or portion thereof, licensed by the State Department of Health, having facilities and all
necessary personnel for the supplementary care for more than twelve (12) related or unrelated children outside their
own homes on a regular basis for a part of the twenty-four (24) hours in one or more days in the week

Day Care Home, Adult Group: A dwelling in which a permanent occupant of the dwelling, licensed by the State
Department of Health, provides for the care of four (4) or fewer elderly and/or functionally impaired adults, not all of
whom are related by blood or marriage, for a portion of a 24-hour day.

Day Care Home, Child: A dwelling in which a permanent occupant of the dwelling, licensed by the State Department of
Health, provides for the supplementary care of six (6) or fewer children, not all of whom are of common parentage or
related by blood or marriage, for a portion of a 24-hour day.

Day Care Home, Group: A dwelling in which a permanent occupant of the dwelling, licensed by the State Department of
Health, provides for the supplementary care for not less than seven (7) nor more than twelve (12) related or unrelated
children on a regular basis for a part of the twenty-four (24) hours in one or more days in the week.

Day Care, Pet: A commercial business providing temporary care of pets for a period not exceeding 12 hours in any 24
hour period.

Design Guidelines: A set of guidelines regarding the architectural appearance of a building or improvement, which
guides the alteration, construction, demolition, or relocation of a building or improvement.

Disturbed Area: An area where vegetation, topsoil, or overburden has been removed, exposing the soil to erosion; or an
area where topsoil, spoil or other material has been stockpiled; or in an area rutted or otherwise disturbed by
construction activities.

Drive-In Establishments: A business establishment so developed that its principal retail or service character is dependent
on providing a driveway approach or parking spaces for motor vehicles so as to either serve patrons while in the motor
vehicles or else intended to permit consumption in the motor vehicle of food or beverage obtained by a patron from
said business establishment. Examples may include, restaurants, service stations, cleaners, banks, drug stores, theaters,
etc.)

Dwelling: A building designed exclusively for residential occupancy. Dwelling includes buildings designed as one-family
residences (“single-family dwellings”) as well as buildings designed as multi-family residences but does not include
hotels, motels and boarding houses.

Dwelling Unit: That portion of a building providing complete and permanent living facilities, including cooking and
bathing facilities for one family.

Dwelling Unit, Accessory: A separate, self-contained living unit within and subordinate to an existing single-family
residence or accessory with provision for an additional kitchen and living area not common to the primary residence.

Dwelling Unit, Primary: That portion of a single family dwelling structure not converted to an accessory dwelling unit.

102 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Earth Materials Definitions

Earth Materials: Natural soil, loam, sand, gravel, clay, rock, or other excavated natural material.

Earth Materials Activities: The excavation and removal or importation and deposition of earth materials, including earth
processing.

Earth Processing: Alteration of earth materials excavated on site, including mixing with earth materials or other
approved materials imported to the site using authorized processing equipment, including but not limited to screening
and crushing and production of concrete, asphalt and other earth materials products.

Excavate: To sever from the earth’s surface or to remove earth materials from the ground.

Deposit (Earth Excavation): To fill or alter by the addition of earth materials and/or fill existing swamps, wetlands, water
courses, or other bodies of water, or to change, by filling or re-grading, existing contours and elevations.

Imported Materials (Earth Excavation): Earth materials brought to a permit area as excess materials produced by
permitted excavation activities, or as authorized by any permit issued in accordance with Earth Excavation Regulations.

Permit Area (Earth Excavation): The limits of the area within the premises for which a permit or permits exist or are
requested for excavation, storage area, and processing of earth materials.

Premises (Earth Excavation): Within an earth excavation district, the entire area of land owned by the applicant or
permittee and identified as one piece of property by the Simsbury Tax Assessor’s Office within which the permit area is
proposed.

Easement: A grant of one or more of the property rights by the owner to, or for the use by, the public, a corporation, or
another person or entity.

Erosion: The detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments from the land surface by water, wind, ice or gravity.

Fagade: The exterior wall of a building exposed to public view or that wall viewed by persons not within the building,
extending from grade to the top of the parapet, wall or eaves, and including the entire width of the building elevation.

Family: A person living alone, or any of the following groups living together as a single non-profit housekeeping unit and
sharing common living, sleeping, cooking, and eating facilities:

(a) Any number of people related by blood, marriage, adoption, guardianship, or other duly authorized custodial
relationship;

(b) Three unrelated people;
(c) Two unrelated people and any children related to either of them.

(d) “functional family”- a group of up to 5 unrelated persons, who are living as a single family unit, sharing a
single household budget, preparing food and eating together, working together to maintain the home, and
legally sharing in the ownership or possession of the home.

(e) Any number of persons possessing a handicap within the meaning of the Fair Housing Act (42 USC
Section 3602(h).

Exception—The definition of a “family” does not include:
a. Any society, club, fraternity, sorority, association, lodge, combine, federation, or like organization;

103 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




b. Any group of individuals whose association is temporary or seasonal in nature;

Farm: A tract of land containing five (5) acres or more, used in part or wholly for agricultural purposes, excluding fur
ranching, pig farming, slaughter houses, and fertilizer manufacture. A farm may include premises used for the keeping
of livestock and other domestic animals when permitted by these Regulations.

Flag, Business: A flag displaying the name, insignia, emblem, or logo of a commercial entity.

Flood Definitions

Base Flood: The flood having a one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year, also referred to
as the one hundred (100) year flood, as published by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) as part of a
Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and depicted on a Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). (adopted April 16, 2018)

Base Flood Elevation (BFE): The elevation of the crest of the base flood or 100-year flood. The height in relation to mean
sea level expected to be reached by the waters of the base flood at pertinent points in the floodplains of coastal and
riverine areas. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Basement: A story in a building located partly underground, but having less than one-half of its clear floor to ceiling
height below the average level of finished grade adjoining the exterior walls of the building. For floodplain management
purposes, any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides. (amended April 16, 2018)

Building Height Within A Flood Hazard Area: The vertical distance measured from the average level of the finished grade
adjacent to the exterior walls of the building to the mean height between eaves and ridge for gable, hip and gambrel
roofs, or to the highest point of any other type of structure. The vertical distance measured shall include all portions of
a building situated below the regulatory flood protection elevation and all portions of basements or cellars that extend
above the finished grade adjacent to the building.

Cost: As related to substantial improvements, the cost of any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, alteration, repair
or other improvement of a structure shall be established by a detailed written contractor’s estimate. The estimate shall
include, but not be limited to: the cost of materials (interior finishing elements, structural elements, utility and service
equipment); sales tax on materials, building equipment and fixtures, including heating and air conditioning and utility
meters; labor; built-in appliances; demolition and site preparation; repairs made to damaged parts of the building
worked on at the same time; contractor’s overhead; contractor’s profit; and grand total. Items to be excluded include:
cost of plans and specifications, survey costs, permit fees, outside improvements such as septic systems, water supply
wells, landscaping, sidewalks, fences, yard lights, irrigation systems, and detached structures such as garages, sheds, and
gazebos. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Development: Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to, the
construction of buildings or structures; the construction of additions, alterations or substantial improvements to
buildings or structures; the placement of buildings, structures, footings or foundations; mining, dredging, filling, grading,
paving, excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment; the storage, deposition, or extraction of materials;
and the installation, repair or removal of public or private sewage disposal systems or water supply facilities. (amended
April 16, 2018)

Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: A manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction
of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured home are to be affixed (including, as a minimum, the
installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is
completed before May 16, 1977, the effective date of the floodplain management regulations adopted by the
community. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: The preparation of additional sites by the construction
of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufacturing homes are to be affixed (including the installation of

104 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). (adopted April 16,
2018)

Federal Emergency Management Agency: The federal agency that administers the National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP). (adopted April 16, 2018)

Finished Living Space: As related to fully enclosed areas below the base flood elevation (BFE), a space that is, but is not
limited to, heated and/or cooled, contains finished floors (tile, linoleum, hardwood, etc.), has sheetrock walls that may
or may not be painted or wallpapered, and other amenities such as furniture, appliances, bathrooms, fireplaces and
other items that are easily damaged by floodwaters and expensive to clean, repair or replace. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Flood or Flooding: A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas from
(1) the overflow of inland waters and/or (2) the unusual and rapid accumulation of runoff of surface waters from any
source.

Flood Frequency: The average frequency statistically determined for which it is expected that a specific flood level or
discharge may be equaled or exceeded.

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM): The official map on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has
delineated both the areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones applicable to the community.

Flood Insurance Study: The official report used to delineate flood hazard areas in which FEMA has provided flood
profiles, as well as the Flood Hazard Boundary-Floodway Map and the water surface elevation of the base flood.

Floodplain: The land area susceptible to inundation by water as a result of flooding and defined by FEMA as having a
flood frequency of 1% in any year.

Flood proofing: Any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes or adjustments to structures which
reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and
their contents.

Floodway: The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to
discharge the base flood without substantial increases in flood heights.

Floor Area: The sum of the horizontal area of the several floors of a dwelling unit measured from the outside, excluding
cellar floor areas, basement rooms, garage, porches, and open attics or unfinished rooms, and for which a Certificate of
Occupancy has been issued as habitable living quarters. In split level houses, the first two levels may be counted as one
floor, provided the difference in floor levels is less than five (5) feet.

Functionally Dependent Use or Facility: A use or facility that cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is located or
carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the
loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities. The term does not include
seafood processing facilities, long-term storage, manufacturing, sales or service facilities. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Historic Structure: Any structure that is: (a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing
maintained by the Department of the Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting
the requirements for individual listing on the National Register; (b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary
of the Interior as contributing to the historic significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; (c) Individually listed on a state inventory of
historic places in states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior;
or (d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic preservation programs that
have been certified either: (1) By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or (2)
Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs. (adopted April 16, 2018)

105 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




Improvement, Substantial Improvement: Any combination of repairs, reconstruction, rehabilitation, alterations,
additions or other improvements to a structure, taking place during the life of the structure, in which the cumulative
cost equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the “start of construction” of the
improvement. This term includes structures that have incurred “substantial damage”, regardless of the actual repair
work performed. For purposes of this definition, “substantial improvement” is considered to occur when the first
alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building commences, whether or not that alteration
affects the external dimensions of the structure. The term does not, however, include either: (1) Any project for
improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications
which have been identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe
living conditions; or (2) Any alteration of a “historic structure”, provided that the alteration will not preclude the
structure’s continued designation as a “historic structure”. (amended April 16, 2018)

Lowest Floor: The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An unfinished or flood resistant
enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage, in an area other than a basement area is not
considered a building’s lowest floor, provided that such an area meets the design requirements specified in Section
5.3.1.3 of this regulation. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Manufactured Home: A structure, transportable in one (1) or more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is
designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached to the required utilities. The term also
includes park trailers, travel trailers, recreational vehicles and other similar vehicles or transportable structures placed
on a site for one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days or longer and intended to be improved property. (adopted
April 16, 2018)

Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: A parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into two (2) or more
manufactured home lots for rent or sale. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Market Value: As related to substantial improvement and substantial damage, the market value of the structure shall be
determined by (choose one of the following: an independent appraisal by a professional appraiser; the property’s tax
assessment, minus land value; the replacement cost minus depreciation of the structure; the structure’s Actual Cash
Value) prior to the start of the initial repair or improvement, or in the case of damage, the value of the structure prior to
the damage occurring. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Mean Sea Level (MSL): The North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 or other datum, to which base flood
elevations shown on a community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) are referenced. (adopted April 16, 2018)

New Construction: Structures for which the “start of construction” commenced on or after May 16, 1977, the effective
date of the floodplain management regulations, and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures.
(adopted April 16, 2018)

New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: A manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of
facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the
installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is
completed on or after May 16, 1977, the effective date of the floodplain management regulation adopted by the
community. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Recreational Vehicle: A vehicle which is: (a) built on a single chassis; (b) four hundred (400) square feet or less when
measured at the largest horizontal projection; (c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty
truck; and (d) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as a temporary living quarters for recreational,
camping, travel, or seasonal use. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Special Flood Hazard Area(SFHA): The land in the floodplain within a community subject to a one (1) percent or greater
chance of flooding in any given year. SFHAs are determined utilizing the base flood elevations (BFE) provided on the
flood profiles in the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for a community. BFEs provided on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM)

106 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




are only approximate (rounded up or down) and should be verified with the BFEs published in the FIS for a specific
location. SFHAs include, but are not necessarily limited to, the land shown as Zones A and AE on a FIRM. The SFHA is
also called the Area of Special Flood Hazard. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Start of Construction: For other than new construction or substantial improvements under the Coastal Barrier Resources
Act (P.L. 97-348), includes substantial improvement and means the date the building permit was issued, provided the
actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition placement, substantial improvement or other
improvement was within one hundred and eighty (180) days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first
placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of
piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation, or the placement of a manufactured
home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling;
nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings,
piers, or foundations or the erections of temporary forms; not does it include the installation on the property of
accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a
substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other
structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. (adopted
April 16, 2018)

Structure: Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires location on the ground or attached to something
having location on the ground. The term structure includes, but is not limited to, any building, manufactured home,
storage tank, sign, wall, swimming pool, sports court, constructed tower or fence extending more than six (6) feet above
grade. The term structure excludes public utility poles, flagpoles, transmission lines, television antennas, municipal or
state transportation infrastructure, landscape furniture and decorations, mailboxes, lamp posts, seasonal decorations
and similar yard accoutrements, and seasonal decorations. For floodplain management purposes, a walled and roofed
building which is principally above ground, including a manufactured home, a gas or liquid storage tank, or other man-
made facilities or infrastructures. (amended April 16, 2018)

Substantial Damage: Damage of any origin sustained by a structure, whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its
pre-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage
occurred. “Substantial damage” also means flood-related damages sustained by a structure on two separate occasions
during a 10-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood event, on the average, equals or
exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the structure before the damaged occurred. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Violation: Failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the community’s floodplain
management regulations. A structure or other development without required permits, lowest floor elevation
documentation, flood-proofing certificates or required floodway encroachment calculations is presumed to be in
violation until such time as that documentation is provided. (adopted April 16, 2018)

Water Surface Elevation: The height, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 (or other datum,
where specified), of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or riverine areas.
(adopted April 16, 2018)

Garage, Commercial: Any lot, building or part thereof, used for the storage, service or repair of motors, or motor
vehicles for remuneration, including any rental, lease or sale of motor vehicles.

Garage, Private: A detached or accessory building or a portion of a main building for the parking and storage only of
automobiles belonging to the occupants of the premises.

Garage, Private — Attached: An attached portion of a main building used or designed to be used for the parking and
storage of motor vehicles.

107 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




Garage, Private — Detached: A detached accessory building which is capable of providing access to motor vehicles and
used or designed to be used for the parking and storage of motor vehicles.

Garage, Public: A building or use, other than a private garage, used for the maintenance, repair, or storage of
automobiles.

Garage, Vehicle Repair and/or Service: A commercial garage or gasoline station used for repairing, overhauling,
removing, adjusting, replacing, assembling or disassembling any parts of any motor, engine, or vehicle.

Gasoline Station: Any lot, building or part thereof, used for the sale of gasoline or motor vehicle fuel that may include
facilities for lubrication, washing, or otherwise servicing vehicles, but not including painting of vehicles.

Golf Course: A tract of land typically laid out with at least nine holes for playing a game of golf and improved with tees,
greens, fairways, and hazards.

Grade: The level of the finished surface of the ground or pavement at a stated location.

Grading: Any excavating, grubbing, filling (including hydraulic fill) or stockpiling of earth materials or any combination
thereof, including the land in its excavated or filled condition. Does not include normal cultivation associated with a
Farm.

Grocery: An establishment, commonly known as a supermarket (not including convenience stores), engaged in the retail
sale of a variety of canned and dry foods, fresh fruits and vegetables, or meats, poultry, and fish, and may include a
variety of disposable nonfood products.

Groundcover: Any shrub, plant or grass that does not attain a mature height of more than one foot. Such plants shall be
characterized by a growth habit in which the shrub, plant or grass spreads across the ground to connect with similar
plants forming a continuous vegetative cover on the ground.

Gross Building Area: The sum of the gross horizontal areas of the several floors of all buildings enclosed by walls on the
property excluding parking decks and basement areas used for storage, loading and unloading or for housing of
mechanicals or central heating and air conditioning equipment.

Habitable Space: Space in a structure for living, sleeping, eating or cooking. Bathrooms, toilet compartments, closets,
halls, storage or utility spaces and similar areas are not considered habitable spaces.

Hazardous Material: Any material which may pose a present or potential hazard to human health or the environment
when improperly treated, stored, transported, disposed of or otherwise managed and any material which is defined as
hazardous within the meaning of any federal, state, or local law, regulations or ordinance including, but not limited to
chemicals which are subject to reporting requirements under Title Il of the Super Fund Amendments and
Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA).

Hazardous Waste: Any waste material which may pose a present or potential hazard to human health or the
environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, or disposed of or otherwise managed including hazardous
waste identified in accordance with RCRA (Resource Conservation Recovery Act).

Health Care Facility: A building or group of buildings composed, at a minimum, of residences or sleeping quarters and
common dining facilities, and offering limited medical care, all functioning in an integrated manner.

Health Club: A facility with exercise equipment and a trained staff where members receive instruction and training in
cardiovascular and strength programs.

Home Business: A business customarily carried on by an occupant of a dwelling unit as a secondary use which is clearly
incidental to the use of the dwelling unit for residential purposes.

108 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Home Based Service Business: A business operated out of one’s residence that provides personal and other service
directly to clients which is clearly incidental to the use of the dwelling unit for residential purposes.

Hotel: Any building containing six or more guest rooms which are used, rented, or hired for sleeping purposes by
transient guests and with access to units primarily from interior lobbies, courts, or halls.

Impervious Surface: Any hard-surfaced, man-made area that does not readily absorb or retain water including, but not
limited to, building areas, parking and driveway areas, graveled areas, sidewalks and paved recreational areas.

Independent Living Facilities: A residential community occupied by those aged 55 and over to the extent permitted by
Federal and State Fair Housing Laws and any other applicable laws.

Inn: A building, which contains a dwelling unit occupied by an owner or resident manager, in which up to 10 lodging
rooms and meals are offered to the general public for compensation, and in which the entrance to bedrooms is made
through a lobby or other common room.

Interior Lot Line: For an interior lot, the straight line closest to the street along which such lot meets the minimum width
requirement of these Regulations.

Junk: Material which is inoperable, discarded or which creates an unacceptable and disheveled appearance of clutter on
a property.

Junk Vehicles: Vehicles inoperable or otherwise unfit for road use and not registered with the Connecticut Department
of Motor Vehicles for a period of more than 6 months, which are stored or parked outdoors on a property where such
use is not otherwise permitted.

Junkyard: Any place in or on which old material, glass, paper cordage or other waste or discarded or second-hand
material which has not been a part, or is not intended to be a part, of any motor vehicle, is stored or deposited. It
includes also any business and place of storage or deposit, whether in connection with another business or not, which
has stored or deposited more than one unregistered motor vehicle which is no longer intended or in condition for legal
use on the public highways, or used parts of motor vehicles or old iron, metal, glass, paper, cordage or other waste or
discarded second-hand material which has been a part, or is intended to be a part, of any motor vehicle, the sum of
which parts or material shall be equal in bulk to two or more motor vehicles. Said terms shall also include any place of
business or storage or deposit of motor vehicles or parts of motor vehicles purchased for the purpose of dismantling the
vehicles for parts or for use of the metal for scrap and where it is intended to burn material which are parts of motor
vehicles or to cut up the parts thereof.

Kennel: Premises maintained and operated as a business for the boarding of animals. This category does include
overnight boarding. The boarding of three or less animals at a residence is not considered to be a kennel pursuant to 19-
156.

Landfill: Properly permitted land or premises, with or without structures, used for the deposit of clean fill materials for
the purpose of disposing of said materials or for the filling and improving upon the land for development purposes.

Landscaped Buffer: An area of landscaping separating two distinct land uses, or a land use and a public right-of-way,
acting to soften or mitigate the effects of one land use on the other.

Landscaping Plan: A plan, drawn to scale, showing dimensions and details for vegetating a property, or a portion of a
property, including maintenance and protection measures.

Legal, Non-Conforming Lot: Any lot legally existing in accordance with the zoning regulations in effect at the time the lot
was created, which has been made non-conforming by subsequent adoption of zoning regulations or amendments

109 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



thereof. Such a lot may be non-conforming with the present zoning district regulations for any prescribed lot
requirements, such as lot area, shape, width or depth.

Legal, Non-Conforming Structure: A structure or building legally existing on the effective date of these Regulations or
any amendment thereto which does not conform to the zoning district regulations for any prescribed structure or
building requirements, such as front, side or rear yards; building height; building area or lot coverage; lot area per
dwelling unit; dwelling units per building; parking and loading spaces, etc.

Legal, Non-Conforming Use: A use, whether of a building, structure or lot, legally existing on the effective date of these
Regulations or any amendments thereto which does not conform to the use regulations of the zoning district in which it
is located.

Library: A public facility for the use, but not sale (unless deemed an accessory use), of literary, musical, artistic, or
reference materials.

Licensed medical marijuana dispensary: A pharmacist licensed pursuant to Chapter 400j of the Connecticut General
Statutes, who the Department of Consumer Protection has licensed to acquire, possess, distribute and dispense medical
marijuana pursuant to CGS Sections 21a-408 to 21a-408q. inclusive, of ‘An Act Concerning the Palliative Use of
Marijuana’ and who is located on the premises of a pharmacy licensed by the Connecticut Commission of Pharmacy.
(adopted October 22, 2013)

Licensed medical marijuana producer: A person or organization licensed by the Connecticut Department of Consumer
Protection as a producer under CGS 21a-408-1 through 21a-408-70, whose purpose is to cultivate marijuana for
palliative use, including selling, delivering, transporting and distributing such marijuana, but only to licensed dispensaries
under Sections 1 through 15, inclusive of the Act. (adopted October 22, 2013)

Lighting Definitions

Direct Glare: The visual impact of direct light emissions resulting from insufficient shielding of a source of light which
may create hazards or discomfort to any person off of the property.

Direct Light Emissions: Light emissions visible above a height of 5 feet at the subject property line. A bulb, a reflective
device, a refractive lens device, a globe, or diffuse panel shall be considered a direct light emission source.

Disability Glare: The eye's line-of-sight contact with a direct light emission, which causes a partial blindness.

Foot-Candle: The illuminance on a surface of one square foot in area on which there is uniformly distributed a light flux
of one lumen.

Full Cut-Off Type Fixtures: A luminary or light fixture that, by design of the housing, does not allow any light dispersion
or direct glare to shine above a 90 degree, horizontal plane from the base of the fixture. Full cut-off fixtures must be
installed in a horizontal position as designed, or the purpose of the design is defeated, and disabling glare will result.

IES: llluminating Engineering Society of North America, an organization that establishes standards for the lighting
industry.

Isodiagram: A graphical representation of points of equal illuminance drawn as a single line, circular patters, or
computer generated spot readings in a grid pattern on a site plan. Lighting designers and manufacturers to show the
level and evenness of a lighting design and to show how light fixtures will perform on a given site.

Light Trespass: Light from an artificial light source that is intruding into an area where it is not wanted or does not
belong.

110 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




Lumen: A unit of measure of the quantity of light that falls on an area of one square foot every point of which is one-foot
form the source of one candela. A light source of one candela emits a total of 12.57 lumens.

Uplighting: Any light source that distributes illumination above a 90-degree horizontal plane.

Line of Sight: A visual path emanating from an average eye level adjudged to be five feet above the ground level.

Livery Service: A business licensed by the Connecticut Department of Transportation that provides sedans, vans,
limousines, and buses and drivers for those vehicles for transportation of people.

Lot Definitions

Lot, Corner: A lot located at the intersection of two or more streets. A lot abutting on a curved street shall be considered
a corner lot if the interior angle formed by the street is not greater than 135°.

Lot Frontage: The distance between the side lines of a lot measured either along the front street line or the interior lot
line. On rear lots, the rear lot line of the front lot is the frontage of the rear lot.

Lot, Interior: A lot other than a corner, rear, flag or through lot.

Lot, Rear: A lot, the major portion of which lies to the rear of another lot that separates it from a public street, which is
connected to a public street via a private accessway of required width. Any lot which does not satisfy the minimum lot
width, measured along the right-of-way line of a public road or measured along the minimum front building setback line,
shall be considered a rear lot.

Lot, Through: A lot, other than a corner lot, having frontage on two streets.

Lot, Zoning: A single tract of land located within a single block which, at the time of filing for a building permit, is
designated by its owner or developer as a tract to be used, developed, or built upon as a unit, under the ownership or
control of a single entity, and therefore may not coincide with a lot of record. Except as the context shall indicate a lot
of record, all lots referred to in these Regulations are zoning lots.

Lot Area: The gross horizontal area contained within the property lines of the lot.

Lot Depth: The mean distance from the front line of the lot to the rear lot line measured in the general direction of the
side lines of the lot.

Lot Line: The property line bounding the lot.

Lot Line, Front: Boundary of the lot along the lot frontage. On corner lots, both lot lines abutting streets shall be
considered front lot lines.

Lot Line, Rear: Boundary of the lot most distant from and most nearly parallel to the front lot line.
Lot Line, Side: Any boundary of a lot that is not a front or rear lot line.

Lot of Record: An area of land designated as a lot on an approved plat of subdivision or described on a deed duly
recorded or registered, pursuant to statute.

Lot Width: The distance, measured in a straight line, connecting the points of intersection of the building line with the
side lot lines or at the rear line of the required front yard for irregular shaped lots.

Lot Dimension Illustrations

111 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




FRONT TAAD SETRACK

I —

CORNER LOT

SO YARD SETRADK

\ = LOT LD

90 AR SETIACK

Street

Front Lot Line \

From Lot Line

Front Lot
(Corner)

" Side Lot Lime

SideLotLine

Front Lot Line

Side Lot Line

Front Lot

Accessway

Sielaline

Rear Lot Line

Front Lot Line

Street

Front Lot Line

Sidbe Lot Line

Rear Lot Line

e Lotiine

Front Lot Line

Sids Lot Line

Front Lot

Side Lot Line

Side Lot Line

Front Lot
(Pie-Shape)

Biae LotbLin®

Corner Lot Lot Layout

A ARG TR | REAR YARD SETBACK
INTERIOR LOT g g

] H

G L. PRONT YARD SETBATY.

B g

o e W —
FRONT LOT
FRONT LOT

Interior Lot — Regular

Interior Lot - Irregular

Revision Date: 03/04/2020

112 | Page




Manufacturing: Any process whereby the nature, size or shape of articles is changed, or whereby articles are assembled
or packaged in quantity.

Medical Facility/Specialty Surgical Office and Operating facility: Any facility wherein medical diagnosis and/or, medical
treatment and/or Specialty Surgical services are provided along with such customary accessory services as may be
provided, including but not limited to outpatient services, treatment and/or testing.

Mixed Use Development: A single building containing more than one type of land use, or a single development of more
than one building and land use, where the different types of land uses are in close proximity, planned as a unified
complementary whole, and functionally integrated and structurally coordinated with regard to the use of shared
vehicular and pedestrian access and parking areas.

Mobile Home: A reasonably transportable unit without motive power, suitable for year-round occupancy and provided
with equipment, plumbing, heating, electricity and refrigeration.

Mobile Home Park: A parcel of land that has been planned for the placement of two or more mobile homes.

Motel: A building or group of buildings in which lodging is provided to transient guests, offered to the public for
compensation, and in which access to and from each room or unit is through an exterior door.

Multifamily Use: Residential occupancy of a building with more than one family.
Multifamily Structure: A building designed or used for residential purposes by more than one family.

Multi-Use Sports, Recreational, and Restaurant Complex. A single building or a group of buildings, operating under a
common hame or management, serving as a multiple sport center and restaurant along with ancillary, recreational and
cultural uses where individuals actively participate in sports, sport exhibitions, recreational or cultural activities, or as
spectators of competitions or exhibitions.

Multi-Sport Center: A facility where people engage in organized team and individual sports activities, inside the buildings
and outside the buildings which comprise the facility, on designated fields or in designated areas.

Natural Features: Components and processes present or produced by nature, including soil types, geology, slopes,
vegetation, surface water, drainage patterns, aquifers, recharge areas, climate, floodplains, aquatic life and wildlife.

Non-agriculturally related uses: Activities that are part of an agricultural operations overall offerings, but are not
incidental to agriculture, or tied to agricultural buildings, structures, equipment, and/or fields. Such uses may include,
but are not limited to, weddings, workshops, classes, farm to table dinners, fee-based activities and other similar events.

Non-Conforming Use or Structure: Any land, building or structure or their use which does not comply with all of the
requirements of these Regulations governing the zoning district in which it is located.

Nursery: A use whose sole function is the growing of trees or plants with commercial activities limited to the sale of
products grown on the premises and in no case including a retail outlet of garden supplies or a landscape service
business or the storage of equipment related thereto.

Nursery School: An establishment licensed by the State of Connecticut having facilities and all necessary personnel for
the care, guidance and/or supervision of seven or more children between the ages of two and six not of common
parentage on a regular basis for a part of the 24 hours in one or more days of the week.

Off-Street Parking Space: An on-the-lot space (garage or outdoor) having the dimensions of not less than 9 feet in width
and 18 feet in length.

Off-Street Loading Space: An on-the-lot space for the temporary parking of a commercial vehicle while loading or
unloading merchandise or material. Such space shall be not less than fourteen (14) feet in width, fourteen (14) feet in

113 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



height if covered, and 50’ in length. Trucks or trailers occupying such a space shall be located entirely on the lot and shall
not extend into the sidewalks or the street.

Open Space: The portion of the ground space on the same lot and contiguous to the principal building which is either
landscaped, or developed and maintained for recreation or conservation purposes. Open space shall not include those
portions of a lot that are utilized for off-street parking or loading, driveway or building purposes. This open space area
shall not be required to be dedicated for public use or access unless the provisions of the district within which the
property is located requires it.

Organization, Private Non-Profit: Any person(s), partnership, association, corporation or other group whose activities are
conducted for civic or humanitarian motives, or for the benefit of others, and not for the gain of any private individual or
group and may include, but shall not be limited to, patriotic, philanthropic, social service, welfare, benevolent,
educational, civic, fraternal, cultural, charitable, scientific, historical, athletic, or medical activities.

Outbuilding: (See accessory building).

Outdoor Light Fixture: An illuminating device, which is permanently installed outdoors, including but not limited to
devices used to illuminate any site, architectural structure, or sign.

Outpatient Surgical Facility: A building or portion of a building containing medical offices and facilities for providing
surgical services to patients on an outpatient basis, where such services generally require a stay of less than 24 hours.

Parapet: A low protective wall or railing along the edge of a raised structure such as a roof or balcony.

Parcel: Any legally described piece of land of any size that may or may not be subdivided or improved.

Parking Definitions
Parking Lot: An area other than a street used for the parking of registered vehicles.

Parking Structure: Parking spaces and adjacent access drives, aisles, and ramps that are located in a structure with two
or more levels, accessory to a residential, business/commercial, or industrial use.

Off-Street Parking Space: An on-the-lot space (garage or outdoor) having the dimensions of not less than 9 feet in width
and 18 feet in length.

Off-Street Loading Space: An on-the-lot space for the temporary parking of a commercial vehicle while loading or
unloading merchandise or material. Such space shall be not less than fourteen (14) feet in width, fourteen (14) feet in
height if covered, and 50’ in length. Trucks or trailers occupying such a space shall be located entirely on the lot and shall
not extend into the sidewalks or the street.

Pesticide: Any substance or mixture of substances intended for preventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating any pest,
or any substances intended for use as a plant regulator, defoliant or desiccant.

Place of Worship: A building wherein persons regularly assemble for religious worship.

Plot Plan: A schematic representation of a lot, drawn to scale, showing the actual measurements of the size, and
location of existing structures or structures to be erected, the location of the lot in relation to abutting streets, and other
such information.

Principal Building: Main building on a lot.

Primary Dwelling: An unconverted portion of an existing single-family residence where all living areas, kitchen, entrance,
and lot on which it is situated are used in common.

114 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




Professional Office: The office of recognized professions, such as doctors, lawyers, dentists, architects, engineers, artists,
musicians, designers, teachers, and others who through training or experience are qualified to perform services of a
professional as distinguished from a business nature.

Public Charitable Institution: Any partnership, association, corporation or other group whose activities are conducted for
selfless, civic, or humanitarian motives, or for the benefit of others, and not for the gain of any private individual or
group, and for which said institution receives financial support from a governmental entity or other public organization.
Such institution may include, but shall not be limited to, patriotic, philanthropic, social service, welfare, benevolent,
educational, religious, civic, fraternal, cultural, charitable, scientific, historical, athletic, or medical activities.

Recreation: Any activity, whether structured or not, in which individuals voluntarily engage during their leisure, including
but not limited to:

a. Sports (individual, dual, team, coed recreational) athletics, both land and water based.
Arts and crafts, spectating, picnicking, and nature study.

c. Dance, drama, music, games, social recreation, special events, hiking/walking, cycling, hobbies, outdoor
educational activities, and cultural activities.

Recreation, Active: Leisure-time activities, usually of a formal nature and often performed with others, requiring
equipment and taking place at prescribed places, sites or fields.

Recreation, Open Space: The area of land suitable for the development of specific active recreation facilities for leisure-
time activities, usually of a formal nature and often performed with others, requiring equipment and taking place at
prescribed places, sites or fields, including but not limited to baseball fields, soccer fields, football fields, tennis,
basketball and other court games, hockey facilities, ,multipurpose fields, community swimming pools and similar places.

Recreation, Passive: Activities that involve relatively inactive or less energetic activities, such as walking, sitting, hiking,
and other similar activities.

Recreation Area, Active: Any area developed in such a manner as to be conducive to those actives that fall within the
range of active recreation. Examples: athletic fields, hard-surfaced courts, pools, bicycle and walking trails, open turf
areas, playgrounds and similar uses.

Recreation Area, Passive: Any area developed in such a manner as to be conducive of those activities that fall within the
range of passive recreation. Examples: scenic vistas, nature areas, sitting areas, walkways, gardens, streams, picnicking
areas and similar uses.

Religious Institution: A church or place of worship or religious assembly with related facilities such as the following in
any combination: rectory or convent; meeting hall, offices for administration of the institution, licensed child or adult
daycare, playground, cemetery.

Restaurant: A commercial establishment, open to the public, where food and beverages are prepared, served and
consumed primarily within the principal building.

Retail: The buying or selling of goods or merchandise directly to the consumer for their personal consumption or use

Right-of-Way: An area of land not on a lot that is dedicated for public or private use to accommodate a transportation
system for allowing the free passage of people and goods. Rights-of-way include, but are not limited to, highways,
streets, roads, private roads, rail lines, and sidewalks.

School, Parochial: A private school maintained by a religious body or organization for the purpose of elementary and/or
secondary instruction.

115 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



School, Private: A school that is established, conducted, and primarily supported by a nongovernmental agency or
organization.

School, Private Non-Profit: Any private educational facility owned and operated by one or more nonprofit corporations
or associations no part of the net earnings of which inures, or may lawfully inure, to the benefit of any private
shareholder or individual.

School, Public: Any educational facility owned and operated by a governmental entity.

Sediment: Solid material, either mineral or organic, that is in suspension, is transported, or has been moved from its site
of origin by erosion.

Setback: The horizontal distance from any street or lot line to any building, structure or use, measured in a straight line
from and perpendicular to such street or lot line and extending as a vertical plan upwards to infinity.

116 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Yard Side

Side
Yard

Locations Yard
Front
Yard
Rear
Yard

Minimum Side Yard Setback

—>
[
[
e — — — _\=

Minimum Side Yard Setback

|<_

Minimum™, ._ .— - - - = =

Rear IPrmclpal I Minimum
Yard Building Front
Setback | | ocation -

.

Minimum Side Yard Setback

Minimum Side Yard Setback

\

'3

]
'
' Accessory 1
] g
. Building
' Location
]

G e—
a‘ Rear Accessory
1 Yard Building
feack Cocated n
[ ] A Front Yard
Unless 150°
0r More From
The Street

Street

Yard Setback Locations

Shelter, Security: A structure or a portion of a structure intended to provide protection to human life during periods of
danger to human life from nuclear fallout, air-raids, storms, or other emergencies.

117 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Sign Definitions:

Sign: Any object, device, display or structure or part thereof, situated outdoors or indoors but designed and intended to
be seen outside the building, which is used to advertise, identify, display, direct or attract attention to an object, person,
institution, organization, business, product, service, event or location by any means, including words, letters, figures,
design, symbols, fixtures, colors, illumination or projected images.

Sign, Area: The entire face of a sign including the advertising surface and any framing trim or molding within a
continuous perimeter enclosing the extreme limits of the entire message of advertising copy and in no case passing
through or between any adjacent elements of same. However, such perimeter shall not include any structural elements
lying outside the limits of the above area not forming an integral part of the display. For the purpose of computing area
only, one side of a double-faced sign shall be included in the total area.

, FACE WIDTH
H|  cowx g
B 1 INN y

SIGN

CURB_LEVEL Al RN AN Y AN A

Sign Dimensions

Sign, Banner: A sign having characters, letters or illustrations applied to cloth, paper, flexible plastic or fabric of any kind,
with only such material for backing.

Sign, Business: A sign which directs attention to a business, commodity, service, or entertainment conducted, sold, or
offered upon the premises where such sign is located or to which it is affixed.

Sign, Commercial Advertising or Off-Premises: Any sign owned or operated by any person, firm or corporation engaged
in the business of outdoor advertising for compensation for the use of such signs.

Sign, Directional: A sign with an area of not over two square feet indicating the direction or route of an establishment.

Sign, Directly llluminated: Any sign designed to give forth any artificial light directly (or through any transparent or
translucent material) from a source of light within such sign.

Sign, Directory: A sign or group of signs attached to a building or freestanding which identifies the business, owner,
address, or occupation of a group of businesses, but contains no advertising.

Sign, Double-Face: A sign containing the same copy on both sides of the supporting structure.

Sign, Flashing: Any directly or indirectly illuminated sign on which the artificial light is not stationary, or constant in
intensity and color, at all times when in use.

Sign, Ground or Freestanding: A sign supported by one or more uprights or braces in or above the ground.

Sign, Height Of: The vertical distance between the ground level and the top of a sign. See diagram above.

118 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




Sign, Indirectly llluminated: A sign illuminated with a light so shielded that no direct rays there from are visible
elsewhere than on the lot where said illuminated sign is located. If such shielding is defective or ineffective, such sign
shall be deemed to be a directly illuminated sign.

Signs, Number of: For the purpose of determining the number of signs, a sign shall be considered to be a single display
surface or display device containing elements organized, related and composed to form a unit. Where matter is
displayed in a random manner without organized relationship elements, or where there is reasonable doubt about the
relationship of elements, each element shall be considered to be a single sign.

Sign, Off Premise: A sign advertising a use not conducted on the premises or a product not sold on the premises where
the sign is located.

Sign, On Premises: A sign advertising a use or activity conducted on the premises where the sign is located.

Sign, Political: A sign identifying and urging voter support for a particular election issue, political party, or candidate for
public office.

Sign, Projecting: A sign that is affixed to an exterior wall of any building and extending more than 15 inches beyond the
building walls or parts thereof.

Sign, Temporary: Any sign not intended for permanent display. Examples of temporary signs include but are not limited
to, any sign, display board, handbill, poster, banner, sandwich board, pennant, streamer, whirligig, valance or advertising
display constructed of paper, cloth, canvas, light fabric, cardboard, wallboard or other light materials (with or without
structural frame).

Sign, Temporary Permit: A permit issued by the Zoning Enforcement Officer pursuant to these Regulations by virtue of
which signs not otherwise permitted by said regulations may be permitted in accordance with conditions set forth in the
regulations for periods of not more than six months, subject to renewal for periods not to exceed six months each to the
extent such renewals are permitted in these Regulations.

Sign, Wall: A sign which is affixed to the exterior walls of any building and projecting not more than 15 inches from the
building wall or parts thereof. Wall signs shall also include illuminated signs erected inside window display area of a
building.

Site Plan: A document or group of documents containing sketches, text, drawings, maps, photographs, and other
materials intended to present and explain certain elements of a proposed development, including physical design,
grading, siting of buildings and structures, interior vehicle and pedestrian access, the provision of improvements, and
the interrelationship of these elements.

Soil: Means the unconsolidated mineral or organic material on the immediate land surface that serves as a natural
medium for the growth of plants.

Soil Erosion & Sediment Control Plan: Means a plan and narrative that explains and illustrates the measures that will be
taken to control erosion and sediment problems during construction. The plan has a written portion known as a
narrative and an illustrative portion known as a map or site plan.

Solid Waste: Unwanted or discarded material including municipal solid wastes, bulky wastes, and non-hazardous
industrial processing wastes. Solid waste does not include septage and sludges, agricultural and mining wastes, or
hazardous wastes.

Storage: A space or place where goods, materials, or personal property is placed and kept for any period of time.

Storage Area (Earth Excavation): An area within the permit area in which the applicant proposes to stockpile excavated
materials and/or approved fill materials and/or to locate any equipment and structures.

119 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020




Storage Building: An accessory building where materials, such as building materials, equipment, such as garden
equipment or other personal property is stored.

Storage Building, Temporary: A building which is delivered to a property by truck for storage related to a residential
property often as part of a move or used for storage accessory to a business use.

Story: That portion of a building above the basement included between any floor and the ceiling or roof above it.
Story, Half: Any place under a gable, hip or gambrel roof, the floor of which is not more than two feet below the plate.

Streamer, Advertising: Any long, narrow, wavy strip of cloth, paper, flexible plastic or fabric of any kind attached to a
building, vehicle or other property fixture along only one side of its length or width, and having characters, letters or
illustrations applied to it for the purposes of attracting public attention to a commercial enterprise or event.

Street: Any existing way, or town highway, or a way shown (a) on a subdivision plat approved by the Planning
Commission, or (b) on a subdivision record map duly filed and recorded in the office of the Town Clerk of the Town of
Simsbury.

Street Line: The line between the lot and the street right-of-way.

Streetscape: The visual image of a street, including the combination of buildings, parking, signs, street trees and
landscaping, and other hardscape and street furniture.

Structural Alteration: Any change in or addition to the structural or supporting members of a building such as bearing
walls, columns, beams, or girders.

Structure, Primary: The predominant building or structure used for a permitted use or activity on a lot or parcel. Where
evident by context, the terms “principal building” or “principal structure” shall have the same meaning.

Trailer: A portable, primarily temporary living accommodation towed on wheels, transported on a truck or having its
own motive power, which may or may not contain running water, bath facilities, a flush toilet, appropriate sanitary
connections or cooking facilities.

Unsightly Material: Garden equipment, excavation equipment, commercial equipment, industrial equipment,
appliances, furniture or debris or waste or other products stored outdoors and which are not actively being utilized for
their intended purpose, such as for construction or repair of a structure on the lot.

Use: The specific purpose for which a lot or a building is designed, arranged, intended to be used, or for which it is or
may be occupied or maintained. The terms permitted use, special use, or its equivalent shall not be deemed to include a
non-conforming use, as defined herewith.

Use, Accessory: A use of land, buildings or structures which is clearly incidental to, and customarily in connection with
and located on the same lot as the primary structure or use.

Use, Permitted: A use permitted in a zoning district without the need for special administrative review and approval,
upon satisfaction of the standards and requirements of these Zoning Regulations.

Utility Trailers: Trailers used for private residential multi-purposes and may include transport of snowmobiles, boats and
all-terrain vehicles.

Vehicle: Any motor vehicle as defined by the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut, as amended.

Vehicles Actively Being Restored or Repaired: Vehicles for which there is noticeable continuous progress in making the
vehicle roadworthy as may be determined by the Land Use Inspector and Commission. These vehicles, when being
stored or parked outdoors may be required to be covered or else be parked indoors.

120 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



Vehicle, Recreational: Any towed or self-propelled residence, coach, trailer, or truck body converted for residential
occupancy primarily designed or utilized for seasonal and/or vacation use.

Village District: A zoning district within which development and use of land and structures is permitted based on specific
standards and criteria intended to preserve and protect the distinctive character, landscape, and historic values of the
designated area.

Visually Sensitive Areas: Areas of statewide concern, areas of local interest, trap rock ridges and locally designated scenic
roads, and Simsbury Land Trust properties.

Wetlands: Any wetland as defined in Chapter 440 of the CGS.

Wholesale: The buying or selling of goods or merchandise in bulk or large quantities to those actively involved in the
trades for the purposes of resale of said goods or merchandise directly to the consumer for their use.

Wireless Communication Facility: The antennas, satellite dish antennas, telecommunications equipment, communication
towers, monopoles, and/or support structures used in conjunction with the provision of commercial wireless
communication services or municipal, State, or Federal communications systems. These services may include, but are
not limited to cellular communications, personal communication services, specialized mobilized radio, and paging.

Yard: An open space on a zoning lot which is unoccupied and unobstructed from its lowest level to the sky and upon
which no structure may be located, except as otherwise permitted.

Yard, Front: An open space extending across the full width of the lot bounded on one side by a street to a depth as
required by these Regulations.

Yard, Rear: An open space extending across that portion of the lot most opposite from the front lot line bounded on one
side by a property line and to a width as required by these Regulations.

Yard, Side: An open space extending from the front to the rear yard, bounded on one side by the lot boundary and to a
depth as required by these Regulations.

i

|
' i |
I Side ' : !
L Yard B : s |

Rear
Yard

M,

121 | Page
Revision Date: 03/04/2020



	zc 031620
	ZC 20-02 Application
	ZC 20-02 Plan
	ZC 20-03 Application
	ZC 20-03 Calculations
	ZC 20-03 Cert of Insurance
	ZC 20-03 Sign Plans
	ZC 20-03 Site Plans
	ZC-20-03 _SignageCalculation_03.11.2020
	ZC 20-03 - updated Sign Plans
	ZC-20-02 DRB Referral
	ZC 15-14  80 Wolcott Street
	ZoningRegsDraft_03042020
	SECTION 1 REGULATORY BASICS
	SECTION 2    ZONING DISTRICTS AND MAP
	2.1 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS
	2.2 ZONING MAP
	2.3 DISTRICT BOUNDARIES
	2.4 APPLICATION OF DISTRICT REGULATIONS
	2.5 REGULATIONS DECLARED TO BE MINIMUM REGULATIONS

	SECTION 3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
	3.2 DESIGNATION OF RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
	3.3 LIMITATION OF PRINCIPAL USES
	3.4 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL EXCEPTION USES
	3.4.1 RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND USES
	3.5 DEVELOPMENT OF REAR LOTS
	3.6 Other Uses
	3.7 TEMPORARY USES

	3.8 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	3.9 EXCEPTION TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	3.10 DESIGNED CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS
	3.11 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VILLAGE CLUSTER ZONE- VC
	3.12  SINGLE FAMILY OPEN SPACE CLUSTER ZONE (amended July 21, 1997)

	3.1 PURPOSES
	SECTION 4 BUSINESS DISTRICTS
	4.1 PURPOSE
	4.2 DESIGNATION OF BUSINESS DISTRICTS
	4.3 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	4.4 EXCEPTIONS TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	4.5 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL PERMIT USES
	4.6 BUSINESS USE STANDARDS

	SECTION 5 INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS
	5.1 PURPOSE
	5.2 DESIGNATION OF INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS
	5.3 DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	5.4 EXCEPTIONS TO DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	5.5 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL PERMIT USES
	5.6 SPECIAL EXCEPTION FOR HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS IN THE I-1  AND I-2 ZONES

	SECTION 6 FLOODPLAIN ZONE
	6.1  PURPOSE
	6.2  DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT
	6.3 PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES
	6.4  IDENTIFICATION OF THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA
	6.5  FLOODPLAIN ZONE ADMINISTRATION
	6.6  PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION
	6.7  STANDARDS FOR WATERCOURSES WITHOUT ESTABLISHED BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS (UN-NUMBERED ZONE A), ADOPTED FLOODWAYS AND/OR FLOOD MAPPING, AND FLOODWAYS
	6.8 SPECIFIC STANDARDS

	SECTION 7 NON-CONFORMITIES- LOTS, USES AND STRUCTURES
	7.1  PURPOSE
	7.2  NON-CONFORMING LOTS OF RECORD AND IN SUBDIVISIONS
	7.3 NON-CONFORMING USES OF LAND
	7.4 NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURES
	7.5 NON-CONFORMING USE OF STRUCTURES

	SECTION 8 SPECIAL REGULATIONS
	8.1 PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT ZONE (pad) (ADOPTED MAY 3, 2010)
	8.2 HOUSING OPPORTUNITY DEVELOPMENT ZONE
	8.3 WORKFORCE HOUSING OVERLAY ZONE
	8.4 ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY, CONGREGATE SENIOR HOUSING FACILITY OR CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY
	8.5  AGRI-TOURISM

	SECTION 9 SIGN REGULATIONS BY ZONE
	9.1 RESIDENTIAL ZONES
	9.2 NON-RESIDENTIAL ZONES
	9.3 SIGN DESIGN STANDARDS
	9.4 SIGN PLAN REQUIREMENTS
	9.5 TEMPORARY SIGNS
	9.6 PERMANENT SIGNS FOR IDENTIFICATION OR PUBLIC PURPOSES
	9.7 TEMPORARY SIGNS

	SECTION 10 PARKING STANDARDS
	10.1 OFF STREET PARKING REGULATIONS
	10.2 PARKING SPACE RATIOS

	SECTION 11 SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS
	11.1 SITE PLAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

	SECTION 12 special exception REQUIREMENTS
	12.1 SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

	SECTION 13 TEXT AMEDMENT APPLICATION
	SECTION 14 ZONE CHANGE APPLICATIONS
	SECTION 15 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT APPLICATIONS
	15.1 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT REVIEWS BY STAFF

	SECTION 16 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	SECTION 17 ADMINISTRATION AND DEFINITIONS
	17.1 CONFORMITY REQUIRED
	17.2 INTERPRETATION OF REGULATIONS
	17.3 INTERPRETATION OF TERMS
	17.4 DEFINITIONS



